
NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING & VOTE TO 

CLOSE PART OF THE MEETING 

A G E N D A  

COUNCIL MEETING 

City of Moberly 

City Council Room – Moberly City Hall 

101 West Reed Street 

November 06, 2023 

6:00 PM 
  

 

Posted:  
 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval Of The City Council Meeting Minutes For October 16, 2023, and October 20, 2023. 

Recognition of Visitors 

Communications, Requests, Informational Items   

2. A Request From Randolph Area YMCA For The 2023 Turkey Trot 5K.  

3. A Request From The Moberly Area Chamber Of Commerce To Hold The 2023 Christmas Parade In 

Downtown Moberly On December 2, 2023, At 3:00 P.M.  

Public Hearing and Receipt of Bids 
4. Receipt Of Bids For 5 Residential Structures. 

5. Receipt Of Bids For Janitorial Services For The Police Department.   

6. Receipt Of Bids For North Morley Water Line EDA Project For Public Utilities. 

Consent Agenda 

7. A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of Park Land From Leatha Silva And V.V. Silva. 

8. A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing Contracting With JT Holman Construction For 

Demolition Of Five Residential Structures. 

9. A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Randolph County Sheltered Workshop Industries And 

Authorizing Contracting For Janitorial Services At The Moberly Police Department Building. 

10. A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An Agreement 

With Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc., For The North Morley Water Line Replacement Project. 

11. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An Agreement With Burns & McDonnell 

Engineering Company, Inc., For A Utility Rate Study. 

12. A Resolution Granting An Access Easement To KOSF II – Moberly, LLC From The City Of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

Ordinances & Resolutions 
13. An Ordinance Approving A Sidewalk Replacement Reimbursement Agreement Between The 

Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District And The City Of Moberly. 

14. An Ordinance Repealing Article IV Of Chapter 42 Of The City Code Related To Sewers And 

Adopting A New Article IV Of Chapter 42 Related To Sewers. 

15. A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri. 

 

 

1



Anything Else to Come Before the Council 

16. Appointment To The Housing Authority Board. 

17. Consideration For Approval Of A New Liquor Application. 

18. Public Comments. 

Adjournment 
19. Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To 

Discuss The Status Of Legal And Personnel Matters.  §(610.021)(1,3) RSMo. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We invite you to attend the meeting virtually by viewing it live on the City of Moberly’s Facebook 

page.  A link to the City’s Channel may be found on our website’s main page at 

www.cityofmoberly.com.  The public is invited to attend the Council meeting.  Representatives of 

the news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting the City Clerk.  If a special 

accommodation is needed as addressed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact the 

City Clerk twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting. 

2

http://www.cityofmoberly.com/


City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department:  City Clerk  

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Approval Of The City Council Meeting Minutes For October 16, 2023, and 

October 20, 2023. 

  

Summary: Please find minutes from the last regular meeting on 10/16, and special 

meeting 10/20, in the packet for review.   

  

Recommended 

Action: Please approve the minutes for the permanent records of the City of Moberly. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo   X     Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Jeffrey     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kimmons     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

3

#1.



 

October 16, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 3 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
October 16, 2023 

 
The Moberly City Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 101 West Reed Street, 
Moberly, MO, with Mayor Brubaker presiding. 
 
All stood and recited the pledge of allegiance led by Mayor Brubaker. 
 
Council Members answering the roll call were: Tim Brubaker, Brandon Lucas, Jerry Jeffrey, Austin Kyser and John 
Kimmons. 
 
A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Lucas to approve the agenda.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser 
and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Lucas to approve the minutes of the October 2, and October 4, 
2023, Council meetings as presented.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
A proposal was received by R&D Properties for in-fill housing at 1032 Franklin St.  A motion was made by Kyser and 
seconded by Jeffrey to accept the proposal.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Quotes for the Fox Park Retention Basin were received from Willis Bros, $2,000; Sapp Construction, Inc, $12,558 for 
concrete inlet and $11,778 for PVC inlet; C.L. Richardson Construction Co. Inc., $6,556.73.  A motion was made by 
Kimmons and seconded by Lucas to accept the quotes.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: 
none. 
 
Mayor Brubaker asked to entertain any motion to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion.  Hearing 
none, Mayor Brubaker asked for a motion for the Consent Agenda to be read by City Clerk, Shannon Hance.  Jeffrey 
made a motion for City Clerk, Shannon Hance, to read the Consent Agenda.  Kimmons seconded the motion.  Ayes: 
Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Bill No. R1538:  “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH MARINE TOYS FOR TOTS FOUNDATION 
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 218 W REED STREET AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE LEASE” 
 

4

#1.



 

October 16, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 2 of 3 

Bill No. R1539  “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE 2023 CITY 
OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI LOSS PREVENTION MANUAL” 
 
Bill No. R1540:  “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF A 2007 PIERCE 
CONTENDER FIRE ENGINE TO THE SUMNER COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT” 
 
Bill No. R1541:  “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF WILLIS BROS., INC AND RATIFYING THE INSTALLATION OF 
A TWENTY-FOUR INCH STANDPIPE AT THE FOX PARK RETENTION BASIN” 
 
Bill No. R1542:  “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND ACCEPTING A CHANGE ORDER TO THE AGREEMENT WITH 
WILLIS BROS., INC., FOR THE STURGEON AND ROLLINS WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT” 
 
The Resolution Bills having previously been made available for public inspection were read by title one time.  A 
motion was made by Jeffrey and seconded by Kyser to adopt the Resolutions.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser 
and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Kyser introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH SCHNELL CONSTRUCTION, LLC., FOR DREAM MOORE FALLS” and moved that the bill be read 
two times by title for passage.  Kimmons seconded the motion, and upon said motion the vote was as follows: Ayes: 
Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The bill having previously been made available for public 
inspection was read by title two times.  Kimmons moved that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  Kyser seconded 
the motion.  The presiding officer, having called for a vote on the motion, the vote was as follows: Roll Call: Ayes: 
Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Jeffrey introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
FOR INFILL DEVELOPMENT WITH R & D PROPERTIES, A MISSOURI LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY” and moved that 
the bill be read two times by title for passage.  Kimmons seconded the motion, and upon said motion the vote was 
as follows: Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The bill having previously been made 
available for public inspection was read by title two times.  Kyser moved that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  
Lucas seconded the motion.  The presiding officer, having called for a vote on the motion, the vote was as follows: 
Roll Call: Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Kimmons introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY OUT OF THE TREASURY OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, 
MISSOURI TO PAY EXPENSES DUE BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 AND OCTOBER 12, 2023 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$563,241.69” and made a motion for it to be read.  Lucas seconded the motion.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser 
and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read 
by title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Lucas to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Brubaker, 
Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Monthly reports were received from Department Directors. 
 
Michael Hall, 1471 Trails End, Moberly, MO, CEO of Moberly Regional Medical Center, was present and spoke to the 
Council about the MU Health Partnership and the new general surgeon in Moberly, Dr. Saeed Arefanian. 
 
A motion was made by Lucas and seconded by Kyser to adjourn to a work session followed by a closed session to 
discuss the status of legal, real estate, and a negotiated contract.  §(610.021)(1,2,12) RSMo.  Roll call vote: Ayes: 
Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 

5

#1.



 

October 16, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 3 of 3 

 
A closed session was held. 
 
Mayor Brubaker reopened the meeting. 
 
A motion was made by Lucas and seconded by Kyser to adjourn.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  
Nays: none. 

Work Session 
 
The Following Was Discussed At The Work Session: 
 
Appointment To The Housing Authority Board. 

 

Review Of A Sidewalk Replacement Reimbursement Agreement. 

 

A Resolution Approving The Purchase Of Real Estate From The Heirs Of Leatha Silva And V.V. Silva Located In 

Rothwell Park. 

 
Receipt Of Bids For 5 Residential Structures. 
 

A Request From Randolph Area YMCA For The 2023 Turkey Trot 5K. 

 

A Request From The Moberly Area Chamber Of Commerce To Hold The 2023 Christmas Parade In Downtown 

Moberly On December 2, 2023, At 3:00 P.M. 

 

Receipt Of Bids For Janitorial Services For The Police Department. 

 

A Discussion Regarding Accepting The Bid And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Agreement For North 

Morley Water Line EDA Project For Public Utilities. 

 

A Discussion Regarding A Proposal From 1898 & Company, Part Of Burns & McDonnell Engineering, For A Utility 

Rate Study. 

 

An Ordinance Repealing And Adopting City Code Provisions Pertaining To Sewers And Pretreatment. 

 

A Resolution Approving The Granting Of An Access Easement To KOSH II. 

 

6

#1.



 

October 20, 2023, 12:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 1 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
October 20, 2023 

 
The Moberly City Council met in a special session at 12:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 101 West Reed 
Street, Moberly, MO, with Mayor Brubaker presiding. 
 
All stood and recited the pledge of allegiance led by Mayor Brubaker. 
 
Council Members answering the roll call were: Tim Brubaker, Brandon Lucas, Jerry Jeffrey, and Austin Kyser.  Absent: 
John Kimmons. 
 
A motion was made by Lucas and seconded by Jeffrey to approve the agenda.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, and 
Kyser.  Nays: none.  Absent: Kimmons. 
 
Kyser introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR 
SYNTHETIC SKATE RINK OPERATIONS WITH THE MOBERLY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, INC.” and moved that the 
bill be read two times by title for passage.  Lucas seconded the motion, and upon said motion the vote was as follows: 
Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, and Kyser.  Nays: none.  Absent: Kimmons.  The bill having previously been made 
available for public inspection was read by title two times.  Kyser moved that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  
Lucas seconded the motion.  The presiding officer, having called for a vote on the motion, the vote was as follows: 
Roll Call: Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, and Kyser.  Nays: none.  Absent: Kimmons. 
 
Jeffrey introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
AGREEMENT FOR THE GRANT AWARD WITH THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES FOR THE 
KIWANIS PARK PROJECT” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kyser seconded the motion.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, 
Jeffrey, and Kyser.  Nays: none.  Absent: Kimmons.  The Resolution bill having previously been made available for 
public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Jeffrey and seconded by Lucas to adopt the 
Resolution.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, and Kyser.  Nays: none.  Absent: Kimmons. 
 
A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Lucas to adjourn.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, and Kyser.  Nays: 
none.  Absent: Kimmons. 
 

7

#1.



 

 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police  

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item:     A Request From Randolph Area YMCA For The 2023 Turkey Trot 5K.  

 

 

Summary: The Randolph Area YMCA requests permission to hold the 2023 Turkey Trot 

5K to support youth activities in Randolph County on November 23, 2023.  The 

race time is 8:00 a.m. with the race beginning at 536 W Reed St.  The race will 

travel west on Reed Street to Holman Rd, north on Holman Rd to the war 

memorials, turn left into Rothwell Park, cross the dam to James Youth Cabin, 

left towards Fisk Ave.  Left on Fisk Ave and continue on Fisk Ave to Thompson 

St.  Turn left onto Thompson St and continue to Rollins St.  Right on Rollins St 

to 4th St.  Left on 4th St to Reed St, left on Reed to the finish line at 536 W Reed 

St.  Contact person is Joe Hulen, 660-263-3600.  They expect 125 participants 

and request Law Enforcement lead the 5K.  They will have approximately 10 

volunteers to help.  With the race being on Thanksgiving morning, traffic is not 

expected to be an issue. 

  

Recommended Action   

   

Please approve the request. 

 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Jeffrey     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

8

#2.



9

#2.



10

#2.



 

 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police  

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item:     A Request From The Moberly Area Chamber Of Commerce To Hold The 

2023 Christmas Parade In Downtown Moberly On December 2, 2023, At 3:00 

P.M.  

 

 

Summary: The Moberly Area Chamber of Commerce requests permission to hold the 

2023 Christmas Parade in downtown Moberly on December 2, beginning at 

3:00 p.m.  The parade staging will be at the City Hall parking lot, Depot 

Parking lot and Home Care Parking Lot.  They request permission to close 

Sturgeon St between Coates and Rollins streets for staging.  The parade will 

begin in the 100 block of W Reed St and travel west to Johnson St and Reed 

St where it will disband.  The contact person is Megan Schmitt.  They expect 

30-50 units and they will have volunteers to assist along the parage route and 

request Law Enforcement lead and provide traffic control along the parade 

route.  

  

Recommended Action   

   

Please approve the request. 

 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Jeffrey     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

11

#3.



12

#3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt Of Bids For 5 Residential Structures. 

  

Summary: We advertised for bids on 5residential structures.  Bids were opened on October 4, 

2023 and 3 bids were received. Wiedeman Dozing, Schnieders Excavating and JT 

Holman Construction.  Staff recommends the low bid of JT Holman for $22,000.00. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Accept these bids 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number: 100.005.5418 

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
   x   Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

13

#4.



Advertisement for Bids 

 

The City of Moberly will receive sealed bids for the demolition of 5 residential structures and 

outbuildings at 1824 S Morley St, 522 S Williams St, 616 S 5th St, 714 Franklin St and 824 W Coates St.  

The removal of any appliances, the hauling away of demolition materials to a designated landfill and the 

grading and filling of the lot shall all be included in the bid.  The bids are to be submitted to the City 

Clerk’s Office at 101 W Reed St. and are due by 10:00 AM on October 4, 2023 and the envelope marked 

“Demo 5 Residential Structures 2023”.   Requirements for these bids may be obtained at the 

Community Development Office at City Hall, 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270.  The City of 

Moberly reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids.  For more information call (660)269-7638. 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY THOMAS E. SANDERS 

CITY OF MOBERLY 

Director of Community Development 

 

 

PLEASE PUBLISH ONE (1) TIME IN THE FOLLOWING EDITION OF THE MONITOR INDEX:   

 WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2023 

 

14

#4.



Company 1824 S Morley 522 S Williams 616 S 5th St 714 Franklin St 824 W Coates St Total

Wiedeman Dozing $4,000.00 $8000.00 $4,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,800.00 $26,800.00

Schnieders Excavating $9,281.00 $12,599.00 $9,045.00 $9,659.00 $10,352.00 $50,936.00

JT Holman Construction $3,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $6,000.00 $22,000.00

5 Residential Structures Demo Bid Tab

15

#4.



16

#4.



17

#4.



18

#4.



19

#4.



20

#4.



 

 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police  

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item:     Receipt Of Bids For Janitorial Services For The Police Department.   

 

 

Summary: The Police Department is currently without a custodian, and it was decided the 

best way to replace the employee was to solicit bids for janitorial services 

from local companies. Bid requests were sent to five local companies along 

with the bid packet and specifications. Three sealed bids were received, the 

bids are from Chef Jeff’s Cleaning, Magic City Cleaning and Randolph 

Sheltered Industries-MPPS. 

  

Recommended Action   

   

Please accept the bids. 

 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Jeffrey     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

21

#5.



22

#5.



23

#5.



24

#5.



25

#5.



26

#5.



27

#5.



28

#5.



29

#5.



30

#5.



31

#5.



32

#5.



33

#5.



34

#5.



35

#5.



36

#5.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt Of Bids For North Morley Water Line EDA Project For Public 

Utilities. 

 

  

Summary: The Public Utilities Department has received bids for the North Morley Water 

Line EDA Project that was approved as one of six projects included within an 

EDA grant. The quote selected is the $1,167,770.50 from Emery Sapp & Sons 

Inc. The advertisement for bids resulted in bids received ranging from this 

lowest bid of $1,167,770.50 to the high bid of $1,457,115.00. Project funding 

is from an EDA Grant with a corresponding Moberly match. EDA requires 

project completion no later than September 28, 2024. DNR construction 

permit for this project is included. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Plan 

  

Account Number: 301.112.5412 

  

Available Budget $: To be secured from capital reserve 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
      Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes   x    Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report    x   Other  Exhibits       Passed Failed 

 

37

#6.



38

#6.



39

#6.



40

#6.



41

#6.



42

#6.



43

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-1 AGREEMENT

DOCUMENT 005200 - AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between the City of Moberly, Missouri (hereinafter called OWNER) and 
Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc.     (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR).

OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as 
follows:

ARTICLE 1 - WORK

1.01 CONTRACTOR shall complete all work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents.  
The Work is generally described as follows:

North Morley Water Main

ARTICLE 2 - THE PROJECT

2.01 The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part is 
generally described as follows:  North Morley Water Main

ARTICLE 3 - ENGINEER

3.01 The Project has been designed by Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (Jacobs), who is hereinafter called 
ENGINEER and who is to act as OWNER's representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, 
and have the rights and authority assigned to ENGINEER in the Contract Documents in connection 
with the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 4 - CONTRACT TIMES

4.01 Time of the Essence

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and 
readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the 
Contract.

4.02 Days to Achieve Substantial Completion and Final Payment

A. The Work will be substantially completed within 180 days after the date when the Contract 
Times commence to run as provided in paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions and 
completed and ready for final payment in accordance with paragraph 14.07 of the General 
Conditions within 210 days after the date when the Contract Times commence to run.

4.03 Liquidated Damages

A. CONTRACTOR and OWNER recognize that time is of the essence of this Agreement and 
that OWNER will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times 
specified in paragraph 4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with 
Article 11 of the General Conditions.  The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and 
difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered 
by OWNER if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 

44

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-2 AGREEMENT

such proof, OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but 
not as a penalty) CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER $250.00 for each of the first 30 days 
that expires after the time specified in paragraph 4.02 for completion and readiness for final 
payment until the Work is completed and ready for final payment.  Thereafter, the 
CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER $500.00 for each of the next 15 days that expires until 
the Work is completed and ready for final payment. If the Work is not completed and ready 
for final payment after 45 days from the time specified in paragraph 4.02, the 
CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER $750.00 for each day that expires until the Work is 
completed and ready for final payment. 

ARTICLE 5 - CONTRACT PRICE.

5.01 OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents an amount in current funds equal to the unit prices in the Bid Form:

NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI     

No. Item Unit
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extension

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $34,000.00 $34,000.00

2 6-INCH WATER MAIN LF 150 $137.00 $20,550.00

3 8-INCH WATER MAIN LF 114 $128.00 $14,592.00

4 12-INCH WATER MAIN LF 3530 $157.25 $555,092.50

5 8-INCH RJ WATER MAIN-JACK 
& BORE LF 114 $345.00 $39,330.00

6 12-INCH RJ WATER MAIN-
JACK & BORE LF 60 $490.00 $29,400.00

7 12-INCH WATER MAIN IN 
CASING PIPE LF 98 $360.00 $35,280.00

8 12-INCH DIRECTIONAL DRILL 
WATER MAIN LF 737 $151.00 $111,287.00

9
ASPHALTIC CONCRETE 
PAVEMENT- REMOVE AND 
REPLACE

LF 1,385 $110.00 $152,350.00

10 CONCRETE PAVEMENT-
REMOVAL AND REPLACE LF 165 $75.00 $12,375.00

11 GRAVEL PAVEMENT-REMOVE 
AND REPLACE LF 170 $18.00 $3,060.00

12 1-INCH SERVICE-SHORT EA 7 $1,895.00 $13,265.00

45

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-3 AGREEMENT

13 1-INCH SERVICE-LONG EA 2 $6,585.00 $13,170.00

14 2-INCH SERVICE-SHORT EA 3 $4,865.00 $14,595.00

15 2-INCH SERVICE-LONG EA 1 $6,835.00 $6,835.00

16 6-INCH GATE VALVE & BOX EA 4 $1,855.00 $7,420.00

17 8-INCH GATE VALVE & BOX EA 2 $2,640.00 $5,280.00

18 12-INCH GATE VALVE & BOX EA 6 $4,500.00 $27,000.00

19 HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EA 9 $7,390.00 $66,510.00

20 YARD HYDRANT EA 1 $885.00 $885.00

21 RIP RAP SY 134 $41.00 $5,494.00

TOTAL PRICE BASE BID (Use Figures) $    1,167,770.50 

46

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-4 AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 6 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES.

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments

A. CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of 
the General Conditions.  Applications for Payment will be processed by ENGINEER as 
provided in the General Conditions.

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage

A. OWNER shall make progress payments in accordance with Section 34.057, RSMo, on 
account of the Contract Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR's Applications for Payment 
during performance of the Work as provided in paragraphs 6.02.A.1 and 6.02.A.2 below. 
All such payments will be measured by the schedule of values established in paragraph 
2.05 of the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number 
of units completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided in the 
General Requirements:

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal 
to the percentage indicated below, but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 
previously made and less such amounts as ENGINEER shall determine or OWNER 
may withhold, in accordance with paragraph 15.01 of the General Conditions.

a. 90% of Work completed (with the balance being retainage).  If Work has been 
50% completed as determined by ENGINEER, and if the character and progress 
of the Work have been satisfactory to OWNER and ENGINEER, OWNER, on 
recommendation of ENGINEER, may determine that as long as the character and 
progress of the Work remain satisfactory to them, there will be no retainage on 
account of Work subsequently completed, in which case the remaining progress 
payments prior to Substantial Completion will be in an amount equal to 100% of 
the Work completed less the aggregate of payments previously made; and

b.   90% of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with the 
balance being retainage).

2. Upon Substantial Completion, OWNER shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total 
payments to CONTRACTOR to 100% of the Work completed, less such amounts as 
ENGINEER shall determine in accordance with paragraph 15.01.C.5 of the General 
Conditions and less 100% of ENGINEER’s estimate of the value of Work to be completed 
or corrected as shown on the tentative list of items to be completed or corrected attached 
to the certificate of Substantial Completion.

6.03 Final Payment

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, OWNER shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by ENGINEER as provided in said paragraph 15.06.

47

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-5 AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 7 - INTEREST

7.01 All moneys not paid when due as provided in Article 15 of the General Conditions shall bear 
interest at the rate specified in Section 34.057, RSMo.

ARTICLE 8 - CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

8.01 In order to induce OWNER to enter into this Agreement, CONTRACTOR makes the following 
representations:

A. CONTRACTOR has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and the other 
related data identified in the Bidding Documents.

B. CONTRACTOR has visited the site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the 
general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the 
Work.

C. CONTRACTOR is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local Laws and 
Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

D

E. CONTRACTOR has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having 
done so) all such additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, studies, and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground 
Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost, progress, or performance of 
the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 
procedures of construction to be employed by CONTRACTOR, including applying the 
specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly 
required by the Contract Documents to be employed by CONTRACTOR, and safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto.

F. CONTRACTOR does not consider that any additional examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, studies or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the 
Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and 
conditions of the Contract Documents.

G. CONTRACTOR is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by OWNER and 
others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.

H. CONTRACTOR has correlated the information known to CONTRACTOR, information 
and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the 
Contract Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, 
studies, and data with the Contract Documents.

I. CONTRACTOR has given ENGINEER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities 
or discrepancies that CONTRACTOR has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the 
written resolution thereof by ENGINEER is acceptable to CONTRACTOR.

J. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of 
all terms and conditions for performance of the Work.

48

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-6 AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 9 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

9.01 Contents

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following:
1. This Agreement
2. Performance Bond 
3. Payment Bond 
4. General Conditions
5. Supplementary Conditions 
6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual
7. Drawings with each sheet bearing the following general title: North Morley Water 

Main, City of Moberly, Missouri
8. Addenda (numbers        to        , inclusive)
9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):

a. Notice to Proceed
b. CONTRACTOR's Bid
c. Documentation submitted by CONTRACTOR prior to Notice of Award

10. The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the 
Agreement and are not attached hereto:
a. Written Amendments
b. Work Change Directives
c. Change Orders

B. The documents listed in paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above).

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9.

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
paragraph 11.01 of the General Conditions.

ARTICLE 10 - MISCELLANEOUS

10.01 Terms

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions.

10.02 Assignment of Contract

A. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be 
binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; 
and, specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are 
due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this 
restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any 
written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from 
any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

10.03 Successors and Assign

49

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-7 AGREEMENT

A. OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the 
Contract Documents.

10.04 Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable 
under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions 
shall continue to be valid and binding upon OWNER and CONTRACTOR, who agree 
that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or 
part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to 
expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

ARTICLE 11 - NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

11.01 CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, creed, color, or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their 
race, creed, color or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.

11.02 CONTRACTOR will post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

A. CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, creed, color, or national origin.

B. CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be 
provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative 
of the CONTRACTOR's commitments under Section 202 of Executive Order No. 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment.

C. CONTRACTOR will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of 
Labor.

D. CONTRACTOR will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of 
Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 
contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

E. In the event of the CONTRACTOR's non-compliance with the non-discrimination clauses of 
this Contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may be cancelled, 
terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the CONTRACTOR may be declared 
ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in 
Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed 
and remedies involved as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or 

50

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-8 AGREEMENT

by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
F. CONTRACTOR will include the provisions of Article 11 in every subcontract or purchase 

order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 
pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The CONTRACTOR will take 
such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the contracting agency may 
direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance:  
Provided, however, that in the event the CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the 
contracting agency, the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

51

#6.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-9 AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OWNER and CONTRACTOR have signed this Agreement in duplicate. One 
counterpart each has been delivered to OWNER and CONTRACTOR.  All portions of the Contract 
Documents have been signed or identified by OWNER and CONTRACTOR or on their behalf.

This Agreement will be effective on ___________, 20__ (which is the Effective Date of the Agreement).

CITY OF MOBERLY

        Mayor

Attest 
                 City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

              City Counselor

Address for giving notices:

If OWNER is a corporation, attach evidence of 
authority to sign.  If OWNER is a public body, 
attach evidence of authority to sign and resolution 
or other documents authorizing execution of 
OWNER-CONTRACTOR Agreement.

Designated Representative:
Name: 
Title: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Facsimile: 

CONTRACTOR:

By: 

[CORPORATE SEAL]

Attest 

Address for giving notices:

License No. 

Agent for service of process: 

(If CONTRACTOR is a corporation or a 
partnership, attach evidence of authority to sign).

Designated Representative:
Name: 
Title: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Facsimile: 

52

#6.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of Park Land From Leatha Silva And 

V.V. Silva. 

  

Summary: On September 18, 2023, this Council authorized the condemnation of land 

titled in the name of Leatha and V.V. Silva for park purposes.  This land is 

located in Rothwell Park.  After forwarding the condemnation Ordinance to 

our attorney he conducted an investigation and found the Silva’s living heirs, a 

son and daughter.  They are both willing to deed the property to the City in 

exchange for the total sum of $10,000.00 ($5,000.00 each).   

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Approve this resolution to purchase the Silva land for $10,000.00 and avoid 

the condemnation process. 

  

Fund Name: Parks and Recreation/Land Acquisition  

  

Account Number: 115.044.5506 

  

Available Budget $: 0.00  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

53

#7.



BILL NO.____________              RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF PARK LAND FROM LEATHA 

SILVA AND V.V. SILVA. 

 

WHEREAS, Leatha and V. V. Silva own real estate surrounded by City owned property 

in Rothwell Park more specifically described on the attached Ownership and Encumbrance 

report from Town & Country Abstract Co., Inc.; and 

WHEREAS, on September 18, 2023, this Council authorized acquisition of this property 

by condemnation; and 

WHEREAS, the City obtained an appraisal of the property which concluded that the 

value of the real estate was approximately $6,400.00; and 

WHEREAS, the heirs of Mr. and Mrs. Silva, Eloy Silva, and Linda Lee Fish, have 

notified the City that they are willing to deed their interest in the property over to the City in 

exchange for a total purchase price of $10,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommend purchasing the property directly from the Silva heirs 

rather than filing a Condemnation Petition. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council authorizes the purchase of the Silva 

property from Eloy Silva and Linda Lee Fish for the total purchase price of $10,000.00 and 

hereby direct the City Manager to take such actions as are necessary to complete the purchase. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of November, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

        

             

       ________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

54

#7.



 

 

VV Silva Tract 
Rothwell Park (0.42 Acre Tract) 

Moberly, Missouri 
City of Moberly 

 

VALUE FINDING 
REPORT FORMAT 

September 13, 2022 

55

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 1 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

FILE NO. C2208062 

 

VALUE FINDING APPRAISAL REPORT FORMAT 

 
 

County:   Randolph  

Route:   Highway 24     

Job No.:   N/A  

Parcel No.:   Silva 

Property Address:     Highway 24, Moberly, Missouri 

Area of Contiguous Ownership:   0.42 acres 
(As calculated from plans) 

 

Acquisition: 

(As indicated on plans)  

 Normal Land:   0.42 acres  

 Controlled Land:   N/A 

 Fully Controlled Land:   N/A 

 Permanent Easement:   N/A 

 Temporary Easement:   N/A  

 

 Remainder:   N/A 

 

 Appraiser:   J.D. Moran, MAI 

 Effective Date of Appraisal:   September 13th, 2022 

 

1. Owner and Tenant-owner:   

 
Owner 

VV Silva Estate 

Highway 24 

Moberly, MO 65270 

 

Property Contact 

The appraisers were not provided a property contact.  The appraiser viewed the property from 

adjacent right of way.   

 

Extraordinary Assumptions:   

1. We have assumed that the site is 0.42 acres as indicated on the Moberly GIS.  No survey was 

available.   

2. We have assumed that there is no water and sewer to the site, but electricity is nearby and could 

be extended to the site if desired.  It is noted that the exact location of electric is unknown and 

could require additional expense depending on development plans and service needed.  The 

assumption is based on interviews with city officials.   

56

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 2 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

3. The subject site is landlocked.  We have assumed that the site could be accessed by the gravel 

road through the park during normal park hours for recreational use.   

 

2.    Purpose of Appraisal:   

 

 The purpose of this appraisal is to estimate just compensation, if any, due the owners as a result of 

appropriating certain realty rights as herein described. 

 

 A.  Fair Market Value Definition:  Fair market value is the value of the property taken after 

considering comparable sales in the area, capitalization of income, and replacement cost less 

depreciation, singularly or in combination, as appropriate, and additionally considering the value of 

the property based upon its highest and best use, using generally accepted appraisal practices.  If less 

than the entire property is taken, fair market value shall mean the difference between the fair market 

value of the entire property immediately prior to the taking and the fair market value of the remaining 

or burdened property immediately after the taking. (RSMo 523.001) Jurisdictional Exception to 

Standards Rule 1-2(c). 

 B.  Intended Use:  The intended use of the appraisal report is to assist the agency in its determination 

of the amount paid for the property rights acquired or conveyed. 

 C.  Intended Users:  Intended users of this report are the City of Moberly (the client), and persons 

authorized by the client, state enforcement agencies and such third parties as may be authorized by 

due process of law, and a duly authorized peer review committee.  Although the City of Moberly 

authorizes a copy of this report be provided to the owner of the subject property of this appraisal for 

information and settlement purposes only, the owner is not an intended user as defined by USPAP. 

 D.  USPAP Compliance Statement:  This appraisal was prepared according to the 

contract/assignment from the City of Moberly.  The intended use of the appraisal is for eminent 

domain related acquisition and the agency is the only intended user (except as indicated above).  The 

agency bears responsibility for contract/assignment requirements that meet its needs and therefore are 

not misleading.  In combination with the Scope of Assignment and review function, all appraisal 

reports assigned by the agency identify the problem to be solved, determine the scope of work 

necessary to solve the problem, and correctly complete research and analysis necessary to produce a 

credible appraisal, and are therefore in compliance with USPAP Standard 1.  In that the agency is the 

only intended user of the report and others may only be provided copies for informational purposes, 

the agency has determined that reports prepared in conformance with these procedures constitute an 

Appraisal Report, which fulfills the agency’s needs.  For any inconsistencies with USPAP, appraisers 

are protected by the USPAP Jurisdictional Exception provision. 

 

3. Interest Appraised:  Fee simple 

 

4. Scope of Work:  

 

The scope of work is defined by USPAP as the type and extent of research and analyses in an 

assignment.  The scope of work includes, but is not limited to, the extent to which the property is 

identified; the extent to which tangible property is inspected; the type and extent of data researched; 

and the type and extent of analyses applied to arrive at opinions or conclusions.  In developing a real 

57

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 3 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

property appraisal, an appraiser must identify the problem to be solved, determine the scope of work 

necessary to solve the problem, and correctly complete research and analyses necessary to produce a 

credible value conclusion that will serve the needs of the client.   

 

The first step is to identify the appraisal problem to be solved.  This process starts with consultation 

with the client.  Through consultation with the client the appraiser identifies any other intended users 

of the appraisal; intended uses of the appraiser’s opinions and conclusions; type and definition of 

value; and effective date of the appraiser’s opinions and conclusions.  The appraiser identifies the 

subject of the assignment and its relevant characteristics and the assignment conditions.  The 

assignment is a valuation service provided as a consequence of an agreement between an appraiser 

and a client.  The assignment conditions include assumptions, extraordinary assumptions, 

hypothetical conditions, supplemental standards, jurisdictional exceptions, and other conditions that 

affect the scope of work.   

 

The extent of research work completed for this report began with market data from the Moore & 

Shryock office files and factual information provided by the owner.  The appraisers have made an 

investigation of additional comparable data sources including public records, personal contacts with 

buyers, sellers, and developers familiar with similar properties, real estate brokers, other professional 

appraisers active in the area, property managers and mortgage lenders.   

 

In preparation of this appraisal, the appraisers have: 

 

1. Observed the subject property and surrounding area in order to gather information about the 

physical characteristics that are relevant to the valuation problem. 

2. Assembled and analyzed pertinent economic data.  

3. Identified and analyzed comparable property transactions.  This data has been confirmed 

with the buyer, seller, another appraiser, or agent handling the transaction.   

4. Reconciled the above research data to form our opinion of the market value for the subject 

property.  

 

Moore & Shryock periodically is engaged in appraisal assignments involving properties similar to 

the subject of this report.  The specific data and conclusions from these studies also provided 

valuable comparisons.  This appraisal report includes the following items. 

 

1. A description of the land being appraised. 

2. A sales history of the subject property.  

3. A summary of property trends in the local market including identification of current and 

projected competition and a forecast of effective demand. 

4. A highest and best use analysis is based on our survey of the market, supply and demand 

factors, and examination of the feasibility of alternative uses. 

5. We have considered the sales comparison approach to arrive at our opinion of total just 

compensation.  The income capitalization approach and cost approach were not considered 

because only the land is appraised.     

6. Appropriate photographs, maps, graphics, and addendum/exhibits have been included to 

support our analyses and conclusions. 

58

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 4 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

   

 This report was prepared in conformance with the Scope of Assignment and the requirements of the 

format assigned.   

 

5. Identification of the Realty:  

 

07-8.0-34.0-0.0-000-033.000 

Moberly, Missouri 

Silva, VV – Estate 

 

The subject property is not addressed.  Access to the site is from Highway 24 to Rothwell Park Road 

to a gravel service road that extends east of Rothwell Park Road.  We have assumed that access could 

be granted to the site during normal park hours.  The subject is surrounded on all sides by Rothwell 

Park. Per Moberly GIS, the site includes a total area of 0.42 acres.  No improvements exist on the 

property. 

 

6. History of the Property: 

 
There have not been any transfers recorded within the past five years, and there are no current 

contracts, options, or listings known to exist.  

 

7. Description of Realty Prior to Acquisition: 

 

A. Land: 

 

 Site Size/Dimensions: 18,295 s.f. (0.42 acres) 

 

 Configuration:  Rectangular 

 

 Topography/Drainage: The reader is referred to the topography map herein.  The site is 

sloping down to the north. The site is heavily wooded.   

  

 Flood Plain:   None 

 

 Frontage/Street Type: The subject has no public road frontage.  There is private gravel 

drive that extends in front of the site to access the lake.  No vehicle 

access.  We have assumed that access would be granted to the site 

during normal business hours.   

 

 Access:   The subject is accessed by a private gravel drive via Rothwell Park 

Road, which is a privately maintained asphalt paved road. 

 

 Utilities:   We have assumed that public electricity is nearby and could 

service the site.  Some expense may be incurred depending on 

electric needs.  There is no water or sewer service to the site.   

59

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 5 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

 

 Visibility/Expos:  The site has no visibility from any public roadway. 

 

 Traffic Count:  None.  No vehicle access.  Pedestrian traffic.   

 

 Easement/Encumbrances: None known to be adverse.   

 

 Encroachments:  None known. 

 

 Environmental: As referenced in the Assumptions and Limiting Conditions to this 

report, the appraisers are not considered expert nor competent to 

assess environmental issues.  Upon physical inspection of the 

subject property, no indication "to the untrained eye" of 

environmental hazard could be found. 

 

   

 

  

60

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 6 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

Aerial Photograph     

 

  

61

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 7 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

Topography Map 

 

 

  

62

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 8 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

Flood Map 

 

*Subject is not in flood plain. 

  

63

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 9 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

Zoning Map 

 

*Per City of Moberly Planning and Zoning, the subject is outside of the city limits and therefore not zoned.  The 

site is zoned N-1 on all sides.   

 

  

Subject (outside 
city limits) 

64

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 10 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

B. Zoning: 

 

The subject is outside of the city limits and therefore not zoned.  The site is zoned N-1, 

Nonurban District on all four sides which is intended to protect agricultural uses through control 

of density, land use and land coverage.  Generally, agricultural and rural residential uses are 

permitted on parcels greater than five acres.  The minimum lot size is five acres.   

 

The subject parcel is not subject to zoning regulations.   

 

C. Fee Owned Improvements, Fixtures and Personalty:  

 

N/A 

 

D. Tenant Owned Improvements, Fixtures and Personalty: 

 
N/A 

 

E. Other Appraisal Considerations: 

 

N/A 
 

8. Highest and Best Use and Effect of Acquisition: 

 

As Vacant 

 
Legally Permissible:  The subject site is outside of the city limits and therefore not zoned.  Most 

any use would be permitted.   

 

Physically Possible:  The site is 0.42 acres located on the south side of Highway 24 in Moberly.  

The site is gently sloping.  Electric is available (may be additional expense), but there is no water 

and sewer.  The subject is unique in the fact that it is surrounded on all sides by the Rothwell city 

park.  There is no public road frontage.  There is a gravel park drive, but no cars are permitted on the 

drive past the aquatic center.  We have assumed that the site could be accessed during normal park 

hours, and although development may be possible, these factors limit most uses beyond recreational 

uses such as campsite or permitted uses in the park such as archery or other park uses.  Furthermore, 

the terrain is heavily wooded and sloping down, which would hinder most uses.   

 

Financially Feasible:  The recent market trends and conditions for the local, regional, and national 

markets have been considered.  The feasibility for new development is low because development 

would be difficult due to the physical features, utilities and access.  There would be some demand by 

the adjacent park for assemblage, but this would be the only likely buyer which further decreases the 

marketability.   

 

  

65

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 11 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

Maximally Productive:  Taking into consideration the current economic conditions, in addition to 

the surrounding uses and physical features of the site, while also considering what uses are legally 

permissible, the highest and best use as though vacant is for a continued use as a recreational site.  

 

As Improved 

 

None.  There are no improvements on the site.   

 

9. Description of the Acquisition and Effects on the Remainder: 

 
N/A.  Full Acquisition. 

  

66

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 12 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

10. Analysis and Supporting Data for Compensable Losses: 

 
A. Analysis of Overall Land Value:  

 

  

Subject Sale 1 Sale 2 Sale 3 Sale 4

Location Highw ay 24 114 N Morley St W Carpenter St 1211 Private Road 1381 1589 Private Road 1337

Moberly, Missouri Moberly, MO Huntsville, MO Cairo, MO Moberly, MO

Property Rights Fee Simple Fee Simple Fee Simple Fee Simple Fee Simple

Financing Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent

Date of Sale 6/13/2022 12/16/2021 11/18/2021 9/17/2021 8/28/2020

Land Area (SF) 18,295 11,326.00 26,136 29,200 13,504

Pri. Frontage No public street frontage 95 140 100 No public street 

Sec.  Frontage 0 0 0 0 0

Corner Site No No No No No

Shape/Utility Rectangular Rectangular Rectangular Rectangular Rectangular

Topography

Moderately Sloping, 

Wooded Gently Sloping

Moderately Sloping, 

Wooded Gently Sloping Moderately Sloping

Utilities E E,W,S E,W,S E,W E,W

Zoning None B-3 None None None

Traffic Count Low 15,000 Low Low Low

Site Improvements None None None None None

$8,000 $6,400 $15,000 $5,000 

$8,000 $6,400 $15,000 $5,000 

$8,000 $6,400 $15,000 $5,000

$8,000 $6,400 $15,000 $5,000

$0.71 $0.24 $0.51 $0.37

$0.04 $0.04 $0.04 $0.08

$0.75 $0.28 $0.55 $0.45

-10% 10% 10%

-20% -20% -20%

-10% -10%

-20% -20% -10% -10%

Zoning

-$0.45 -$0.08 -$0.17 -$0.05

-60% -30% -30% -10%
$0.30 $0.20 $0.38 $0.40

Net Adjustment ($)

Net Adjustment (%)

Adjusted Price per SF

Conditions of Sale

Expenditures After Purchase

Adjusted Price

Adjusted Price per SF

Market Conditions

Topography

Utilities

Adjusted Price

Sale Price

Real Property Rights

Adjusted Price

Other

Adjusted Price per SF

Location

Size

Frontage

Corner Site

Shape/Utility

67

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 13 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

Summary of Adjustments and Value Conclusion:   

 

Four sales are considered in the valuation of the underlying land of the subject property.  The adjustment 

grid is located on the prior page, while additional details are located within the addendum.   

 

Market Conditions:  The sales occurred from 2020 through 2021.  Based on available market data 

including sales data, interviews with brokers, and market surveys, the market for this property type has 

increased over the last two years, therefore all sales are adjusted 5% to 10% for inferior market 

conditions. 

 

Location:  The subject is located in Rothwell City Park south of Highway 24.  Sale 1 is located on N 

Morley St in Moberly, in an area with superior surrounding development, and better access to area 

amenities, therefore a negative adjustment is made.  Sales 2 and 3 are adjusted for inferior location 

because these sites are located further from Moberly in more rural areas.  Sale 4 is further from Moberly, 

but has lake frontage which is offsetting therefore no adjustment is made.   

 

Land Area (Size):  In this market, smaller properties command higher per unit values than comparable, 

but larger, properties.  Given that smaller properties command a higher unit value, they are superior on a 

per unit basis; therefore, larger properties are inferior.  No adjustments were required as all sales have 

similar sizes (below 0.50 acres).   

 

Frontage:  The subject does not have public road frontage.  All of the sales, except Sale 4 are adjusted 

for road frontage.  Sale 4 does not have road frontage like the subject and additional expense would be 

incurred to extend the road to the site.   

 

Topography:  The subject property is moderately sloping down and heavily wooded.  Sales 1 and 3 are 

adjusted for superior terrain because these sites are less sloping.  Sales 2 and 4 have similar terrain.   

 

Utilities:  The subject does not have any utilities, but electricity is close by.  All of the sales are adjusted 

for superior utilities because these sites have access to water and/or sewer.   

 

The four sales indicated a value range from $0.20 to $0.40 per square foot acre with an average of $0.32 

per square foot.  All of the sales closed within the last two years.  For further support, we have also 

analyzed two recent lot sales in town. 

 

Location 

Size 

(SF) Sale Date 

Sale Price 

(per SF) 

201 S. Ault St. 7,800 3/28/2022 $0.38 

318 Woodland Ave. 9,675 2/23/2022 $0.26 

 

These sites included city utilities and frontage on a city street, which is superior.  It should be noted the 

subject would be difficult to develop given its location.  The subject would have limited demand 

considering that there is no street frontage, no utilities and limited development potential.  However, 

there would be some assemblage potential with the adjacent park.  The fact that this is the only likely 

68

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 14 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

buyer is a weakness of the marketability, but there would be some reasonable desire to assemble the 

property considering the exiting park use.  Considering these factors, it is our opinion that a unit value 

near the mid to upper end of the range as indicated by the lot sales would be supportable for the 

property.  We have adopted a unit value of $0.35 per square foot considering the location and physical 

features.  Applying the per unit value to the subject’s 18,295 square feet indicates a total value of 

$6,403.  Rounded to $6,410.   

 

Conclusion-Overall Unit Value of Land: $6,410 ($0.35/s.f.) 

 

B. Analysis of Value of Land Acquired (if different from overall value): 

 

 Conclusion-Unit Value of Land Acquired: N/A 

 

C. Analysis of Value of Improvement in the Acquisition:  

 
  Conclusion-Estimated Value of Improvements: N/A 

 

 D. Analysis of Damage to the Remainder:  N/A 

 

Damages to the Remainder:   

 

 

E. Other Appraisal Consideration:  N/A 

 

 

11. Estimate of Total just Compensation: 

 

 Estimated Value Before Acquisition: $6,410 

 

 Estimated Value After Acquisition: $0.00 

 

 Indicated Just Compensation Due to Acquisition $6,410 

 

12. Allocation of Just Compensation: 

 

 A. Fee Holder’s Interest: 

 

  1.  Land Acquired: $6,410 

     

  2. Improvements: N/A 

 

  3. Total Land and Improvements: $6,410 

 

  4. Damages to the Remainder: 

    

69

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 15 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

   Permanent Easement:  N/A 

 

   Total Damages to the Remainder:    N/A 

 

  5. Total Just Compensation Due Fee Holder   $6,410 

   

 B. Tenant Owner’s Interest: 

 

  1. Tenant Owned Improvements:   N/A 

 

   Total Tenant Owned Improvements:    N/A 

 

  2. Damage to Tenant Owned Improvements:  N/A 

 

   Total Damage to Tenant Owned Improvements:   N/A 

 

  3. Leasehold Interest:  N/A 

 

   Total Leasehold Interest:    N/A 

 

  4. Total Just Compensation Due Tenant Owner   N/A 

 

13. Uneconomic Remnant:    N/A 

 

14. Salvage Value: 

  Item:  N/A  

70

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 16 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

Required Attachments: 

 

ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 
 
This report has been prepared in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice, in the appraisal of realty and 
realty rights except to the extent that the Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land Acquisitions required invocation of USPAP’s 
Jurisdictional Exception Rule. 
 
The appraiser assumes no responsibility for matters legal in character, nor does he/she render any opinion as to the title, which is assumed 
to be good.  Unless otherwise specified in the report, the property is analyzed as though free and clear and under responsible ownership and 
competent management. 
 
Information furnished by others is assumed to be true, correct, and reliable.  A reasonable effort has been made to verify such information; 
however, the appraiser assumes no responsibility for its accuracy.  The value conclusions are subject to the correctness of said data. 
 
The appraiser assumes that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions have been complied with, unless nonconformity had 
been stated, defined, and considered in the appraisal report.  The appraiser assumes that all required licenses, certificates of occupancy, 
consents, or other legislative or administrative authority from any local, state, or national government or private entity or organization have 
been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the value estimate contained in this report is based. 
 
The appraiser has noted in the appraisal report any adverse conditions (such as, needed repairs, depreciation, the presence of hazardous 
wastes, toxic substances, etc.) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that he/she became aware of during the normal 
research involved in performing the appraisal.  Unless otherwise stated in the appraisal report, the appraiser has no knowledge of any 
hidden or unapparent conditions of the property or adverse environmental conditions (including the presence of hazardous wastes, toxic 
substances, etc.) that would make the property more or less valuable, and has assumed that there are no such conditions and makes no 
guarantees or warranties, express or implied, regarding the condition of the property.  The appraiser will not be responsible for any such 
conditions that do exist or for any engineering or testing that might be required to discover whether such conditions exist.  Because the 
appraiser is not an expert in the field of environmental hazards, the appraisal report must not be considered as an environmental assessment 
of the property. 
 
The appraiser has made no engineering survey.  Except as specifically stated, data relative to size and areas were taken from sources 
considered reliable.  The utilization of the land and improvements is within the boundaries or property lines of the property described and 
that there is no encroachment or trespass unless noted in the report. 
 
The distribution of the total valuation in this report between land, improvements and estimated damages applies only under the reported 
highest and best use of the property.  The allocations of value for land and improvements must not be used in conjunction with any other 
appraisal and are invalid if so used. 
 
The appraisal is for purposes of valuation only and is not to be taken, used or represented as an endorsement or guarantee of the physical, 
structural or equipment conditions which exist in the property.  It is assumed that there are no hidden defects that would not be apparent 
from visual inspection and that all equipment is operable unless otherwise indicated by the owner or owner's representative. 
 
All maps, plats, and exhibits included herein are for illustration only, as an aid in visualizing matters discussed within the report.  They 
should not be considered as surveys or relied upon for any other purpose. 
 
Consideration has not been given in this appraisal to personal property located on the premises, or to the cost of moving or relocating such 
personal property unless otherwise stated. 
 
Possession of this report or any copy hereof does not carry with it the right of publication, nor may the same be used for any purpose by 
any party except the City of Moberly without the previous written consent of the appraiser, and in any event, only in its entirety and with 
proper qualification.  Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report shall be conveyed to the public through advertising, public 
relation, news, sales or other media without the written consent and approval of author, The appraiser acknowledges that a copy of the 
report will be provided to the owner of the property appraised, or their representative. No opinion is expressed as to the value of subsurface 
oil, gas, or mineral rights and that the property is not subject to surface entry for the exploration or removal of such materials except as is 
expressly stated.  No consideration has been given in the appraisal to the value, if any, attributable to growing crops on any portion of the 
property appraised unless otherwise stated. 
 
The estimated value after acquisition is based on the project being constructed in the manner proposed, as furnished to the appraiser as of 
the date of appraisal. 
 
It is assumed that drainage, surface condition of land and easements, access, access during construction will not be detrimental to the value 
of the property, unless otherwise stated and addressed in the report.  

  

71

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 17 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF APPRAISER 
 
I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief: 
 
The statements of fact contained in the appraisal herein set forth are true, and the information upon which the opinions expressed herein are 
based, is correct. 
 
The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions as well as my opinion of Just Compensation, Fair Market Value, or other defined value 
are limited only by the reported assumptions and limiting conditions and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analyses, 
opinions, and conclusions. 
 
I have no direct or indirect present or contemplated future personal interest in such property or in any monetary benefit from the acquisition 
or disposal of such property appraised or the appraisal conclusion and no personal interest with respect to the parties involves. 
 
I have performed no services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding the property that is the subject of this report within the 
three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this assignment. 
 
I have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties involved with this assignment. 
 
My engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results. 
 
My employment or my compensation for completing this appraisal assignment and report are in no way contingent upon the development 
or reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value opinion, the 
attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 
 
My analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared in conformity with the Uniform Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice, in the appraisal of realty and realty rights except to the extent that the Uniform Appraisal Standards for 
Federal Land Acquisitions required invocation of USPAP’s Jurisdictional Exception Rule. 
 
I, J.D. Moran, MAI, have personally inspected the realty rights, personalty, and/or outdoor advertising structures herein appraised and that I 
have also made a personal field inspection of the comparable sales, leases, equipment or structures, relied upon in making said appraisal.  
The subject and the comparable sales relied upon in making said appraisal were as represented in said appraisal or in the data book or 
report which supplements said appraisal.   
 
No one provided significant professional assistance to the person signing this report except as specified herein. 
 
I understand that such appraisal may be used in connection with the acquisition or disposal of realty, realty rights, and/or personalty for a 
project of the City of Moberly with the possible involvement of State of Missouri, Federal-aid highway or other Federal funds. 
 
Such appraisal has been made in conformity with the appropriate State laws, regulations and policies and procedures applicable to appraisal 
of realty, realty rights, and/or personalty for such purposes; and that to the best of my knowledge no portion of the value assigned to such 
property consists of items that are noncompensable under the established law of said State. 
 
I have not revealed the findings and results of such appraisal to anyone other than the proper officials of the acquiring agency and I will not 
do so until so authorized by said officials, or until I am required to do so by due process of law, or until I am released from this obligation 
by having publicly testified as to such findings. 
  
Invoking the Jurisdictional Exception Rule and contrary to Standards Rule 1-3(a) and Standards Rule 1-4(f),  I have disregarded any 
increase or decrease in the fair market value of the property to be acquired, prior to the date of valuation caused by the public improvement 
for which such property is acquired, or by the likelihood that the property would be acquired for such improvement, other than that due to 
physical deterioration within the reasonable control of owner(s). 49 CFR 24.103 
 

My estimate of Just Compensation, Fair Market Value, or other defined value, as shown herein does not include any consideration or 

allowance for relocation assistance benefits. 

 

I did not afford the fee holder or the fee holder’s representative, an opportunity to accompany me during my inspection of this property.  

There are no tenant owner’s known to exist.     

  

72

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 18 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

 

My opinion of Just Compensation, Fair Market Value, or other defined value, is based upon my independent appraisal and the exercise of 

my professional judgment. 

 

 

 

 

September 22, 2022 

 

 
DATE  SIGNATURE 

County: Randolph 

Route: Highway 24 

State Project No.: N/A 

Federal Project No.: N/A 

Parcel No.: Silva 

   

  

  

73

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 19 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

EDUCATION 

Southeast Missouri State University — Cape 

Girardeau  

◼ Bachelor of Science in Business Administration 

◼ Management-Organizational Leadership 

 

EXPERIENCE 

Moore & Shryock, LLC 

◼ Appraiser (2004 - 2016) 

◼ Appraiser & Partner (2017 – present) 

Appraisal Institute – St. Louis Chapter 

◼ Member (2014 - current) 

 

CERTIFICATIONS 

Appraisal Institute 

MAI Designated Member (#453782) 

State of Missouri Certified General Appraiser 

Certificate 2006028567  

BACKGROUND 
Mr. Moran has provided appraisal and 

consulting services throughout Missouri 

involving most property types.  In addition 

to the land, multifamily, office, retail, and 

industrial properties appraised in Boone 

County and surrounding communities, he 

is the lead appraiser for Moore & Shryock 

for the following specialty properties: 

multifamily, office and residential 

care/assisted living. Please refer to his 

profile on our website for an up to date list 

of qualifying and continuing education 

completed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Appraisal Institute and the State of 

Missouri conduct a program of continuing 

education for its members. Appraisers who 

meet the minimum standards of this program 

are awarded periodic educational 

certification. Mr. Moran is certified under 

these programs.   

   

 
 

 
 

QUALIFICATIONS OF J.D. MORAN 
APPRAISER, PARTNER 

jmoran@ms-app.com 

 

609 E Broadway, Columbia, MO  65201  |  (573) 874-1207  |  ms-app.com  

74

#7.

mailto:jmoran@ms-app.com


 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 20 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

                                                                                                                                                    01/2017 

 

 

 

LICENSE FOR JOHN D. MORAN, MAI 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

75

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 21 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

AREA DATA 
 
The subject property is near Moberly, Missouri, which is the largest city in Randolph County.  
Moberly is in the central east sector of Randolph County.  Randolph County is centrally located 
in the northern half of the state.  The county is bound on the north by Macon County, on the east 
by Monroe and Audrain Counties, on the south by Boone and Howard Counties and on the west 
by Chariton County.  Moberly's approximate distance to the major metropolitan areas of Kansas 
City and St. Louis is 130 miles and 150 miles, respectively.  Columbia is located approximately 
35 miles to the south.   
 
Randolph County was organized in 1829.  The first rail line to pass through the county was built 
in 1850.  The advent of the railroad had a major impact upon development of the county.  The 
area is still served with several daily freight stops.  The county's population increased sharply in 
the 1890's as miners immigrated to newly discovered coalfields in the area.  Randolph County 
had some of the largest coal deposits in Missouri; however, coal mining has largely diminished 
today.  Limestone extracted for use as gravel and agricultural lime is also a significant resource 
in the county.   
 
Farming is a primary economic enterprise in Randolph County.  About 42% of the acreage in the 
county is cropland, and approximately 32% is pasture.  The landscape in Randolph County is one 
of gently sloping to moderately sloping uplands.  The main crops are corn, soybeans, wheat, and 
grasses.  The primary livestock is beef cattle.   
 
The population in Moberly has remained mostly steady since 1990, similar to the population of 
Randolph County and the State of Missouri.  However, declining populations are noted in some 
northern counties of Missouri.  Those counties with access to four lane highways, such as 
Highway 63, have fared better than others.  Moberly has been reasonably successful in their 
efforts to attract new industries and retain existing ones.  New and expanding industries have 
provided jobs in manufacturing, distribution, and office sectors.  A new meat packing facility by 
Plumrose USA was recently announced and is expected to create 142 full-time jobs within the 
city.  The new facility is currently being constructed north of the subject property, on a 40-acre 
site in Moberly’s Industrial Park.  The agreement includes a taxable $85 million industrial 
development revenue bond backed by the city to complete the project and two or more tax 
exemptions.  The population history of Moberly, its county Randolph and the State of Missouri 
are highlighted below. 
 

Population 1990 2000 2010 2020 

State of Missouri 5,117,073 5,595,211 5,988,927 6,154,913 

Average Annual % Change   0.9% 0.7% 0.3% 

Randolph County 24,370 24,663 25,414 24,716 

Average Annual % Change   0.1% 0.3% -0.3% 

City of Moberly 12,839 11,945 13,974 13,783 

Average Annual % Change   -0.7% 1.7% -0.1% 

 
Moberly is designated as an Enhanced Enterprise Zone allowing for tax credits for new 
businesses or expanding businesses in certain industries such as warehousing, distribution, 
wholesale trade, materials recovery facilities, manufacturing and mining.  Any other business 

76

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 22 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

enterprise that creates and maintains 50 or more full time jobs, excluding retail, eating and 
drinking establishments, and gaming operations can also apply.  A list of Randolph County’s 
businesses with at least 100 employees follows.   

 

RANDOLPH COUNTY MAJOR EMPLOYERS 
 

Employer Product/Service Employment 

Moberly Correctional Facility Medium Security Prison 510 

Moberly Regional Medical Center Medical - Level III Trauma Center 434 

Wal-Mart Perishable Food DC Food Distribution 405 

Moberly Area Community College Education 400 

Orscheln Products Motion Control Systems 343 

Mid-Am Building Supply Building Materials 322 

Associated Electric Power Generation 274 

General Electric Capital Corporation Commercial Leasing 180 

Dura Automotive Auto Parts 143 

Wilson Trailer Semi-Trailers 130 

Central Christian College of the Bible Education 110 

Everlast Gymnasium Equipment 106 

 

The Randolph County unemployment rate as of July 2022 was 2.9%.  The unemployment rate 

statewide was 2.9% as of the same time period.  These unemployment statistics are not 

seasonally adjusted.  Building permits issued in Moberly range from 11 to 25 for single family 

residences and 3 to 11 for duplexes over the past 5 years as detailed below. 

 

Year 
Single Family 

Permits 

Duplex 

Permits 

2021 21 11 

2020 25 9 

2019 20 5 

2018 25 3 

2017 11 6 

 

The economy of Moberly declined in 2007-2010 along with other parts of out-state Missouri, 

however, the job creation which has occurred in recent years has largely served to replace jobs 

that had been lost due to plant closings, downsizing and business relocations.  The economy of 

the area is reasonably well diversified, but unemployment remains slightly above state averages.  

Many persons in Moberly are employed in Columbia, which has a lower unemployment rate. 

 

Recent commercial real estate activity in Moberly is concentrated near the Highway 24 

intersection with Highway 63.  A Wal-Mart Supercenter and a Lowes Home Improvement 

Center, that was developed near Wal-Mart in 2010, are the focal points of this development.  

Other recent developments near this intersection include a new Plaza Tire that was constructed in 

2016 and a recently completed KFC, Wendy’s and a Scooter’s Coffee.  Various other new retail 

and office construction is on-going or has been recently completed in Moberly.  However, most 

77

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 23 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

of this new development is along the Highway 24 and Morley Street corridors, in northern 

Moberly. 

 

Industrial development has been concentrated along Route DD in past years, but the Moberly 

Area Industrial Park and the southeastern Moberly Industrial Park, located at Route M and 

Highway 63, are the locations for recent construction, including the new Plumrose facility and 

several distribution warehouse facilities.   

 

Competition for new industry is extremely competitive and cities like Moberly must be well-

organized and very aggressive in order to secure employers.  Moberly has a well-organized 

economic development organization but has struggled to secure new industry. 

 

Excluding the proposed Plumrose USA facility, new construction in the Moberly area includes 

the 2015 Mid-Am Building Supply addition of 30,000 SF to the existing building on the south 

end of the city for a new interior door finishing facility.  MFA Oil announced plans in early 2015 

to move their truck shop, lab and maintenance warehouse from Columbia to Moberly, and to 

move their distribution center from California, MO to Moberly.  The first phase of the new 

facility became operational in 2015.  Also, in early 2015, Orscheln Products announced 

construction of a new 15,000 SF test laboratory, which includes mechanical, environmental, 

vibration, electronics and corrosion testing capabilities.   

 

Overall, the local economy has improved since 2011 with recent stabilization.  Recent 

construction, commercial land purchase activity, and interviews with local market participants 

suggest further improvement in the local market in the last few years. 

 
 

 

 

  

78

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 24 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

MARKET CONDITIONS – 3RD QUARTER 2022 
 

The following analysis is broken down between a discussion of the current economy, the general 

real estate market, and individual property segments.  The scope of this analysis included 

interviews with Realtors, lenders, property managers, buyers/sellers, and other appraisers across 

the state.  We have also considered information and data from national real estate sources such as 

Cushman Wakefield, Marcus and Millichap, the Appraisal Institute, Real Estate Research 

Corporation, PwC, Green Street and Co-Star as well as our experience with market conditions 

since 1983.  

 

As of March 2020, the Covid-19 threat began impacting real estate market conditions.  The 

lockdowns to contain the pandemic severely impacted the economy.  We view the economy as 

within the later stages of a recovery from the setback precipitated by the pandemic.  This 

economic recovery has progressed in response to: (1) increased immunization as vaccines are 

distributed; and (2) the aggressive steps taken by the Federal Reserve and Treasury aimed at 

providing adequate liquidity.   

 

The Federal Reserve, balancing high U.S. inflation against the complex risks of a European land 

war, ongoing supply chain concerns, and high employment, has continued to slowly raise interest 

rates in an attempt to reduce inflation and avoid a recession.  The consumer price index was 

unchanged in July as the annual inflation rate receded from 9.1% to 8.5%.  The CPI 

unexpectantly increased 0.1 percent from July to August despite a two month decline in gasoline 

prices.  The overall costs were up 8.3% in August compared to 12 months earlier.  The inflation 

rate will likely spur the Fed to continue increasing rate and potentially cause a mild recession.   

 

The foundation for real GDP growth consists of two core elements, labor force growth and 

productivity growth.  The population growth and labor force growth have not changed.  Nonfarm 

business productivity, based on the five-year growth at an annual rate, has rebounded to ab out 

2.0% as of the end of the fourth quarter.  The pandemic has produced an increase in productivity 

growth as companies invest in labor-saving technology.  GDP estimates are for 5-6% in 2021 

and 3-4% in 2022 with long-term real GDP growth to settle near 2%. 

 

The NAHB Housing Market Index has continued to edge down and is now at 49 on a national 

basis.  This is the lowest level since May 2020 and excluding the pandemic, its lowest reading 

since June 2014. These readings confirm our view that the ongoing monetary tightening is 

decidedly reducing the level of housing demand, which is a goal of the Fed.   

 

Building permits declined 1.3% in July.  Single family permits fell 4.3% but multifamily permits 

increased 2.8%.   

 

Housing starts fell 9.6% in July.  Starts have dropped close to 20% from their cyclical peak in 

April.    and 71 on the regional Midwest index.  

 

New home sales in July declined 12.6% to an annual rate of 511,000 units, its lowest level since 

January 2016.  New home sales are down about 30% from one year ago.  The median existing 

home price eased 2.4% for the month but remains 10.8% above the level one year ago.   

79

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 25 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

 

In summary, the economy has displayed a high level of resilience during the latter stages of the 

pandemic. Continued record inflation and the war in Ukraine are creating unprecedented market 

conditions.  Moore and Shryock is closely monitoring this fluid situation and will consider to the 

extent possible any changes in market conditions as additional data materializes. 

 

The Green Street Commercial Property Price Index® decreased 1% in August. The all-property 

index has fallen by 6% this year. 

 

 
 

In the second quarter of 2022, the average overall capitalization (cap) rate decreased in 15 

Survey 

markets, increased in 11, and held steady in nine compared to last quarter. For all markets, the 

average 

change is a four-basis-point decline. When looking at changes from a year ago, more dramatic 

differences are observed. Specifically, nearly 91.0% of the market averages are lower today than 

they 

were a year ago with 26 Survey markets posting double-digit decreases, 

 

80

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 26 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

 
 

Fundamentals for the U.S. office sector were largely unchanged over the past few months despite 

expectations that companies were bringing workers back to the office. Occupancy is expected to 

continue to decline through 2022, which is forecasted to be the bottom of the current cycle.  

 

The U.S. retail sector continues to exhibit the recovery experienced in 2021, and 33 metros are 

expected 

to end 2022 in recovery, while ten are expected to still be improving but at a slower rate.  

 

High demand, inadequate supply, and low vacancy rates are key drivers behind the U.S. 

industrial sector’s strong fundamentals.  And while ramping new supply could lead to a 

deceleration in fundamentals, they should remain healthy, as vacancy rates are near all-time lows 

in many metros across the country. 

 

The U.S. multifamily sector continues to post solid fundamentals and most market are expected 

to end 2022 in expansion. While fundamentals may be impacted by the potential for a U.S. 

economic slowdown, a decline in single-family home sales could be a temporary boost to 

apartment occupancy. 

 

Recreational and business travel are recovering rapidly, aiding travel related industries.  Recent 

college grads who have been living and working from their parent’s homes are moving out, 

boosting the recovery of apartment rental markets.  With widespread vaccine distribution, 

patrons have flocked back to restaurants and bars.  But some more permanent shifts in the 

commercial real estate market are only beginning to emerge, driven by the acceleration of pre-

existing trends.  The decades long shift to on-line retail went to warp speed in 2020 with severe 

implications for traditional retail properties.  Many companies are looking hard at their office 

space and concluding they need less of it or different configurations.  Similarly, banks are 

reducing their branch networks as the pandemic sweeps away their customers’ concerns about 

mobile banking. 

 

81

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 27 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

Some businesses did not recover from the pandemic, and this event will likely solidify some 

existing trends, such as online shopping, working from home, online education, better mobile 

products, artificial intelligence, etc.  Further acceleration of these trends could adversely affect 

demand for retail, office, and hospitality.  At this point, there is limited distressed property that 

has come to the market in out-state Missouri.  
 

In summary, there is less risk in the market as the pandemic has shifted to the endemic phase.  

Columbia, Jefferson City, and central Missouri are part of a relatively recession resistant local 

economy based on medical services, education, governmental services, and insurance/banking.  

While these markets have rebounded from the downturn and changes in demand are becoming 

clear, however, other economic hurdles have materialized including supply chain bottlenecks 

that slow or halt production.  Labor and product shortages also fuel inflation, a major economic 

risk. 

  

82

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 28 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

 

PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

 
Site View 

 

 
Rothwell Park Road 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Private Gravel Driveway extending east from 

Rothwell Park Road 

 
Highway 24 

 

 
 
 

  
  

83

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 29 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

SALE MAP 
 

 

  

84

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 30 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

SALE 1 
 

 

Seller: Danny & Lillian Timm 

Buyer: HIG Properties LLC 

Instrument: Deed Date 12/17/2021 

Recorded Book: 933 Page: 1191 

County: Randolph 

Selling Price: $8,000 

Unit Price: $0.71/s.f. 

Type of Transaction: Arm’s length 

 

Financing: 

 

Cash equivalent 

Site Dimensions: Rectangular 

Zoning: B-3 

Zoning Compliance: Yes 

Highest & Best Use: Commercial 

Utilities in Use: E,W,S 

Utilities Available: E,W,S   

 

Identification of the Property: 114 N Morley Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270. This property sits along 

N Morley Street/Business 63 and just north of E Rollins St. 

 

Sale price was confirmed by Joe Bruns on September 13, 2022, with Leslie Joseph, agent.  Appraiser 

confirms on Form 6-3.1B, Certificate of Appraiser, that sale was personally inspected. 

 

Property Description:   

 

Size:   11,326 s.f. 

Topography:  Gently sloping 

Traffic Count:  15,000 

Road Surface:  Paved 

Primary Frontage: 95’  

Property Rights: Fee simple 

Corner Site:  No 

Environmental: No indication to the "untrained eye" of environmental hazard could be found. 

Encumbrance:  No adverse easements or encumbrances. 

Comments: Rectangular shaped tract inside of Moberly city limits. Electric, sewer, and water 

are available on site. 

Map Number:  N/A 

Sale Number:1 

Parcel ID:  10-1.0-01.0-1.0-003-039.000  

85

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 31 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

SALE 1 AERIAL 

 

SALE 1 TOPOGRAPHICAL MAP 

  

86

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 32 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

SALE 2 
 

Seller: Michael E. Hall 

Buyer: Timothy J Fender & Charlotte 

Virginia Swenson 

Instrument: Deed Date 11/18/2021 

Recorded Book: 932 Page: 2050 

County: Randolph 

Selling Price: $6,040 

Unit Price: $0.24 s.f. 

Type of Transaction: Arm’s length 

Financing: Cash equivalent 

Site Dimensions: Rectangular 

Zoning: None 

Zoning Compliance: N/A 

  

Highest & Best Use: Single Family 

Utilities in Use: E,W,S 

  

Utilities Available: E,W,S 

 
 

 

Identification of the Property: W Carpenter Street, Huntsville, MO 65259. The site is located on the 

west side of Huntsville. 

 

Sale price was confirmed by Joe Bruns on September 13, 2022 via Wanda Finnigan, agent.  Appraiser 

confirms on Form 6-3.1B, Certificate of Appraiser, that sale was personally inspected. 

 

Property Description:   

 

Size:   26,136 s.f. 

Topography:  Gently sloping 

Traffic Count:  Low 

Road Surface:  Paved 

Primary Frontage: 140’ 

Property Rights: Fee simple 

Corner Site:  No 

Environmental: No indication to the "untrained eye" of environmental hazard could be found. 

Encumbrance:  No adverse easements or encumbrances. 

Comments:  A wooded tract of land on the west side of Huntsville. Electric, sewer, and water 

are available on site.  Sloping, wooded site will limit development potential.  Road ends just south of 

subject.   

 

Map Number:  N/A 

Sale Number:  2 

Parcel ID:  06-7.0-36.0-2.0-002-053.000 

  

87

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 33 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

SALE 2 AERIAL 

 

SALE 2 TOPOGRAPHIC MAP 

  

88

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 34 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

SALE 3 
 

Seller: Brenda Kay & Ray P Long 

Buyer: Aaron Wayne & Nora Lee Ridgway 

Instrument: Deed Date 09/20/2021 

Recorded Book: 931 Page: 1251 

County: Randolph 

Selling Price: $15,000 

Unit Price: $0.51 s.f. 

Type of Transaction: Arm’s length 

  

Financing: Cash equivalent 

Site Dimensions: Rectangular 

Zoning: None 

Zoning Compliance: N/A 

  

Highest & Best Use: Recreational 

Utilities in Use: E,W 

Utilities Available: E,W 

 
 

  

Identification of the Property:  1211 Private Road 1381, Cairo, Missouri 65239. The site is located 

along the northeast side of Sugar Creek Lake 

 

Sale price was confirmed by Joe Bruns on July 13, 2022 via Carolyn Wilhite, agent.  Appraiser confirms 

on Form 6-3.1B, Certificate of Appraiser, that sale was personally inspected. 

 

Property Description:   

 

Size:   29,200 s.f. 

Topography:  Gently sloping 

Traffic Count:  Low 

Road Surface:  Gravel 

Primary Frontage: 100’   

Property Rights: Fee simple 

Corner Site:  No 

Environmental: No indication to the "untrained eye" of environmental hazard could be found. 

Encumbrance:  No adverse easements or encumbrances. 

Comments: Rectangular shaped tract on the northeast side of Sugar Creek Lake. Water and 

electricity available on site, but not installed. 

 

Map Number:  N/A 

Sale Number:  3 

Parcel ID:  07-2.0-10.0-0.0-000-013.000  

89

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 35 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

SALE 3 AERIAL 

 

SALE 3 TOPOGRAPHIC MAP 

  

90

#7.



 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 36 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

 

SALE 4 
 

Seller: Estate of Billy E Miller 

Buyer: Travis Lasater 

Instrument: Deed Date 09/01/2020 

Recorded Book: 923 Page: 1440 

County: Randolph 

Selling Price: $5,000 

Unit Price: $0.37 s.f. 

Type of Transaction: Arm’s length 

 

Financing: 

 

Cash equivalent 

Site Dimensions: Rectangular 

Zoning: None 

Zoning Compliance: N/A 

Highest & Best Use: Recreational 

Utilities in Use: None 

Utilities Available: E,W   

    
Identification of the Property: 1589 Private Road 1337, Moberly, MO 65270. The site is located along 

the south side of Sugar Creek Lake. 

 

Sale price was confirmed by Joe Bruns on September 13, 2022 via Christy Ames, agent.  Appraiser 

confirms on Form 6-3.1B, Certificate of Appraiser, that sale was personally inspected. 

 

Property Description:   

 

Size:  13,504 s.f. 

Topography:  Moderately sloping 

Traffic Count:  Low 

Road Surface:  Gravel 

Primary Frontage: None.  Road ends just north of site.    

Property Rights: Fee simple 

Corner Site:  No 

Environmental: No indication to the "untrained eye" of environmental hazard could be found. 

Encumbrance:  No adverse easements or encumbrances. 

Comments:  Rectangular shaped tract on the south side of Sugar Creek Lake. Water and 

electricity available nearby.  Road ends just north of site.  Buyer planned to 

extend the road.  Old manufactured home, no value.   
 

Map Number:  N/A 

Sale Number: 4 

Parcel ID:  07-5.0-15.0-0.0-000-065.000 

  

91

#7.



 
 
 

 

EPG 236.6.3 Page 37 of 37 Form 236.6.3.2 

01/2017 

 

 

SALE 4 AERIAL 

 

SALE 4 TOPOGRAPHIC MAP 

 

92

#7.



93

#7.



94

#7.



95

#7.



96

#7.



97

#7.



98

#7.



99

#7.



100

#7.



101

#7.



102

#7.



103

#7.



104

#7.



105

#7.



106

#7.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing Contracting With JT 

Holman Construction For Demolition Of Five Residential Structures. 

  

Summary: We advertised for bids on 5residential structures.  Bids were opened on October 4, 

2023 and 3 bids were received. Wiedeman Dozing, Schnieders Excavating and JT 

Holman Construction.  Staff recommends the low bid of JT Holman for $22,000.00. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number: 100.005.5418 

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

107

#8.



BILL NO.____________    RESOLUTION NO.___________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTING 

WITH JT HOLMAN CONSTRUCTION FOR DEMOLITION OF FIVE RESIDENTIAL 

STRUCTURES. 

WHEREAS, an advertisement for bids was published for the demolition of five (5) 

residential structures; and 

WHEREAS, the bid opening took place on October 4, 2023 with three bids being 

received; and 

WHEREAS, the bid of JT Holman Construction (“Holman”) in the amount of Twenty-

two Thousand Dollars ($22,000.00) was the lowest responsible bid and staff recommends 

acceptance of the bid. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the bid of Holman 

and authorizes the City Manager to contract with Holman for demolition of the 5 residential 

structures identified in the bid upon the terms and conditions of the bid advertisement. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of November, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

       ___________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

108

#8.



Company 1824 S Morley 522 S Williams 616 S 5th St 714 Franklin St 824 W Coates St Total

Wiedeman Dozing $4,000.00 $8000.00 $4,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,800.00 $26,800.00

Schnieders Excavating $9,281.00 $12,599.00 $9,045.00 $9,659.00 $10,352.00 $50,936.00

JT Holman Construction $3,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $6,000.00 $22,000.00

5 Residential Structures Demo Bid Tab

109

#8.



 

 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police  

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item:     A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Randolph County Sheltered Workshop 

Industries And Authorizing Contracting For Janitorial Services At The 

Moberly Police Department Building. 

 

 

Summary: The Police Department is currently without a custodian, and it was decided the 

best way to replace the employee was to solicit bids for janitorial services 

from local companies. Bid requests were sent to five local companies along 

with the bid packet and specifications. Three sealed bids were received, the 

bids are from Chef Jeff’s Cleaning, Magic City Cleaning and Randolph 

Sheltered Industries-MPPS. 

  

Recommended Action   

   

Please accept the bids. 

 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Jeffrey     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

110

#9.



BILL NO.____________           RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF RANDOLPH COUNTY SHELTERED 

WORKSHOP INDUSTRIES AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTING FOR 

JANITORIAL SERVICES AT THE MOBERLY POLICE DEPARTMENT BUILDING. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly Police Department no longer employs a janitor to 

perform cleaning services at the Police Department building and determined to seek bids from 

outside janitorial services companies; and 

WHEREAS, bid requests were sent to five local janitorial cleaning companies and three 

bids were received; and 

WHEREAS, the bid of Randolph County Sheltered Industries (“RCSI”) in the amount of 

$2,275.00 a month was determined to be the lowest responsible bid; and 

WHEREAS, the Moberly Police Department recommends acceptance of the RCSI bid 

and requests authority to contract with RCSI for janitorial services. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the bid of RCSI and 

authorizes the City Manager or his designee to contract with RCSI for janitorial services and 

grants further authority for all actions as may be necessary to carry out the intent of this 

Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of November, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

111

#9.



112

#9.



113

#9.



114

#9.



115

#9.



116

#9.



117

#9.



118

#9.



119

#9.



120

#9.



121

#9.



122

#9.



123

#9.



124

#9.



125

#9.



126

#9.



127

#9.



128

#9.



129

#9.



130

#9.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing The City Manager To 

Execute An Agreement With Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc., For The North Morley 

Water Line Replacement Project. 

 

  

Summary: The Public Utilities Department has received bids for the North Morley Water 

Line EDA Project that was approved as one of six projects included within an 

EDA grant. The quote selected is the $1,167,770.50 from Emery Sapp & Sons 

Inc. The advertisement for bids resulted in bids received ranging from this 

lowest bid of $1,167,770.50 to the high bid of $1,457,115.00. Project funding 

is from an EDA Grant with a corresponding Moberly match. EDA requires 

project completion no later than September 28, 2024. DNR construction 

permit for this project is included. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Plan 

  

Account Number: 301.112.5412 

  

Available Budget $: To be secured from capital reserve 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
      Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes   x    Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report    x   Other  Exhibits       Passed Failed 

 

131

#10.



BILL NO.____________           RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH EMERY SAPP & SONS, INC., FOR THE 

NORTH MORLEY WATER LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Utilities department sought bids from interested parties for the 

North Morley Water Line Replacement Project as part of the EDA grant projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Natural Resources has approved the plans and 

issued a permit for this project; and 

WHEREAS, four bids were received and the bid of Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc., (“ESS”) 

in the amount of $1,167,770.50 was determined to be the lowest responsible bid; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed contract for this project has been submitted and is attached 

hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby accepts the bid of 

ESS and directs the City Manager to execute the attached Agreement for the services described 

herein and further authorizes the City Manager to take such other actions as may be necessary to 

accomplish the purpose of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of November, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

132

#10.



133

#10.



134

#10.



135

#10.



136

#10.



137

#10.



138

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-1 AGREEMENT

DOCUMENT 005200 - AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between the City of Moberly, Missouri (hereinafter called OWNER) and 
Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc.     (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR).

OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as 
follows:

ARTICLE 1 - WORK

1.01 CONTRACTOR shall complete all work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents.  
The Work is generally described as follows:

North Morley Water Main

ARTICLE 2 - THE PROJECT

2.01 The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part is 
generally described as follows:  North Morley Water Main

ARTICLE 3 - ENGINEER

3.01 The Project has been designed by Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (Jacobs), who is hereinafter called 
ENGINEER and who is to act as OWNER's representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, 
and have the rights and authority assigned to ENGINEER in the Contract Documents in connection 
with the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 4 - CONTRACT TIMES

4.01 Time of the Essence

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and 
readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the 
Contract.

4.02 Days to Achieve Substantial Completion and Final Payment

A. The Work will be substantially completed within 180 days after the date when the Contract 
Times commence to run as provided in paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions and 
completed and ready for final payment in accordance with paragraph 14.07 of the General 
Conditions within 210 days after the date when the Contract Times commence to run.

4.03 Liquidated Damages

A. CONTRACTOR and OWNER recognize that time is of the essence of this Agreement and 
that OWNER will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times 
specified in paragraph 4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with 
Article 11 of the General Conditions.  The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and 
difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered 
by OWNER if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any 

139

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-2 AGREEMENT

such proof, OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but 
not as a penalty) CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER $250.00 for each of the first 30 days 
that expires after the time specified in paragraph 4.02 for completion and readiness for final 
payment until the Work is completed and ready for final payment.  Thereafter, the 
CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER $500.00 for each of the next 15 days that expires until 
the Work is completed and ready for final payment. If the Work is not completed and ready 
for final payment after 45 days from the time specified in paragraph 4.02, the 
CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER $750.00 for each day that expires until the Work is 
completed and ready for final payment. 

ARTICLE 5 - CONTRACT PRICE.

5.01 OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents an amount in current funds equal to the unit prices in the Bid Form:

NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI     

No. Item Unit
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extension

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $34,000.00 $34,000.00

2 6-INCH WATER MAIN LF 150 $137.00 $20,550.00

3 8-INCH WATER MAIN LF 114 $128.00 $14,592.00

4 12-INCH WATER MAIN LF 3530 $157.25 $555,092.50

5 8-INCH RJ WATER MAIN-JACK 
& BORE LF 114 $345.00 $39,330.00

6 12-INCH RJ WATER MAIN-
JACK & BORE LF 60 $490.00 $29,400.00

7 12-INCH WATER MAIN IN 
CASING PIPE LF 98 $360.00 $35,280.00

8 12-INCH DIRECTIONAL DRILL 
WATER MAIN LF 737 $151.00 $111,287.00

9
ASPHALTIC CONCRETE 
PAVEMENT- REMOVE AND 
REPLACE

LF 1,385 $110.00 $152,350.00

10 CONCRETE PAVEMENT-
REMOVAL AND REPLACE LF 165 $75.00 $12,375.00

11 GRAVEL PAVEMENT-REMOVE 
AND REPLACE LF 170 $18.00 $3,060.00

12 1-INCH SERVICE-SHORT EA 7 $1,895.00 $13,265.00

140

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-3 AGREEMENT

13 1-INCH SERVICE-LONG EA 2 $6,585.00 $13,170.00

14 2-INCH SERVICE-SHORT EA 3 $4,865.00 $14,595.00

15 2-INCH SERVICE-LONG EA 1 $6,835.00 $6,835.00

16 6-INCH GATE VALVE & BOX EA 4 $1,855.00 $7,420.00

17 8-INCH GATE VALVE & BOX EA 2 $2,640.00 $5,280.00

18 12-INCH GATE VALVE & BOX EA 6 $4,500.00 $27,000.00

19 HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EA 9 $7,390.00 $66,510.00

20 YARD HYDRANT EA 1 $885.00 $885.00

21 RIP RAP SY 134 $41.00 $5,494.00

TOTAL PRICE BASE BID (Use Figures) $    1,167,770.50 

141

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-4 AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 6 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES.

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments

A. CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of 
the General Conditions.  Applications for Payment will be processed by ENGINEER as 
provided in the General Conditions.

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage

A. OWNER shall make progress payments in accordance with Section 34.057, RSMo, on 
account of the Contract Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR's Applications for Payment 
during performance of the Work as provided in paragraphs 6.02.A.1 and 6.02.A.2 below. 
All such payments will be measured by the schedule of values established in paragraph 
2.05 of the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number 
of units completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided in the 
General Requirements:

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal 
to the percentage indicated below, but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 
previously made and less such amounts as ENGINEER shall determine or OWNER 
may withhold, in accordance with paragraph 15.01 of the General Conditions.

a. 90% of Work completed (with the balance being retainage).  If Work has been 
50% completed as determined by ENGINEER, and if the character and progress 
of the Work have been satisfactory to OWNER and ENGINEER, OWNER, on 
recommendation of ENGINEER, may determine that as long as the character and 
progress of the Work remain satisfactory to them, there will be no retainage on 
account of Work subsequently completed, in which case the remaining progress 
payments prior to Substantial Completion will be in an amount equal to 100% of 
the Work completed less the aggregate of payments previously made; and

b.   90% of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with the 
balance being retainage).

2. Upon Substantial Completion, OWNER shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total 
payments to CONTRACTOR to 100% of the Work completed, less such amounts as 
ENGINEER shall determine in accordance with paragraph 15.01.C.5 of the General 
Conditions and less 100% of ENGINEER’s estimate of the value of Work to be completed 
or corrected as shown on the tentative list of items to be completed or corrected attached 
to the certificate of Substantial Completion.

6.03 Final Payment

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, OWNER shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by ENGINEER as provided in said paragraph 15.06.

142

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-5 AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 7 - INTEREST

7.01 All moneys not paid when due as provided in Article 15 of the General Conditions shall bear 
interest at the rate specified in Section 34.057, RSMo.

ARTICLE 8 - CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

8.01 In order to induce OWNER to enter into this Agreement, CONTRACTOR makes the following 
representations:

A. CONTRACTOR has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and the other 
related data identified in the Bidding Documents.

B. CONTRACTOR has visited the site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the 
general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the 
Work.

C. CONTRACTOR is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local Laws and 
Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

D

E. CONTRACTOR has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having 
done so) all such additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, studies, and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground 
Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost, progress, or performance of 
the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 
procedures of construction to be employed by CONTRACTOR, including applying the 
specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly 
required by the Contract Documents to be employed by CONTRACTOR, and safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto.

F. CONTRACTOR does not consider that any additional examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, studies or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the 
Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and 
conditions of the Contract Documents.

G. CONTRACTOR is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by OWNER and 
others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.

H. CONTRACTOR has correlated the information known to CONTRACTOR, information 
and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the 
Contract Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, 
studies, and data with the Contract Documents.

I. CONTRACTOR has given ENGINEER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities 
or discrepancies that CONTRACTOR has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the 
written resolution thereof by ENGINEER is acceptable to CONTRACTOR.

J. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of 
all terms and conditions for performance of the Work.

143

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-6 AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 9 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

9.01 Contents

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following:
1. This Agreement
2. Performance Bond 
3. Payment Bond 
4. General Conditions
5. Supplementary Conditions 
6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual
7. Drawings with each sheet bearing the following general title: North Morley Water 

Main, City of Moberly, Missouri
8. Addenda (numbers        to        , inclusive)
9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):

a. Notice to Proceed
b. CONTRACTOR's Bid
c. Documentation submitted by CONTRACTOR prior to Notice of Award

10. The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the 
Agreement and are not attached hereto:
a. Written Amendments
b. Work Change Directives
c. Change Orders

B. The documents listed in paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above).

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9.

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
paragraph 11.01 of the General Conditions.

ARTICLE 10 - MISCELLANEOUS

10.01 Terms

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions.

10.02 Assignment of Contract

A. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be 
binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; 
and, specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are 
due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this 
restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any 
written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from 
any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

10.03 Successors and Assign

144

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-7 AGREEMENT

A. OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the 
Contract Documents.

10.04 Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable 
under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions 
shall continue to be valid and binding upon OWNER and CONTRACTOR, who agree 
that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or 
part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to 
expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

ARTICLE 11 - NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

11.01 CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, creed, color, or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their 
race, creed, color or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.

11.02 CONTRACTOR will post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

A. CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, creed, color, or national origin.

B. CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be 
provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative 
of the CONTRACTOR's commitments under Section 202 of Executive Order No. 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment.

C. CONTRACTOR will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of 
Labor.

D. CONTRACTOR will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of 
Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 
contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

E. In the event of the CONTRACTOR's non-compliance with the non-discrimination clauses of 
this Contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may be cancelled, 
terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the CONTRACTOR may be declared 
ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in 
Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed 
and remedies involved as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or 

145

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-8 AGREEMENT

by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
F. CONTRACTOR will include the provisions of Article 11 in every subcontract or purchase 

order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 
pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The CONTRACTOR will take 
such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the contracting agency may 
direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance:  
Provided, however, that in the event the CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the 
contracting agency, the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

146

#10.



NORTH MORLEY WATER MAIN
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

C5X55930 005200-9 AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OWNER and CONTRACTOR have signed this Agreement in duplicate. One 
counterpart each has been delivered to OWNER and CONTRACTOR.  All portions of the Contract 
Documents have been signed or identified by OWNER and CONTRACTOR or on their behalf.

This Agreement will be effective on ___________, 20__ (which is the Effective Date of the Agreement).

CITY OF MOBERLY

        Mayor

Attest 
                 City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

              City Counselor

Address for giving notices:

If OWNER is a corporation, attach evidence of 
authority to sign.  If OWNER is a public body, 
attach evidence of authority to sign and resolution 
or other documents authorizing execution of 
OWNER-CONTRACTOR Agreement.

Designated Representative:
Name: 
Title: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Facsimile: 

CONTRACTOR:

By: 

[CORPORATE SEAL]

Attest 

Address for giving notices:

License No. 

Agent for service of process: 

(If CONTRACTOR is a corporation or a 
partnership, attach evidence of authority to sign).

Designated Representative:
Name: 
Title: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Facsimile: 

147

#10.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An Agreement With 

Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc., For A Utility Rate Study. 

 

  

Summary: In an effort to evaluate the Moberly Water Utility’s financial status, to “create 

a financial roadmap to prudently plan for funding requirements” in light of 

recent impacts affecting the costs of both operating the utility and cost of 

capital investment construction projects, the study is essential information 

necessary to effectively plan future projects. Additionally, the study will allow 

the utility to competitively pursue sources of outside financial assistance, 

critical for success in required asset replacements planned for the future. 

The costs of the study are up to 100% eligible for reimbursement by the 

MoDNR Multipurpose Fund. The study’s proposed amount is $46,860. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution 

  

Fund Name: Contracted Services 

  

Account Number: 301.110.5406 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
   x  Proposal         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

148

#11.



BILL NO.____________           RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT WITH BURNS & MCDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC., 

FOR A UTILITY RATE STUDY. 

WHEREAS, the City Utilities Department has determined that there is a need for a 

utility rate study to anticipate future financial needs of the department; and 

WHEREAS, 1898 & Co., a registered fictitious name owned by Burns & McDonnell 

Engineering Company, Inc., (“1898”) has submitted a proposal (attached hereto) for a water and 

sewer rate study to help the City create a financial roadmap to chart a funding path for utility 

needs for the next 20 years for a not to exceed sum of $46,860.00; and 

WHEREAS, 1898 specializes in providing comprehensive financial planning and rate 

studies for water and sewer utilities and City staff recommends contracting with 1898 for a 

utility rate study. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby directs the City 

Manager to execute an Agreement with 1898 on the terms and conditions set forth in the attached 

proposal for professional services to perform a water and sewer rate study and such other 

agreements as may be necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of November, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

149

#11.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

September 25, 2023 

 

Mr. Dana Ulmer  

Utility Director  

City of Moberly 

101 W Reed Street 

Moberly, MO 65270 

 

Re: Updated Proposal for a Water and Sewer Utility Rate Study 

 

Dear Mr. Ulmer: 

 

The City of Moberly (City) has requested professional services to conduct a Water and Sewer Utility Rate Study (Study). This 

important Study will create a financial roadmap for the water and sewer utility, charting a funding path for the next 20 years. 

 

This Study requires an experienced utility financial and rate consulting firm, well versed in historical and emerging trends in critical 

areas impacting long-term financial plans, such as national water and sewer rate increase trends, shifting patterns of water and 

sewer use, inflation on operating and capital costs, interest rate volatility, and ultimately – household affordability of water and 

sewer service. 1898 & Co.℠*, a part of Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. is that firm. 1898 & Co. specializes in providing 

comprehensive financial planning and rate studies for water and sewer utilities. Our reputation is based on our ability to provide an 

objective evaluation of each utility system we serve. In addition to our direct experience providing the requested services, we are 

supported by over 10,000 professionals specializing in the planning, design, and construction of utility and other infrastructure 

projects.  

 

With the heightened uncertainty associated with inflation, interest rates, and general economic conditions, we anticipate this Study 

will involve several scenarios testing impacts to the City’s water and sewer utility financial plan flexing these and other factors. These 

sensitivity analyses will help provide important context, or what-if’s, to aid decision making.  

 

Transmitted with our proposal, you will find an example of a comparable revenue sufficiency and rate study for the City of Republic, 

Missouri. We’ve been honored to work with the City on several financial planning and rate studies, which have involved extensive 

scenarios evaluating different levels of growth and planned capital investment, among other variables. If you’d like to talk to the City 

about our work there, please connect with Andrew Nelson, Deputy City Administrator, at 471-732-3161 / anelson@republicmo.com. 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit our proposal to the City. If you have any questions, please contact Dave Naumann at (816) 

822-4207 / david.naumann@1898andco.com or Phil Walsack at (573) 808-0254 / pkwalsack@burnsmcd.com. 

Sincerely,  

 

 

David F. Naumann 

Senior Project Manager  

150

#11.

mailto:david.naumann@1898andco.com


Moberly, MO / Water and Sewer Utility Rate Study 

 

1898 & Co. / Part of Burns & McDonnell 1 

Project Goals, Approach, and Timeline 

Project Goals 
The City has outlined a clear set of goals to be accomplished in the Study, summarized below. 

1. Prepare a financial forecast for the City’s water and sewer utility for a 20-year planning period. 

2. Present the City with requests for data as necessary. 

3. Complete a revenue sufficiency analysis, cost of service, and rate study, including achievement of key performance 

measures such as reserve levels and/or debt service coverage. Evaluate the financial impact of anticipated capital projects 

on water and sewer rates. Project the trend in rates as necessary to support the proposed capital investment. 

4. Develop proposed rates for water and sewer customers under two scenarios to include the existing rate structure and one 

alternative.  

5. Complete rate benchmarking survey evaluating rate impact on typical residential customers and rate structure with up to 

10 comparable communities. 

6. Present study findings to City Council during two in-person meetings. 

7. Prepare and deliver in paper and digital versions a report describing the analysis and identify the inputs, assumptions, 

methodology, and results. Findings and recommendations will be provided to the City. 

8. Complete the study within 120 days of notice to proceed. 

 

Project Approach 
Our Approach to Municipal Rate Studies 

At its most basic level, 1898 & Co.’s rate studies are designed to create a financial roadmap to prudently plan for funding 

requirements, to defensibly and equitably recover costs, and to implement rate adjustments that recover costs, and achieve utility 

policy goals and objectives. 

 

Our approach to executing water and sewer utility revenue sufficiency and rate studies is grounded in the principles established by 

the American Water Works Association (AWWA) M1 Rate Manual and the Water Environment Federation (WEF) Financing and 

Charges for Wastewater Systems. The three-step approach we follow to complete utility revenue sufficiency studies is summarized 

below.  

 

 Step 1: Financial Planning provides an indication of the adequacy of the revenue generated by current rates. The results of the financial 

forecast analysis will answer the questions “Are the existing rates adequate?” and “If not, what level of overall revenue adjustment is 

needed?” 

 Step 2: Cost of Service provides Cost of Service focuses on assigning cost responsibility to customer classes. Each customer class is 

allocated an appropriate share of the overall system costs based on the level of service provided. The net revenue requirements (costs to 

be recovered from rates) identified in Step 1 are allocated to customers in accordance with industry standards and principles and system 

characteristics. 

 Step 3: Rate Design provides for the required revenue recovery. Once the overall level of revenue required is identified and customer 

class responsibility for that level of revenue is determined, schedules of rates for each rate class are developed that will generate 

revenues accordingly. 

 

In the remainder of this proposal, we summarize our proposed project approach for the City’s Study. We are prepared to tailor our 

approach as needed to provide the professional rate consulting services the City desires. 

151

#11.



 Moberly, MO / Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Sufficiency Analysis 

 

1898 & Co. / Part of Burns & McDonnell 2 

Task 1 | Initiate Project 
The objective of Task 1 is to initiate the Study, collecting pertinent data and collaborating with the City to confirm consensus 

understanding of issues, milestones, communication strategies and other matters. 

Task 1.1 Request for Information 

Within five working days following receipt of the Notice to Proceed, we will provide the City with a preliminary data request to 

complete the study. The data request will itemize information needed for understanding the financial and operating characteristics 

and cost drivers of the utilities and within each of the service areas. Such information is anticipated to include items such as: 

 Historical customer data (e.g. number of active accounts by customer class, billable water demand by class, revenues by 

class) for the last three years. 

 Current budget. 

 Detail of actual revenues and expenses over the last three years. 

 Audited financial statements for the last 3 years. 

 Anticipated federal or state external stimulus funding. 

 Bond covenants, intergovernmental agreements and other contractual requirements, as applicable. 

 Projected capital expenditures. 

 Current fund balances at the beginning of the current fiscal year. 

 Existing debt and loan payment schedules. 

 A spreadsheet or report of itemized fixed assets including asset number, description, original cost, accumulated 

depreciation, annual depreciation and net book value. The total values should tie to values included in the most recently 

audited financial statements 

 System pumping data including water production and unaccounted-for water 

 Average day delivery, maximum day delivery, maximum hour delivery of the water system 

 Maximum fire flow requirements of the water system 

 Three to five years of wastewater treatment plant operating data, to include total annual influent treated and the influent 

loading strength (BOD, TSS) in mg/l 

 Other appropriate information as deemed necessary. 

 
 

Task 1.2 Kick-off Meeting & Project Management 

We will conduct a project kick-off meeting via Microsoft Teams. This meeting will provide the opportunity for our team and the City 

to discuss the project approach, schedule, deliverables, various issues to be addressed, and the initial data and information 

requested. 1898 & Co. will provide an agenda in advance of the meeting. During the kickoff meeting, we will schedule recurring 

team meetings to review study progress, concerns, and next steps. These meetings are typically conducted every 3rd or 4th week, but 

this frequency can be adjusted based on City feedback. 

Task 1 Deliverables 

 Preliminary data request 

 Project kick off meeting 

 Schedule of recurring project team meetings 
 

Task 2 | Financial Plan Development 
The objective of Task 2 is to develop a 20-year financial plan for the utility system that adequately funds the operating and capital 

requirements, complies with financial management policies and bond covenants, and provides a defensible and implementable plan 

for the utility to move forward.  

 

Forecasting performed in Task 2 will determine whether the utility’s revenues under current rates can be expected to provide 

152

#11.



 Moberly, MO / Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Sufficiency Analysis 

 

1898 & Co. / Part of Burns & McDonnell 3 

adequate funding for future utility operating and capital costs. 

Task 2.1 Evaluate Current Usage Levels and Prepare Revenue Forecast 

Projected annual utility revenues under existing rates will be developed. Our team will review historical growth in the number of 

customers by class, and then forecast the annual number of customers for each utility rate class for each year of the forecast period.  

We will assess trends in water and sewer sales volume by class. Based on the trend analysis and other available information, our 

team will estimate the future usage per customer for each rate class for the utility. 

This information will be used in the forecast of revenues under existing rates. We will also develop projections of revenues from 

other existing sources, which may include interest income and other miscellaneous income sources, including connection fees.  

Task 2.2 Project Capital Flow of Funds 

We will review the capital improvement plan (CIP) provided by the City and develop a capital planning flow of funds. This plan will 

acknowledge anticipated sources and uses of capital funds to implement the CIP. Funding sources may include issuance of proposed 

bonds, loans, growth-related fees, existing balances, potential grant funding, and other sources as applicable. Uses of funds will 

include the CIP, cost of debt issuance, and other costs as identified through consultation with the City. 

Task 2.3 – Project Operating Revenue Requirements 

Projections of annual system operation and maintenance expenses will be developed based on variables that may include projected 

water demand, historical expense levels, existing budgets, inflation estimates and the input of the City staff regarding any planned 

changes to the operation and maintenance of the utility system.  

Annual debt service requirements on any outstanding debt will be included in the operating forecast. To the extent additional 

financing of expected capital improvements is indicated to be required, estimates of new debt service requirements will also be 

incorporated in the forecast. In addition, the impacts of any financial performance requirements or targets, i.e. debt service 

coverage requirement, reserve levels, target operating ratio, etc., whether imposed internally or externally, will be considered. 

Projections of any other system cash expenditures not included in any of the above categories will also be captured in the financial 

forecast. Such expenditures often include transfers or routine capital expenditures not otherwise included in a capital improvement 

plan. 

Task 2.4 – Develop Schedule of Remitted Contributions 

Through the development of the financial plan, and in collaboration with the City, we will develop and propose up to three 

alternative schedules for remittance of contributions to the Multi-Purpose Water Resource Program Fund (MPF). 

Task 2.5 – Review and Finalize Operating Cash Flows 

We will summarize the annual forecasts of the utility’s revenues and operating requirements in the form of pro-forma cash flow 

analyses. These analyses will identify the annual operating surplus or deficit anticipated during the study period. The sufficiency of 

existing rates to meet future revenue requirements will be evaluated based the ability to meet certain financial performance 

measures, including the anticipated annual surplus or deficit, debt service coverage levels, reserve balance goals, and other policies 

or measures developed in conjunction with the City. If revenues under existing rates are not sufficient to meet future revenue 

requirements, adjustments will be proposed.  

 

 

 

It is anticipated that several scenarios or “what-if’s” may be evaluated during this stage of the Study. Changes in key assumptions, 

such as future water and sewer sales volume, customer growth, inflation, debt issuance, interest rates, operating costs, etc. may be 

evaluated for their sensitivity in changing forecast outcomes. We also anticipate evaluating the impact of different capital planning 

assumptions, which may include changes in, renewal and replacement of existing infrastructure, treatment plant improvements, or 

153

#11.



 Moberly, MO / Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Sufficiency Analysis 

 

1898 & Co. / Part of Burns & McDonnell 4 

others as identified by the City. 

Our team will review the preliminary forecast results with the City during an on-site or virtual review meeting. During this meeting, 

we will review assumptions and results for each component of the cash flow forecast. During the meeting adjustments may be made 

“real time” to optimize the financial plans and meet the City’s needs. 

Task 2 Deliverables 
 Evaluation of billing determinants and trends 

 Projected cash flow  

 Scenario analysis 

 Proposed schedule of remitted contributions for MPF 

 Microsoft Teams meeting to review and finalize cash flows 

 Council workshop to review cashflow projections 

 

Task 3 | Cost of Service Analysis 
A cost of service analysis focuses on assigning cost responsibility to the different classifications of customers. Each customer class is 

allocated an appropriate share of the overall system costs of providing service. The test year revenue requirement selected in 

collaboration with the City will serve as the basis for the cost of service analysis for the utility systems. The revenue requirement will 

be calculated using cash basis, unless otherwise directed by contract customer requirements.  

Under the cash basis, the revenues of the utility must be sufficient to cover all cash needs for the period during which the rates are 

intended to be adequate. This basis is generally used by publicly owned utilities and is an extension of cash oriented budgeting and 

accounting systems traditionally used by local governments. Revenue requirements under this basis include operation and 

maintenance expenses, routine annual replacements, debt service requirements, revenue-financed major capital improvements as 

well as any payment or transfers to the City general fund and reserve fund deposits.  

We will utilize the test year revenue requirement to conduct a cost of service analysis that result in allocation of costs to each of the 

City’s existing rate classes. The development of the class specific allocated cost of service will be consistent with industry standards. 

Task 3.1 – Determine Utility Cost Assignments 

We will complete the cost of service analysis using customized models that reflects the specific requirements of the City’s utility 

system. We will complete cost functionalization and classification to functional service areas. Functions for the water system may 

include base, maximum day, maximum hour, meters, billing, and public fire protection. Functions for the wastewater system may 

include flow (both contributed and infiltration/inflow), strength components (BOD, SS), customer accounts, etc.  

The amounts included in the test year revenue requirement for each component of revenue or expense will be classified as or 

assigned to the various functional services by one of several methods. These methods include direct assignment to a specific related 

function, assumed percentage breakdowns based on estimated levels of related activities within multiple functions, ratios of 

statistical factors affecting multiple functions, and composite ratios of the assignments resulting from the previous methods. The 

test year revenue requirement will then be summarized by functional service. 

 

Task 3.2 – Allocate Functional Costs to Classes 

The test year revenue requirement will be allocated among the existing rate classifications. This is generally referred to as 

development of each utility’s units of service by customer class. At a minimum, units of service for the water utility will include base 

volumes, capacity-related volumes, equivalent meters, and customers.  

Units of service for the wastewater utility will include contributed flow, infiltration/inflow, wastewater strengths, and customer 

account. The cost of service models will summarize the allocated revenue requirement by rate class. This output will be compared 

with the projected revenue to be generated by each rate class to estimate for each class the extent to which the current rates would 

154

#11.



 Moberly, MO / Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Sufficiency Analysis 

 

1898 & Co. / Part of Burns & McDonnell 5 

recover the corresponding allocated share of the test year revenue requirement. As a result, a breakdown by rate classification of 

the total revenue change at the system level will be determined. 

Task 3.3 – Review Cost of Service Results 

We will conduct a project review meeting with the City staff to review and discuss the preliminary cost of service analysis results. 

Any revisions to the assumptions used in the cost of service analysis will be agreed upon for purposes of finalizing the analysis. In 

addition, guidance will be obtained from the City as to any adjustments to the cost recovery to be provided by each rate 

classification prior to beginning Task 4 of the Study. 

The final cost allocations will be fair and equitable to the various classes of service and will comply with the City goals and objectives.  

Task 3 Deliverables and Meetings: 

 Cost of service allocations to customer classes 

 Microsoft Teams meeting to discuss cost of service results 

 

Task 4 | Proposed Rate Development 
The objective of Task 4 is to develop proposed rates that meet the needs and objectives of the water and sewer utility. We will 

assess the existing rate structures for its performance, overall equity, and ability to meet the City’s objectives for future water and 

sewer rates. The appropriateness of the current rate structures will be examined, and recommendations for change will be made to 

improve cost recovery, and achieve the City goals and align with the City policies.  

Task 4.1 – Design Proposed User Charge Rates 

Following the completion of the financial plan and cost of service analysis we will design rates to generate adequate revenues to 

meet the applicable test year revenue requirements, reflect the results of the cost of service analysis, and meet any City rate design 

directives. Proposed rates will be developed for water and sewer customers under two scenarios to include the existing rate 

structure and one alternative. 

Task 4.2 – Rate Benchmarking and Bill Comparisons 

1898 & Co. will conduct a rate benchmarking analysis comparing residential water and sewer rates and structure of existing and 

proposed rates to the rates of up to ten comparable water and sewer utilities in the region. The list of utilities for which these 

comparisons will be developed will be agreed upon prior to the initiation of Task 4.  

Task 4.3 – Review Proposed Rates and Fees 

We will conduct a project review meeting with the City staff to review and discuss the proposed rates and the forecast of revenues 

at proposed rates. Any revisions to the proposed rates used in the analysis will be agreed upon for the purpose of finalizing the 

proposed rate development. 

Task 4 Deliverables and Meetings 

 Proposed rates  

 Comparable community bill and rate structure benchmarking 

 Microsoft Teams meeting to review draft and final proposed rates  
 

Task 5 | Reports and Presentations 
Upon completion of proposed rates, our team will summarize the Study results in a draft report for review by the City. The report 

will include an executive summary describing the study process, and key findings and recommendations regarding financial planning 

and proposed rates. Subsequent sections of the report will describe the analysis in more tactical detail and will identify the results of 

each task of the Study.  

We will discuss the results of Study and review the draft reports in a Microsoft Teams meeting with the City staff. Based upon 

comments and input from the City, our team will complete a final revision to the reports and will provide in both hard copy and 

155

#11.



 Moberly, MO / Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Sufficiency Analysis 

 

1898 & Co. / Part of Burns & McDonnell 6 

digital PDF format to the City.  

We will present the rate study findings at a City Council work session. The schedule for this presentation will be developed in 

consultation with the City. 

 

Task 5 Deliverables and Meetings 

 Draft & final reports 

 Hard Copy and Adobe PDF of final report 

 Microsoft Teams meeting to review and finalize reports 

 Presentation of results to City Council 
 

  

156

#11.



 Moberly, MO / Water and Sewer Utility Revenue Sufficiency Analysis 

 

1898 & Co. / Part of Burns & McDonnell 7 

Project Timeline 
We will coordinate and complete the proposed scope of work within 120 days of Notice to Proceed (NTP). A general schedule is 

represented in the table below. We are prepared to adjust the timeline to meet the City’s needs. 

Major Milestone General Timeline 

NTP Day 1 

Kickoff Meeting Day 5 

Draft Financial Plan Review Day 45 

Finalize Financial Plan Day 60 

Cost of Service Review Day 75 

Review of Draft Rates Day 90 

Draft Report Day 110 

Present Results at Council Work Session Day 120 

Final Report Day 120 

 

 

Estimated Level of Effort and Cost 
1898 & Co. proposes to complete the proposed scope of services outlined in this proposal in 211 man-hours for a not-to-exceed fee 

of $46,860. This price reflects all anticipated costs to deliver the scope described in this proposal, including an on-site trip for a 

presentation to City officials. We propose billing monthly based on time and expenses incurred. Detailed invoices will be provided 

showing the breakdown of hours billed by task. A detailed estimate of time and cost is shown by Task in the following table.  

 

 

City of M oberly, M O Total

Task 4 - 

Proposed 

Rate 

D evelopm ent

H ourly 

Billing 

Rates

Consultant

D ave N aum ann 2 2 4 16 24 282$     

A lex Craven 1 96 30 12 12 151 220$     

Evaristo Casim iro 24 8 4 36 177$      

Total Labor Hours 3 122 38 20 28 211

Total Labor Cost 784$               25,932$         8,016$            4,476$           7,152$            46,360$         

Expenses $ 
(1)

-$               -$               -$               -$               500$              500$              

Total Project Fees 784$               25,932$         8,016$            4,476$           7,652$            46,860$         

(1)
 Cost for travel and on-site m eetings, to be billed at cost.

M oberly, M O

W ater and Sew er Revenue Sufficiency and Rate Study

Estim ated 

Totals

Task 1 - 

Initiate 

Project

Task 2 - 

Financial Plan 

D evelopm ent

Task 3 - Cost 

of Service 

Task 5 -  

Reports & 

Presentations

157

#11.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Granting An Access Easement To KOSF II – Moberly, LLC 

From The City Of Moberly, Missouri. 

 

  

Summary: The property owner requires access to the property. Attached is the access 

easement for the KO Storage Facility located at 1245 Huntsville Rd. The City 

of Moberly owns a parcel at 1600 Huntsville Rd. (07-7.0-35.0-2.0-000-

002.001) that has a sewer lift station and the access driveway into the storage 

facility goes through the east side of this City property. The driveway has been 

used as such for several years, but no one ever addressed that there was not an 

easement for it.  Crockett Engineering did the site plan and prepared the 

easement. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
  x   Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
     Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report    x   Other  Easement       Passed Failed 

 

158

#12.



BILL NO.____________           RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING AN ACCESS EASEMENT TO KOSF II – MOBERLY, 

LLC FROM THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI. 

 

WHEREAS, KOSF II – Moberly, LLC (“KOSF”) owns and operates a storage facility at 

1245 Huntsville Road which is accessed by driving across City property at 1600 Huntsville 

Road; and 

WHEREAS, KOSF has been using this driveway for years without an actual easement 

ever having been granted; and 

WHEREAS, KOSF has requested that the City grant an easement, a copy of which is 

attached, to formalize the access across City property; and 

WHEREAS, City staff requests that the Council grant the Easement in the form provided 

and further authorize the Mayor and City Manager to take such other and further action to 

accomplish the purposes of this Resolution and further authorizes the recording of each 

document. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Moberly hereby grants the 

attached easement and further authorizes the Mayor to execute the easement on behalf of the 

City and for the City Manager to take such other and further action to accomplish the purposes of 

this Resolution and further authorizes the recording of such easement. 

RESOLVED this 6th day of November, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

159

#12.



160

#12.



161

#12.



 

BILL NO.____________     ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT REIMBURSEMENT 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND THE CITY OF MOBERLY. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, TO-WIT: 

 SECTION ONE:   The Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District (the 

“District”) and the City of Moberly (the “City”) desire to cooperate in replacing deteriorating 

sidewalks surrounding the Municipal Auditorium to enhance the streetscape in downtown 

Moberly.  

 SECTION TWO:  City staff and District staff have negotiated a cooperative agreement 

entitled Sidewalk Replacement Reimbursement Agreement (the “Agreement”) whereby the City 

will contract for the concrete replacement and the District agrees to reimburse the City for 47.56% 

of the actual cost of the replacement up to a maximum of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00). 

SECTION THREE:  The City Council hereby approves the Agreement and hereby 

authorizes the Mayor of the City of Moberly to execute said Agreement on behalf of the City and 

further authorizes the City Manager to take such further actions as may be necessary to carry out 

the intent of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION FOUR:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the 

officer presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 6th day 

of November, 2023.   

       ___________________________________ 

ATTEST:      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

_______________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
162

#13.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration  

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Approving A Sidewalk Replacement Reimbursement 

Agreement Between The Downtown Moberly Community Improvement 

District And The City Of Moberly. 

  

Summary: The City has proposed to perform and fund a project to replace the sidewalks 

along Rollins Street and Clark Street adjacent to the Municipal Auditorium 

building.  The District and the City are each desirous of facilitating the project.  

The district has approved reimbursement to the City for a portion of its costs 

to complete the project.  The cost of the project is estimated costs to be 

$21,024.00.  The City shall be entitled to reimbursement from the district of 

around $10,000.00, then the City intends to divide its share of the expense 

between funding for its sidewalk program and it Parks and Recreation 

Department. 

  

Recommended Action: Approve this ordinance. 

  

Fund Name:  Transportation Trust/Sidewalk Replacement Program 

  

Account Number:  600.143.5502 

  

Available Budget $:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
  x     Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
       Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

163

#13.



164

#13.



165

#13.



166

#13.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Utilities 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Repealing Article IV Of Chapter 42 Of The City Code Related 

To Sewers And Adopting A New Article IV Of Chapter 42 Related To 

Sewers. 

  

Summary: The ordinance will repeal existing code sections 42-292 to 42- 838 and adopt 

new code sections 42-290 to 42-839.  These code sections pertain to users of 

the city’s wastewater collection system and publicly owned treatment works 

(POTW).  The new code sections will update general laws having to do with 

the city’s sewers and ensure the city is complying with all state and federal 

laws including the Clean Water Act and federal pretreatment regulation. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report     x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

167

#14.



  
 

Page 1 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

BILL NO: __________________                               ORDINANCE NO: ____________ 

 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ARTICLE IV OF CHAPTER 42 OF THE CITY CODE 
RELATED TO SEWERS AND ADOPTING A NEW ARTICLE IV OF CHAPTER 42 

RELATED TO SEWERS.  

 
WHEREAS, Article IV of Chapter 42 of the existing City Code including Code 

Sections 42-292 through 42-838 involve the regulation of sewers and wastewater within the City 
of Moberly, have been reviewed by City staff and must be changed to ensure the City is 
complying with all State and Federal laws including the Clean Water Act and federal 
pretreatment regulations; and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff has completed a rewrite of Article IV of Chapter 42 which will 

now include Sections 42-290 to 42-839 and will now be in compliance with relevant State and 
Federal law; and 

  

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the City Council repeal the existing Article IV 
of Chapter 42 of the City Code and adopt a new Article IV of Chapter 42 in the form provided 
on the attached Exhibit One. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 

 

SECTION ONE:  Article IV of Chapter 42 of the existing City Code and specifically 
Sections 42-292 through 42-838 are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION TWO:  Article IV of Chapter 42, and specifically Code Sections 42-290 
through 42-839, as stated in the attached Exhibit One, are hereby adopted. 

 
SECTION THREE:  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage by 

the Moberly City Council. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 6th 

day of November, 2023. 

       ____________________________ 
Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  

 
____________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk  
 

 

 

168

#14.



  
 

Page 2 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

 

EXHIBIT ONE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

169

#14.



  
 

Page 3 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

 

Chapter 42 - UTILITIES 

 

ARTICLE IV. SEWER  

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY  

Sec. 42-290. - Administration.  

Except as otherwise provided herein, the Public Utilities Director shall administer, implement and 

enforce the provisions of this division. Any powers granted to or duties imposed upon the Public Utilities 

Director may be delegated by the Public Utilities Director to other City personnel.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-291. - Abbreviations.  

The following abbreviations shall have the designated meanings:  

BOD: Biochemical oxygen demand.  

CFR: Code of Federal Regulations.  

COD: Chemical oxygen demand.  

EPA: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.  

GPD: Gallons per day.  

L: Liter.  

MDNR: Missouri Department of Natural Resources.  

mg: Milligrams.  

mg/l: Milligrams per liter.  

NPDES: National pollutant discharge elimination system.  

NSCIU: Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User 

O&M: Operation and maintenance.  

PW: Publicly owned treatment works.  

RCRA: Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.  

SIC: Standard industrial classifications.  

SWDA: Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC 6901, et. seq.).  

TSS: Total suspended solids.  

USC: United States Code.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.3, 6-7-1993)  

 

170

#14.



  
 

Page 4 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

 

 

Sec. 42-292. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this division, shall have the meanings ascribed 

to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Act or the Act means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also known as the Clean Water Act, as 

amended, 33 USC 1251 et seq.  

Approval authority means the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR).  

Authorized representative of the industrial User means:  

(1) If the industrial User is a corporation, the term "authorized representative" shall mean:  

a. The president, secretary, treasurer, or a vice-president of the corporation in charge of a 

principal business function, or any other person who performs similar policy or decision 

making functions for the corporation;  

b. The manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operation facilities employing 

more than 250 persons or having gross annual sales or expenditures exceeding 

$25,000,000.00 (in second-quarter 1980 dollars), if authority to sign documents has been 

assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate procedures;  

(2) If the industrial User is a partnership, or sole proprietorship, an authorized representative shall 

mean a general partner or proprietor, respectively;  

(3) If the industrial User is a federal, state or local governmental facility, an authorized representative 

shall mean a director or highest official appointed or designated to oversee the operation and 

performance of the activities of the government facility, or his designee;  

(4) Persons responsible for the overall operation of a facility that generates discharges regulated 

under this chapter may designate another authorized representative if the authorization is in 

writing, the authorization specifies the individual or position responsible for the overall operation 

of the facility from which the discharge originates or have overall responsibility for environmental 

matters for the company, and the written authorization is submitted to the City.  

Best Management Practices or BMPs means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, 

maintenance procedures, and other management practices to implement the prohibitions listed in 

Sections 42-416(a) and (b) [40 CFR 403.5(a)(1) and (b)]. BMPs include treatment requirements, 

operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste 

disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage. 

Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) means the quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation 

of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure, five days at 20 degrees centigrade expressed in 

terms of mass and concentration (milligrams per liter (mg/l)).  

Building sewer means the extension from the building drain to the public sewer or other place of 

disposal. 

Categorical pretreatment standard or categorical standard means any regulation containing pollutant 

discharge limits promulgated by the U.S. EPA in accordance with section 307(b) and (c) of the Act (33 

USC 1317) which apply to a specific category of industrial Users and which appear in 40 CFR 405—

471.  

171

#14.



  
 

Page 5 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

Categorical Industrial User means an Industrial User subject to categorical Pretreatment Standard or 

categorical Standard. 

City means the City of Moberly or the City council of Moberly.  

Color means the optical density at the visual wave length of maximum absorption, relative to distilled 

water. One hundred percent transmittance is equivalent to zero optical density.  

Combined sewer means a sewer receiving both surface runoff and sewage.  

Composite sample means the sample resulting from the combination of individual wastewater samples 

taken at selected intervals based on an increment of either flow or time.  

Control Authority The City    

Daily Maximum means the arithmetic average of all effluent samples for a pollutant collected during a 

calendar day.      

Daily Maximum Limit means the maximum allowable discharge limit to a pollutant during a calendar 

day. Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in units of mass, the daily discharge is the total mass 

discharged over the course of the day. Where Daily Maximum Limits are expressed in terms of 

concentration, the daily discharge is the arithmetic average measurement of the pollutant concentration 

derived from all measurements taken that day. 

Enforcement officer means the Public Utilities Director or such other persons as are designated to 

enforce this article. 

Environmental Protection Agency or EPA means the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or, where 

appropriate, the term may also be used as a designation for the Regional Water Management Division 

Director or other duly authorized official of the agency.  

Existing source means any source of discharge, the construction or operation of which commenced 

prior to the publication of proposed categorical pretreatment standards which will be applicable to such 

source if the standard is thereafter promulgated in accordance with section 307 of the Act.  

Five-day biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) means the quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical 

oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure in five days at 20 degrees centigrade 

expressed in milligrams per liter. 

Garbage means solid wastes from the domestic and commercial preparation, cooking and dispensing 

of food, and from the handling, storage and sale of produce. 

Grab sample means a sample which is taken from a waste stream on a one-time basis without regard 

to the flow in the waste stream and without consideration of time.  

Indirect discharge or discharge means the introduction of (nondomestic) pollutants into the POTW 

from any nondomestic source regulated under section 307(b), (c) or (d) of the Act.  

Industrial User or User means a source of indirect discharge.  

Industrial wastes means the liquid wastes from industrial manufacturing processes, trade, or business 

as distinct from sanitary sewage.  

Instantaneous maximum allowable discharge limit means the maximum concentration (or loading) of 

a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any discrete or 

composited sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling 

event.  

Interference means a discharge which alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other 

sources:  

172

#14.



  
 

Page 6 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(1) Inhibits or disrupts the POTW, its treatment processes or operations or its sludge processes, use 

or disposal; and  

(2) Therefore is a cause of a violation of the City's NPDES permit or of the prevention of sewage 

sludge use or disposal in compliance with any of the following statutory/regulatory provisions or 

permits issued thereunder (or more stringent state or local regulations): section 405 of the Clean 

Water Act; the Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA), including Title II commonly referred to as 

the Resource Conversation and Recovery Act (RCRA); any State regulations contained in any 

State sludge management plan prepared pursuant to subtitle D of the SWDA; the Clean Air Act; 

the Toxic Substances Control Act; and the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act.  

Medical waste means isolation wastes, infectious agents, human blood and blood byproducts, 

pathological wastes, sharps, body parts, fomites, etiologic agents, contaminated bedding, surgical 

wastes, potentially contaminated laboratory wastes and dialysis wastes.  

Monthly Average means the sum of all “daily discharges” measured during a calendar month divided 

by the number of “daily discharges” measured during the month. 

Monthly Average Limit means the highest allowable average of “daily discharges” measured during a 

calendar month, calculated as the sum of all “daily discharges” measured during a calendar month 

divided by the number of “daily discharges” measured during the month. 

Natural outlet means any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body of surface water or 

groundwater.  

New source means:  

(1) Any building, structure, facility or installation from which there is or may be a discharge of 

pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the publication of proposed pretreatment 

standards under section 307(c) of the Act which will be applicable to such source if such standards 

are thereafter promulgated in accordance with that section, provided that:  

a. The building, structure, facility or installation is constructed at a site at which no other source 

is located;  

b. The building, structure, facility or installation totally replaces the process or production 

equipment that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing source; or  

c. The production or wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, facility or 

installation are substantially independent of an existing source at the same site. In 

determining whether these are substantially independent, factors such as the extent to which 

the new facility is integrated with the existing plant, and the extent to which the new facility 

is engaged in the same general type of activity as the existing source, should be considered.  

(2) Construction on a site at which an existing source is located results in a modification rather than 

a new source if the construction does not create a new building, structure, facility or installation 

meeting the criteria of subsection (1)b or c of this definition but otherwise alters, replaces, or adds 

to existing process or production equipment.  

(3) Construction of a new source as defined under this subsection has commenced if the owner or 

operator has:  

a. Begun, or caused to begin, as part of a continuous onsite construction program:  

173

#14.



  
 

Page 7 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

1. Any payment, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment; or  

2. Significant site preparation work, including clearing, excavation, or removal of 

existing buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary for the placement, 

assembly, or installation of new source facilities or equipment; or  

b. Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or equipment 

which are intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time. Options to purchase 

or contracts which can be terminated or modified without substantial loss, and contracts for 

feasibility, engineering, and design studies do not constitute a contractual obligation under 

this subsection.  

Noncontact cooling water means water used for cooling which does not come into direct contact with 

any raw material intermediate product, waste product, or finished product.  

Pass through means a discharge which exits the POTW into waters of the U.S. in quantities or 

concentrations which, alone or in conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, is a 

cause of a violation of any requirement of the City's NPDES permit (including an increase in the 

magnitude or duration of a violation).  

Person means any individual, partnership, copartnership, firm, company, corporation, association, joint 

stock company, trust, estate, governmental entity or any other legal entity, or their legal representatives, 

agents or assigns. This definition includes all federal, state or local governmental entities.  

pH means a measure of the acidity or alkalinity of a substance, expressed in standard units.  

Pollutant means any dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, 

munitions, medical wastes, chemical wastes, industrial wastes, biological materials, radioactive 

materials, heat, wrecked or discharged equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, agricultural and industrial 

wastes, and the characteristics of the wastewater (i.e., pH, temperature, TSS, turbidity, color, BOD, 

chemical oxygen demand (COD), toxicity, odor).  

Pretreatment means the reduction of the amount of pollutants, the elimination of pollutants, or the 

alteration of the nature of pollutant properties in wastewater prior to or in lieu of introducing such 

pollutants into the POTW. This reduction of alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical or 

biological processes, by process changes, or by other means, except by diluting the concentration of 

the pollutants unless allowed by an applicable pretreatment standard.  

Pretreatment Requirement means any substantive or procedural requirement related to pretreatment 

imposed on an industrial User, other than a pretreatment standard.  

Pretreatment Standards or Standards means prohibitive discharge standards, categorical pretreatment 

standards, and local limits.  

Prohibited Discharge Standards or prohibited discharges means absolute prohibitions against the 

discharge of certain substances; these prohibitions appear in section 42-416.  

Public sewer means a sewer in which all owners of abutting properties have equal rights, and is 

controlled by public authority.  

Public Utilities Director or Director means the person designated by the City to supervise the operation 

of the POTW and who is charged with certain duties and responsibilities by this ordinance. The term 

also means a Duly Authorized Representative of the Public Utilities Director.  

Publicly Owned Treatment Works or POTW means a treatment works as defined by section 212 of the 

Act (33 USC 1292), which is owned by the City. The term "POTW" includes any devices or systems 

used in the collection, storage, treatment, recycling and reclamation of sewage or industrial wastes and 

any conveyances which convey wastewater to a treatment plant. The term "POTW" also means the 

174

#14.



  
 

Page 8 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

municipal entity having jurisdiction over the industrial Users and responsibility for the operation and 

maintenance of the treatment works.  

Sanitary sewer means a sewer which carries sewage and to which stormwaters, surface waters, and 

groundwaters are not intentionally admitted.  

Septic Tank Waste means any sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets, campers 

trailers, and septic tanks.  

Sewage means a combination of the water-carried wastes from residences, business buildings, 

institutions and industrial establishments, together with such groundwater, surface water and 

stormwater as may be present. 

Sewer means a pipe or conduit for carrying sewage.  

Sewerage system means all facilities for collecting, pumping, treating and disposing of sewage. 

Significant Industrial User (SIU) means:  

(1) Industrial Users subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards; and  

(2) Any other Industrial User that:  

a. Discharges an average of 25,000 gpd or more of process wastewater;  

b. Contributes a process wastestream which makes up five percent or more of the average dry 

weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the treatment plant; or  

c. Is designated as significant by the City on the basis that the industrial User has a reasonable 

potential for adversely affecting the POTW's operation or for violating any pretreatment 

standard or requirement.  

(3) The City may determine that an Industrial User subject to categorical Pretreatment Standards is a 

Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User rather than a Significant Industrial User on a finding 

that the Industrial User never discharges more than 100 gallons per day (gpd) of total categorical 

wastewater (excluding sanitary, non-contact cooling and boiler blowdown wastewater, unless 

specifically included in the Pretreatment Standard) and the following conditions are met: 

a. The Industrial User, prior to City’s finding, has consistently complied with all applicable 

categorical Pretreatment Standards and Requirements; 

b. The Industrial User annually submits the certification statement required in 42-553(b), 

together with any additional information necessary to support the certification statement; and 

c. The Industrial User never discharges any untreated concentrated wastewater. 

(4) Upon a finding that a User meeting the criteria in Subsection (2) of this part has no reasonable 

potential for adversely affecting the POTW’s operation or for violating any Pretreatment Standard 

or Requirement, the City may at any time, on its own initiative or in response to a petition received 

from an Industrial User, and in accordance with procedures in 40 CFR 403.8(f)(6), determine that 

such User should not be considered a Significant Industrial User. 

Slug load means any discharge at a flow rate or concentration which could cause a violation of the 

prohibited discharge standards in section 42-416 or any discharge of a nonroutine, episodic nature, 

including. but not limited to, an accidental spill or a noncustomary batch discharge.  

Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code means a classification pursuant to the Standard Industrial 

Classification Manual issued by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget.  

Stormwater means any flow occurring during or following any form of natural precipitation, and 

resulting therefrom, including snowmelt.  

175

#14.



  
 

Page 9 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

Total Suspended Solids or Suspended Solids means the total suspended matter than floats on the surface 

of, or is suspended in, water, wastewater, or other liquid, and which is removable by laboratory filtering.  

Toxic pollutant means one of 126 pollutants, or combination of those pollutants, listed as toxic in 

regulations promulgated by the EPA under the provision of section 307 of the Act (33 USC 1317).  

Treatment facility means any arrangement of biological organisms, devices and structures used for 

treating sewage. 

Treatment plant effluent means any discharge of pollutants from the POTW into waters of the state.  

Wastewater means liquid and water-carried industrial wastes, and sewage from residential dwellings, 

commercial buildings, industrial and manufacturing facilities, and institutions, whether treated or 

untreated, which are contributed to the POTW.  

Wastewater treatment plant or treatment plant means that portion of the POTW designed to provide 

treatment of sewage and industrial waste.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.4, 6-7-1993)

(Code 1965, §§ 30-34.1, 30-94; Code 1987, § 28-91) 

DIVISION 2. - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Sec. 42-293. - Vandalism and damaging sewage works equipment.  

No person shall maliciously, willfully or negligently break, damage, destroy, uncover, deface, tamper 

with or prevent access to any structure, appurtenance or equipment, or other part of the POTW. Any person 

found in violation of this requirement shall be subject to the sanctions set out in subdivisions IX through 

XI of this division.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-294. - Abandonment of sewers.  

It is unlawful for any person to disconnect or abandon any connection to a sewer in the City without 

conforming to the following:  

(a) The enforcement officer shall be notified in writing in advance that a sewer connection is to be 

abandoned.  

(b) The sewer service shall be dug out at the joint of the pipe closest to the City lateral and a vitrified clay 

plug placed in the bell nearest to the lateral main. No opening to the sewer for abandoning a sewer 

connection shall be closed until the enforcement officer has an opportunity to inspect how the tap has 

been disconnected and plugged. If, in the opinion of the enforcement officer, the sewer tap or saddle 

connection is in poor condition, or if a violation of the City's plumbing code is revealed, the service 

tap shall be capped off in a manner satisfactory to the enforcement officer and in accordance with the 

plumbing code of the City.  

(Code 1965, § 30-54; Code 1987, § 28-95) 

Sec. 42-295. - Use of public sewers required.  

(a) It is unlawful for any person to place, deposit or permit to be deposited in any unsanitary manner on 

public or private property within the City, or in any area under the jurisdiction of such City, any human 

or animal excrement, garbage or other objectionable waste.  

176

#14.



  
 

Page 10 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(b) It is unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet within the City, or in any area under the jurisdiction of 

such City, any sewage or other polluted waters, except where suitable treatment has been provided in 

accordance with subsequent provisions of this article.  

(c) Except as otherwise provided, it is unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, 

cesspool or other facility intended or used for the disposal of sewage.  

(d) The owner of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human occupancy, employment, recreation 

or other purposes, situated within the City and abutting on any street, alley or right-of-way in which 

there is now located or may in the future be located a public sanitary sewer of the City, shall at such 

owner's expense install suitable toilet facilities therein, and connect such facilities directly with the 

proper public sewer in accordance with the provisions of this article, within 90 days after date of 

official notice to do so, provided that such public sewer is located within 500 feet of either: (i) the 

location of the sewer connection exit point, in the case of an existing structure; or (ii) the nearest 

exterior line of the structure, in the case of new or pending construction, of the principal building used 

or to be used for human occupancy, employment, or recreation situated or to be situated on the 

property, which distance shall be measured within the lot lines of the property along the shortest 

distance to the public sewer and along the abutting street, alley or right-of-way in which is located a 

public sanitary sewer. The 500 foot measurement shall not include or be taken along or across the 

property of another owner.  

(e) Connection to public sewer requires connection to City water where available.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-55—30-58; Code 1987, § 28-96; Ord. No. 9464 , § 1, 7-2-2018) 

Secs. 42-298–42-320. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 3. - PRIVATE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS  

Sec. 42-321. - When permitted.  

Where a public sanitary sewer is not available, the building sewer shall be connected to a private 

sewage disposal system complying with the provisions of this division. 

(Code 1965, § 30-59; Code 1987, § 28-111) 

Sec. 42-322. - Additional requirements authorized.  

No statement contained in this division shall be construed to interfere with any additional requirements 

that may be imposed by the health officer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-65; Code 1987, § 28-112) 

Sec. 42-323. - Private Sewage Disposal System Permit.  

(a) Before commencement of construction of a private sewage disposal system, the owner shall first obtain 

a written permit signed by the enforcement officer. The application for such permit shall be made on 

a form furnished by the City, which the applicant shall supplement by any plans, specifications and 

other information as are deemed necessary by the enforcement officer.  

(b) A permit for a private sewage disposal system shall not become effective until the installation is 

completed to the satisfaction of the enforcement officer. He shall be allowed to inspect the work at any 

stage of construction and, in any event, the applicant for the permit shall notify the enforcement officer 

177

#14.



  
 

Page 11 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

when the work is ready for final inspection, and before any underground portions are covered. The 

inspection shall be made within 24 hours of the receipt of notice by the enforcement officer.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-60, 30-61; Code 1987, § 28-113)  

 

 

Sec. 42-324. - Construction standards.  

The type, capacities, location and layout of a private sewage disposal system shall comply with all 

recommendations of the department of public health of the state. No permit shall be issued for any private 

sewage disposal system employing soil absorption facilities where the area of the lot is less than three acres. 

No septic tank or cesspool shall be permitted to discharge to any natural outlet.  

(Code 1965, § 30-62; Code 1987, § 28-114) 

Sec. 42-325. - Abandonment when public sewer becomes available.  

At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a private sewage disposal 

system, a direct connection shall be made to the public sewer in compliance with this division, and any 

septic tanks, cesspools and similar private sewage disposal facilities shall be abandoned and filled with 

suitable material. When a public sewer becomes available, the building sewer shall be connected to such 

sewer within 90 days and the private sewage disposal system shall be cleaned of sludge and filled with 

clean bank-run gravel or dirt.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-63, 30-66; Code 1987, § 28-115) 

Sec. 42-326. - Maintenance.  

The owner shall operate and maintain the private sewage disposal facilities in a sanitary manner at all 

times, at no expense to the City.  

(Code 1965, § 30-64; Code 1987, § 28-116) 

Secs. 42-327–42-347. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 4. - BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS  

Sec. 42-348. - Connection permit.  

No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connection with or opening into, use, alter or disturb 

any public sewer or appurtenance thereof without first obtaining a written permit from the enforcement 

officer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-67; Code 1987, § 28-131) 

Sec. 42-349. - Sewer taps on Reed Street sewer.  

No person shall tap onto or permit a tap to be made onto the Reed Street sewer located in Reed Street 

at any point between Johnson Street and Morley Street in the City. Any person desiring to connect with the 

Reed Street sewer shall do so by tapping onto the main laterals, which laterals empty into the Reed Street 

sewer.  

178

#14.



  
 

Page 12 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(Code 1965, § 30-45; Code 1987, § 28-132) 

Sec. 42-350. - Separate building sewers required.  

A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every building, except where one 

building stands at the rear of another on an interior lot and no private sewer is available or can be constructed 

to the rear building through an adjoining alley, court, yard or driveway, the building sewer from the front 

building may be extended to the rear building and the whole considered as one building sewer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-69; Code 1987, § 28-133) 

Sec. 42-351. - Use of old building sewers.  

Old building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they are found, on 

examination and test by the enforcement officer, to meet all requirements of this division.  

(Code 1965, § 30-70; Code 1987, § 28-134) 

Sec. 42-352. - General design and excavation standards.  

The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a building sewer and the methods to be used 

in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing and backfilling the trench shall all conform to the 

requirements of the building code and plumbing code or other applicable rules and regulations of the City. 

In the absence of code provisions or in amplification thereof, the materials and procedures set forth in 

appropriate specifications of the rules of state department of natural resources, title 10, chapter 8, Design 

Guides, shall apply.  

(Code 1965, § 30-71; Code 1987, § 28-135) 

Sec. 42-353. - Elevation of connection with building drain.  

Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building at an elevation below the 

basement floor. In all buildings in which any building drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public 

sewer, sanitary sewage carried by such building drain shall be lifted by an approved means and discharged 

to the building sewer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-72; Code 1987, § 28-136) 

Sec. 42-354. - Building sewer connection with public sewer.  

(a) The connection of the building sewer into the public sewer shall conform to the requirements of the 

building code and plumbing code or other applicable rules and regulations of the City or the procedures 

set forth in appropriate specifications of the rules of state department of natural resources, title 10, 

chapter 8, Design Guides. All such connections shall be made gastight and watertight. Any deviation 

from the prescribed procedures and materials must be approved by the enforcement officer before 

installation.  

(b) The applicant for the building sewer permit shall notify the enforcement officer when the building 

sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the public sewer. The connection shall be made under 

the supervision of the enforcement officer or his representative.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-74, 30-75; Code 1987, § 28-137) 

Sec. 42-355. - Connections of surface run-off or groundwater drains.  

179

#14.



  
 

Page 13 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

No person shall make connection of roof downspouts, interior and exterior foundation drains, areaway 

drains, sump pumps or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a building sewer or building drain 

which in turn is connected directly or indirectly to a public sanitary sewer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-73; Code 1987, § 28-138)  

 

 

Sec. 42-356. - Excavations.  

All excavations for building sewer installation shall be adequately guarded with barricades to protect 

the public from hazard. Streets, sidewalks, parkways and other public property disturbed in the course of 

the work shall be restored in a manner satisfactory to the City.  

(Code 1965, § 30-76; Code 1987, § 28-139) 

Sec. 42-357. - Costs and indemnification of City.  

All costs and expense incident to the installation and connection of the building sewer shall be borne 

by the owner. The owner shall indemnify the City from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly 

be occasioned by the installation of the building sewer. No claim shall be allowed to any person who is 

connected to any public sewer against the City by reason of the bursting or collapsing of any building sewer 

or building sewer connection or caused by the blockage of any building sewer or by reason of the flow of 

the building sewer backing up into the building sewer or structure which is connected to the public sewer.  

(Code 1965, § 30-68; Code 1987, § 28-140) 

Secs. 42-358–42-381. - Reserved.  

DIVISION 5. - DISCHARGE REGULATIONS  

Sec. 42-382. - Unpolluted water. 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any stormwater, surface water, groundwater, roof 

run-off, subsurface drainage, uncontaminated cooling water or unpolluted industrial process waters to any 

sanitary sewer. Stormwater and all other unpolluted drainage shall be discharged to such sewers as are 

specifically designated as combined sewers or storm sewers or to a natural outlet approved by the 

enforcement officer. Industrial cooling water or unpolluted process waters may be discharged, on approval 

of the building inspector, to a storm sewer, combined sewer or natural outlet.  

(Code 1965, §§ 30-77, 30-78; Code 1987, § 28-156) 

Sec. 42-383. - Pretreatment and flow-equalizing facilities.  

Where preliminary treatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided for any waters or wastes, they 

shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective operation by the owner at his expense. Plans, 

specifications and any other pertinent information relating to proposed preliminary treatment facilities shall 

be submitted for the approval of the City, and no construction of such facilities shall be commenced until 

such approvals are obtained in writing.  

(Code 1965, § 30-83, 30-97; Code 1987, § 28-160) 

180

#14.



  
 

Page 14 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

Sec. 42-384. - Control manholes.  

When required by the enforcement officer, the owner of any property serviced by a building sewer 

carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable control manhole together with such necessary meters and 

other appurtenances in the building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of the 

wastes. Such manhole, when required, shall be accessibly and safely located, and shall be constructed in 

accordance with plans approved by the enforcement officer. The manhole shall be installed by the owner 

at his expense and shall be maintained by him to be safe and accessible at all times.  

Secs. 42-385–42-397. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 6. - PRETREATMENT OF CERTAIN WASTEWATER DISCHARGES  

Subdivision I. - In General  

Sec. 42-398. - Purpose and policy.  

(a) This division sets forth uniform requirements for Users of the wastewater collection and publicly 

owned treatment works (POTW) for the City and enables the City to comply with all state and federal 

laws including the Clean Water Act (33 USC 1251 et seq.), and the General Pretreatment Regulations 

(40 CFR 403). The objectives of this division are:  

(1) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the POTW that will interfere with the operation of 

the POTW;  

(2) To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the POTW which will pass through the POTW, 

inadequately treated, into receiving waters of otherwise be incompatible with the POTW;  

(3) To ensure that the quality of the wastewater treatment plant sludge is maintained at a level which 

allows its use and disposal in compliance with applicable statutes and regulations;  

(4) To protect POTW personnel who may be affected by wastewater and sludge in the course of their 

employment and to protect the general public;  

(5) To improve the opportunity to recycle and reclaim wastewater and sludge from the POTW;  

(6) To provide for fees for the equitable distribution of the cost of operation, maintenance and 

improvement of the POTW; and  

(7) To enable the City to comply with its NPDES permit conditions, sludge use and disposal 

requirements and any other federal or state laws to which the POTW is subject.  

(b) This division shall apply to all Users of the POTW. This division authorizes the issuance of wastewater 

discharge permits; authorizes monitoring, compliance and enforcement activities; establishes 

administrative review procedures; requires industrial User reporting; and provides for the setting of 

fees for the equitable distribution of costs resulting from the program established herein.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 1.1, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-399–42-415. - Reserved. 

Subdivision II. - General Sewer Use Requirements  

Sec. 42-416. - Prohibited discharge standards.  

(a) General Prohibitions. No User shall introduce or cause to be introduced into the POTW any pollutant 

or wastewater which causes pass through or interference. These general prohibitions apply to all 

181

#14.



  
 

Page 15 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

industrial Users of the POTW whether or not they are subject to categorical pretreatment standards or 

any other national, state or local pretreatment standards or requirement.  

(b) Specific Prohibitions. Furthermore, no industrial User may introduce or cause to be introduced into 

the POTW the following pollutants, substances, or wastewater:  

(1) Pollutants which create a fire or explosive hazard in the municipal wastewater collection and 

POTW, including, but not limited to, wastestreams with a closed-cup flashpoint of less than 140 

degrees Fahrenheit (60 degrees Celsius) using the test methods specified in 40 CFR 261.21.  

(2) Any wastewater having a pH less than 6.0 or more than 11, or otherwise causing corrosive 

structural damage to the POTW or equipment, or endangering City personnel.  

(3) Solid or viscous substances in amounts which will cause obstruction of the flow in the POTW 

resulting in interference, but in no case solids greater than three (3) inches in any dimension.  

(4) Any wastewater containing pollutants, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, etc.), 

released in a discharge at a flow rate or pollutant concentration which, either singly or by 

interaction with other pollutants, will cause interference with either the POTW; or any wastewater 

treatment or sludge process, or which will constitute a hazard to humans or animals.  

(5) Any wastewater having a temperature greater than 104 degrees Fahrenheit (40 degrees Celsius), 

or which will inhibit biological activity in the treatment plant resulting in interference.  

(6) Petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oil or products of mineral oil origin, in amounts that will 

cause interference or pass through.  

(7) Any pollutants which result in the presence of toxic gases, vapors, or fumes within the POTW in 

a quantity that may cause acute worker health and safety problems.  

(8) Any trucked or hauled pollutants, except at discharge points designated by the City in accordance 

with section 42-454.  

(9) Any noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, solids, or other wastewater which, either singly or by 

interaction with other wastes, are sufficient to create a public nuisance, a hazard to life, or to 

prevent entry into the sewers for maintenance and repair.  

(10) Any wastewater which imparts color which cannot be removed by the treatment process, such as, 

but not limited to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning solutions, which consequently imparts color 

to the treatment plant's effluent thereby violating the City's NPDES permit. Color (in combination 

with turbidity) shall not cause the treatment plant effluent to reduce the depth of the compensation 

point for photosynthetic activity by more than ten percent from the seasonably established norm 

for aquatic life.  

(11) Any wastewater containing any radioactive wastes or isotopes except as specifically approved by 

the Director in compliance with applicable state or federal regulations.  

(12) Stormwater, surface water, groundwater, artesian well water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, 

swimming pool drainage, condensate, deionized water, noncontact cooling water, and unpolluted 

industrial wastewater, unless specifically authorized by the Director.  

(13) Any sludges, screenings, or other residues from the pretreatment of industrial wastes.  

(14) Any medical wastes, except as specifically authorized by the Director in a wastewater discharge 

permit.  

(15) Any wastewater causing the treatment plant's effluent to fail a toxicity test.  

(16) Any wastes containing detergents, surface active agents, or other substances which may cause 

excessive foaming in the POTW.  

182

#14.



  
 

Page 16 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(17) Any discharge of fats, oils, or greases of animal or vegetable origin is limited to 100 mg/l.  

(18) At no time shall two readings on an explosion hazard meter at the point of discharge into the 

POTW, or at any point in the POTW, be more than five percent nor any single reading over ten 

percent of the lower explosive limit (LEL) of the meter. 

(c) Wastes prohibited by this section shall not be processed or stored in such a manner that they could be 

discharged to the POTW. All floor drains located in process or materials storage areas must discharge 

to the industrial User's pretreatment facility before connecting with the POTW.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-417. - National categorical pretreatment standards.  

Users must comply with the categorical Pretreatment Standards found at 40 CFR Chapter I, Subchapter 

N, Parts 405–471.  

(a) Where a categorical Pretreatment Standard is expressed only in terms of either the mass or the 

concentration of a pollutant in wastewater, the Director may impose equivalent concentration or mass 

limits in accordance with Section 42-417(e) and 42-417(f).  

(b) When the limits in a categorical Pretreatment Standard are expressed only in terms of mass of pollutant 

per unit of production, the Director may convert the limits to equivalent limitations expressed either 

as mass of pollutant discharged per day or effluent concentration for purposes of calculating effluent 

limitations applicable to individual Industrial Users.  

(c) When wastewater subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard is mixed with wastewater not 

regulated by the same Standard, the Director shall impose an alternate limit in accordance with 40 

CFR 403.6(e). 

(d) A CIU may obtain a net/gross adjustment to a categorical Pretreatment Standard in accordance with 

the following paragraphs of this Section.  

(1) Categorical Pretreatment Standards may be adjusted to reflect the presence of pollutants in the 

Industrial User’s intake water in accordance with this Section. Any Industrial User wishing to 

obtain credit for intake pollutants must make application to the City. Upon request of the 

Industrial User, the applicable Standard will be calculated on a “net” basis (i.e., adjusted to reflect 

credit for pollutants in the intake water) if the requirements of paragraph (2) of this Section are 

met. 

(2) Criteria. 

a. Either (i) The applicable categorical Pretreatment Standards contained in 40 CFR subchapter 

N specifically provide that they shall be applied on a net basis; or (ii) The Industrial User 

demonstrates that the control system it proposes or uses to meet applicable categorical 

Pretreatment Standards would, if properly installed and operated, meet the Standards in the 

absence of pollutants in the intake waters. 

b. Credit for generic pollutants such as biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), total suspended 

solids (TSS), and oil and grease should not be granted unless the Industrial User 

demonstrates that the constituents of the generic measure in the User’s effluent are 

substantially similar to the constituents of the generic measure in the intake water or unless 

appropriate additional limits are placed on process water pollutants either at the outfall or 

elsewhere. 

c. Credit shall be granted only to the extent necessary to meet the applicable categorical 

Pretreatment Standard(s), up to a maximum value equal to the influent value. Additional 

183

#14.



  
 

Page 17 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

monitoring may be necessary to determine eligibility for credits and compliance with 

Standard(s) adjusted under this Section. 

d. Credit shall be granted only if the User demonstrates that the intake water is drawn from the 

same body of water as that into which the POTW discharges. The [City] may waive this 

requirement if it finds that no environmental degradation will result. 

(e) When a categorical Pretreatment Standard is expressed only in terms of pollutant concentrations, an 

Industrial User may request that the City convert the limits to equivalent mass limits. The 

determination to convert concentration limits to mass limits is within the discretion of the Director. 

The City may establish equivalent mass limits only if the Industrial User meets all the conditions set 

forth in Sections 42-417(e)(1)a through 42-417(e)(1)e below. 

(1) To be eligible for equivalent mass limits, the Industrial User must: 

a. Employ, or demonstrate that it will employ, water conservation methods and technologies 

that substantially reduce water use during the term of its individual wastewater discharge 

permit; 

b. Currently use control and treatment technologies adequate to achieve compliance with the 

applicable categorical Pretreatment Standard, and not have used dilution as a substitute for 

treatment; 

c. Provide sufficient information to establish the facility’s actual average daily flow rate for all 

wastestreams, based on data from a continuous effluent flow monitoring device, as well as 

the facility’s long-term average production rate. Both the actual average daily flow rate and 

the long-term average production rate must be representative of current operating conditions; 

d. Not have daily flow rates, production levels, or pollutant levels that vary so significantly that 

equivalent mass limits are not appropriate to control the Discharge; and 

e. Have consistently complied with all applicable categorical Pretreatment Standards during 

the period prior to the Industrial User’s request for equivalent mass limits.  

(2) An Industrial User subject to equivalent mass limits must: 

a. Maintain and effectively operate control and treatment technologies adequate to achieve 

compliance with the equivalent mass limits; 

b. Continue to record the facility’s flow rates through the use of a continuous effluent flow 

monitoring device; 

c. Continue to record the facility’s production rates and notify the Director whenever 

production rates are expected to vary by more than 20 percent from its baseline production 

rates determined in paragraph 42-417(f)(1)c of this Section.  Upon notification of a revised 

production rate, the Director will reassess the equivalent mass limit and revise the limit as 

necessary to reflect changed conditions at the facility; and 

d. Continue to employ the same or comparable water conservation methods and technologies 

as those implemented pursuant to paragraphs 42-417(e)(1)a of this Section so long as it 

discharges under an equivalent mass limit. 

(3) When developing equivalent mass limits, the Director: 

a. Will calculate the equivalent mass limit by multiplying the actual average daily flow rate of 

the regulated process(es) of the Industrial User by the concentration-based Daily Maximum 

and Monthly Average Standard for the applicable categorical Pretreatment Standard and the 

appropriate unit conversion factor; 

184

#14.



  
 

Page 18 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

b. Upon notification of a revised production rate, will reassess the equivalent mass limit and 

recalculate the limit as necessary to reflect changed conditions at the facility; and 

c. May retain the same equivalent mass limit in subsequent individual wastewater discharger 

permit terms if the Industrial User’s actual average daily flow rate was reduced solely as a 

result of the implementation of water conservation methods and technologies, and the actual 

average daily flow rates used in the original calculation of the equivalent mass limit were 

not based on the use of dilution as a substitute for treatment pursuant to Section 42-421. The 

Industrial User must also be in compliance with Section 42-756 regarding the prohibition of 

bypass. 

(f) The Director may convert the mass limits of the categorical Pretreatment Standards of 40 CFR Parts 

414, 419, and 455 to concentration limits for purposes of calculating limitations applicable to 

individual Industrial Users. The conversion is at the discretion of the Director. 

(g) Once included in its permit, the Industrial User must comply with the equivalent limitations developed 

in this Section 42-417 in lieu of the promulgated categorical Standards from which the equivalent 

limitations were derived.  

(h) Many categorical Pretreatment Standards specify one limit for calculating maximum daily discharge 

limitations and a second limit for calculating maximum Monthly Average, or 4-day average, 

limitations. Where such Standards are being applied, the same production or flow figure shall be used 

in calculating both the average and the maximum equivalent limitation.  

(i) Any Industrial User operating under a permit incorporating equivalent mass or concentration limits 

calculated from a production-based Standard shall notify the Director within two (2) business days 

after the User has a reasonable basis to know that the production level will significantly change within 

the next calendar month. Any User not notifying the Director of such anticipated change will be 

required to meet the mass or concentration limits in its permit that were based on the original estimate 

of the long term average production rate.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-418. - State Pretreatment Standards 

State of Missouri requirements and limitations on discharges pursuant to this article shall apply when 

they are more stringent than U.S. Environmental Protection Agency or Board requirements and limitations 

unless allowed by the Missouri Department of Natural Resources.  

Sec. 42-419. - Local Limits.  

(a) The Director is authorized to establish Local Limits pursuant to 40 CFR 403.5(c). (reserved). 

(b) The Director may develop Best Management Practices (BMPs), by ordinance or in individual 

wastewater discharge permits to implement Local Limits and the requirements of Section 42-416. 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-420. - City's right of revision.  

The City reserves the right to establish, by ordinance or in wastewater discharge permits, more 

stringent standards or requirements on discharges to the POTW consistent with the purpose of this 

ordinance.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.4, 6-7-1993) 

185

#14.



  
 

Page 19 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

Sec. 42-421. - Dilution.  

No User shall ever increase the use of process water, or in any way attempt to dilute a discharge, as a 

partial or complete substitute for adequate treatment to achieve compliance with a discharge limitation 

unless expressly authorized by an applicable pretreatment standard or requirement. The Director may 

impose mass limitations on Users which are using dilution to meet applicable pretreatment standards or 

requirements, or in other cases when the imposition of mass limitations is appropriate.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 2.6, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-422–42-448. - Reserved. 

Subdivision III. - Pretreatment of Wastewater  

Sec. 42-449. - Pretreatment facilities.  

Users shall provide necessary wastewater treatment as required to comply with this subdivision and 

shall achieve compliance with all categorical pretreatment standards, local limits, and the prohibitions set 

out in section 42-416 within the time limitations specified by the EPA, the state, or the Director, whichever 

is more stringent. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewater to a level acceptable to the City shall be 

provided, operated, and maintained at the industrial User's expense. Detailed plans showing the 

pretreatment facilities and operating procedures shall be submitted to the Director for review, and shall be 

acceptable to the Director before construction of the facility. The review of such plans and operating 

procedures shall in no way relieve the User from the responsibility of modifying the facilities as necessary 

to produce an acceptable discharge to the City under the provisions of this ordinance.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-450. - Additional pretreatment measures.  

(a) Whenever deemed necessary, the Director or designee may require Users to restrict their discharge 

during peak flow periods, designate that certain wastewater be discharged only into specific sewers, 

relocate and/or consolidate points of discharge, separate sewage waste streams from industrial waste 

streams, and such other conditions as may be necessary to protect the POTW and determine the User’s 

compliance with the requirements of this ordinance. 

(b) The Director may require any person discharging into the POTW to install and maintain, on their 

property and at their expense, a suitable storage and flow-control facility to ensure equalization of 

flow. An individual wastewater discharge permit may be issued solely for flow equalization. 

(c) Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the Director or designee, 

they are necessary for the proper handling of wastewater containing excessive amounts of grease and 

oil, or sand; except that such interceptors shall not be required for residential Users. All interception 

units shall be of a type and capacity approved by the Director or designee, Shall comply with the 

following City ordinance: Chapter 42; Division 4: Discharge Regulations; Section 42-385 and shall be 

so located to be easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. Such interceptors shall be inspected, 

cleaned, and repaired by the User at their expense.  

(d) Industrial Users with the potential to discharge flammable substances may be required to install and 

maintain an approved combustible gas detection meter.  

Sec. 42-451. - Grease, oil and sand interceptors. (Relocated section) 

186

#14.



  
 

Page 20 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(a) Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the enforcement officer, 

they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts or 

any flammable wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients; except that such interceptors shall not be 

required for private living quarters or dwelling units. All interceptors shall be located as to be readily 

and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection.  

(b) All grease traps shall be cleaned out and inspected annually with the inspection to be documented to 

the Director on an approved form. The inspections may be completed by the company providing the 

cleaning and removal of grease from the grease trap, or in the case of small, under-sink grease traps, 

the owner or manager of the facility may provide the certification.  

(c) Facilities required to have a grease trap shall maintain records of the cleaning and maintenance of all 

grease traps. Such records shall be kept at the location of the facility required to have a grease trap for 

a period of three years.  

(d) Failure to provide certification of the maintenance requirements shall result in a $100.00 to $500.00 

fine.  

(e) If a City sewer backs up due to grease in the main, the facilities connected to that portion of the 

collection system shall be subject to inspection including a review of the cleaning records.  

(f) Any facilities that have not cleaned the grease trap properly, or the grease trap is not working properly, 

may be held liable for any damage caused by the sewer back up, even if the damage is to another 

facility or property.  

(g) Any existing facility that has an under-sink grease trap that has repeated problems with discharges of 

grease into the City sewer main shall be required to install a larger grease trap. City inspectors shall 

be allowed access to the grease trap for the purposes of inspection during normal business hours.  

(h) Sizing and installation of grease traps shall meet the requirements of the City's current building and 

construction codes.  

(Code 1965, § 30-82; Code 1987, § 28-162; Ord. No. 7597, § 1, 6-16-2003)

Sec. 42-452. - Accidental discharge/slug control plans.  

The Director shall evaluate whether each SIU needs an accidental discharge/slug discharge control 

plan or other action to control Slug Discharges. The Director may require any User to develop, submit for 

approval, and implement such a plan or take such other action that may be necessary to control Slug 

Discharges. Alternatively, the Director may develop such a plan for any User. An accidental discharge/slug 

discharge control plan shall address, at a minimum, the following:  

(a) Description of discharge practices, including nonroutine batch discharges.  

(b) Description of stored chemicals.  

(c) Procedures for immediately notifying the POTW of any accidental or slug discharge. Such notification 

must also be given for any discharge which would violate any of the prohibited discharges in section 

42-416.  

(d) Procedures to prevent adverse impact from any accidental or slug discharge. Such procedures include, 

but are not limited to, inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of materials, 

loading and unloading operations, control of plant site run-off, worker training, building of 

containment structures or equipment, measures for containing toxic organic pollutants (including 

solvents), or measures and equipment for emergency response.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.3, 6-7-1993) 

187

#14.



  
 

Page 21 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

Sec. 42-453. - Tenant responsibility.  

Where an owner of property leases premises to any other person as a tenant, under any rental or lease 

agreement, if either the owner or the tenant is an industrial User, either or both may be held responsible for 

compliance with the provisions of this subdivision.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.4, 6-7-1993)  

 

Sec. 42-454. - Hauled wastewater.  

(a) Septic tank waste may be accepted into the POTW at a designated receiving structure within the 

treatment plant area, and at such times as are established by the Director, provided such wastes do not 

violate section 42-416 or any other requirements established or adopted by the City. The Director may 

require septic tank waste haulers to obtain individual wastewater discharge permits.  

(b) The discharge of hauled industrial wastes as industrial septage requires prior approval and a 

wastewater discharge permit from the City. The Director shall have authority to prohibit the disposal 

of such wastes, if such disposal would interfere with the treatment plant operation. Waste haulers are 

subject to all other sections of this subdivision.  

(c) Industrial waste haulers may discharge loads only at locations designated by the Director. No load may 

be discharged without prior consent. Samples may be collected of each hauled load to ensure 

compliance with applicable standards. The Director may require the industrial waste hauler to provide 

a waste analysis of any load prior to discharge.  

(d) Industrial waste haulers must provide a waste-tracking form for every load. This form shall include, at 

a minimum, the name and address of the industrial waste hauler, permit number, truck identification, 

names and addresses of sources of waste, and volume and characteristics of waste. The form shall 

identify the type of industry, known or suspected waste constituents, and whether any wastes are 

RCRA hazardous wastes.  

(e) Fees for dumping septage will be established as part of the industrial User fee system as authorized in 

section 42-839.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 3.5, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-455–42-470. - Reserved.  

Subdivision IV. - Individual Wastewater Discharge Permits  

Sec. 42-471. - Wastewater analysis.  

When requested by the Public Utilities Director, all Users must submit information on the nature and 

characteristics of their wastewater by completing a wastewater survey prior to commencing their discharge 

within sixty (60) days of the request. The Director is authorized to prepare a form for this purpose and may 

periodically require industrial Users to update the survey. Failure to complete this survey shall be 

reasonable grounds for terminating service to the User and shall be considered a violation of this 

subdivision.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-472. - Individual wastewater discharge permit requirement.  

188

#14.



  
 

Page 22 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any Significant Industrial User to discharge wastewater in the City's POTW 

without first obtaining a wastewater discharge permit from the Director, except that a Significant 

Industrial User that has filed a timely application pursuant to Section 42-473 of this ordinance may 

continue to discharge for the time period specified therein  

(b) The Director may require other industrial Users, including liquid waste haulers, to obtain wastewater 

discharge permits as necessary to carry out the purposes of this subdivision.  

(c) Any violation of the terms and conditions of a wastewater discharge permit shall be deemed a violation 

of this subdivision and subjects the wastewater discharge permittee to the sanctions set out in 

subdivisions X through XII of this division. Obtaining a wastewater discharge permit does not relieve 

a permittee of its obligation to comply with all federal and state pretreatment standards or requirements 

or with any other requirements of federal, state and local law. 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.2, 6-7-1993)  

Sec. 42-473. - Individual wastewater discharge permitting: existing connections.  

Any User which discharges industrial waste into the POTW prior to the effective date of the ordinance 

from which this subdivision is derived and who wishes to continue such discharges in the future, shall, 

within 90 days after the date, apply to the City for an individual wastewater discharge permit in accordance 

with section 42-475, and shall not cause or allow discharges to the POTW to continue after 180 days of the 

effective date of the ordinance from which this subdivision is derived except in accordance with a 

wastewater discharge permit issued by the Director.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-474. - Individual wastewater discharge permitting: new connections.  

Any User proposing to begin or recommence discharging industrial wastes into the POTW must obtain 

an individual wastewater discharge permit prior to the beginning or recommencing of such discharge. An 

application for this individual wastewater discharge permit, in accordance with 42-475 of this ordinance, 

must be filed at least 90 days prior to the date upon which any discharge will begin.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.4, 6-7-1993)

Sec. 42-475. - Wastewater discharge permit application contents.  

(a) In order to be considered for a wastewater discharge permit, all industrial Users required to have an 

individual wastewater discharge permit must submit a permit application. The Director may require 

Users to submit all or some of the following information as part of the permit application:  

(1) Identifying Information. 

a. The name and address of the facility, including the name of the operator and owner.  

b. Contact information, description of activities, facilities, and plant production processes on 

the premises; 

(2) Environmental Permits. A list of any environmental control permits held by or for the facility. 

(3) Description of Operations. 

a. A brief description of the nature, average rate of production (including each product 

produced by type, amount, processes, and rate of production), and standard industrial 

classifications of the operation(s) carried out by such User. This description should include 

189

#14.



 
 

 

Page 23 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

a schematic process diagram, which indicates points of discharge to the POTW from the 

regulated processes.  

b. Types of wastes generated, and a list of all raw materials and chemicals used or stored at the 

facility which are, or could accidentally or intentionally be, discharged to the POTW; 

c. Number and type of employees, hours of operation, and proposed or actual hours of 

operation; 

d. Type and amount of raw materials processed (average and maximum per day); 

e. Site plans, floor plans, mechanical and plumbing plans, and details to show all sewers, floor 

drains, and appurtenances by size, location, and elevation, and all points of discharge; 

(4) Time and duration of discharges; 

(5) The location for monitoring all wastes covered by the permit; 

(6) Flow Measurement. Information showing the measured average daily and maximum daily flow, 

in gallons per day, to the POTW from regulated process streams and other streams, as necessary, 

to allow use of the combined wastestream formula set out in 42-417(c) (40 CFR 403.6(e)). 

(7) Measurement of Pollutants. 

a. The categorical Pretreatment Standards applicable to each regulated process and any new 

categorically regulated processes for Existing Sources. 

b. The results of sampling and analysis identifying the nature and concentration, and/or mass, 

where required by the Standard or by the Director, of regulated pollutants in the discharge 

from each regulated process. 

c. Instantaneous, daily Maximum, and long-term average concentrations, or mass, where 

required, shall be reported.   

d. The sample shall be representative of daily operations and shall be analyzed in accordance 

with procedures set out in section 42-548 of this ordinance. Where the Standard requires 

compliance with a BMP or pollution prevention alternative, the User shall submit 

documentation as required by the Director or the applicable Standards to determine 

compliance with the Standard. 

e. Sampling must be performed in accordance with procedures set out in section 42-549 of this 

ordinance. 

(8) Any requests for a monitoring waiver (or a renewal of an approved monitoring waiver) for a 

pollutant neither present nor expected to be present in the discharge based on section 42-542 [40 

CFR 403.12(e)(2)].   

(9) Any other information as may be deemed necessary by the Director to evaluate the permit 

application.  

(b) Incomplete or inaccurate applications will not be processed and will be returned to the User for 

revision. 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-476. - Application signatories and certification.  

190

#14.



 
 

 

Page 24 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(a) All wastewater discharge permit applications, User reports and certification statements must be signed 

by an Authorized Representative of the User and contain the certification statement in section 42-

553(a).  

(b) If the designation of an Authorized Representative is no longer accurate because a different individual 

or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the facility or overall responsibility for 

environmental matters for the company, a new written authorization satisfying the requirements of this 

section must be submitted to Director prior to or together with any reports to be signed by an 

Authorized Representative. 

(c) A facility determined to be a Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User by the Director pursuant to 

42-292 must annually submit the signed certification statement in 42-553(b). 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.7, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-477. - Wastewater discharge permit decisions.  

The Director will evaluate the date furnished by the industrial User and may require additional 

information. Within 60 days of receipt of a complete wastewater discharge permit application, the Director 

will determine whether or not to issue a wastewater discharge permit. If no determination is made within 

this time period, the application will be deemed denied. The Director may deny any application for a 

wastewater discharge permit.   

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.8, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-478–42-504. - Reserved. 

Subdivision V. - Individual Wastewater Discharge Permit Issuance  

Sec. 42-505. - Wastewater discharge permit duration.  

Wastewater discharge permits shall be issued for a specified time period, not to exceed five (5) years 

from the effective date of the permit. A wastewater discharge permit may be issued for a period less than 

five years, at the discretion of the Director. Each wastewater discharge permit will include a specific date 

upon which it will expire.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-506. - Wastewater discharge permit contents.  

An individual wastewater discharge permit shall include such conditions as are deemed reasonably 

necessary by the Director to prevent pass through or interference, protect the quality of the water body 

receiving the treatment plant's effluent, protect worker health and safety, facilitate sludge management and 

disposal, protect ambient air quality, and protect against damage to the POTW.  

(a) An individual wastewater discharge permit must contain the following conditions:  

(1) A statement that indicates wastewater discharge permit duration, which in no event shall exceed 

five years, issuance date, expiration date and effective date.  

(2) A statement that the wastewater discharge permit is nontransferable without prior notification to 

and approval from the City in accordance with section 42-509, and provisions for furnishing the 

new owner or operator with a copy of the existing wastewater discharge permit.  

191

#14.



 
 

 

Page 25 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(3) Effluent limits, including Best Management Practices, applicable to the User based on applicable 

standards in federal, state, and local law.  

(4) Self-monitoring, sampling, reporting, notification, and record keeping requirements. These 

requirements shall include an identification of pollutants to be monitored, sampling location, 

sampling frequency, and sample type based on federal, state, and local law.  

(5) The process for seeking a waiver from monitoring for a pollutant neither present nor expected to 

be present in the Discharge in accordance with Section 42-542(b). 

(6) Statement of applicable civil, criminal, and administrative penalties for violation of pretreatment 

standards and requirements and any applicable compliance schedule. Such schedule may not 

extend the time for compliance beyond that required by applicable federal, state, or local law.  

(7) Requirements to control Slug Discharge, if determined by the Director to be necessary. 

(8) Any grant of the monitoring waiver by the Director (section 42-542 (b)) must be included as a 

condition in the User’s permit. 

(b) Wastewater discharge permits may contain, but need not be limited to, the following:  

(1) Limits on the average or maximum rate of discharge, time of discharge, or requirements for flow 

regulation and equalization.  

(2) Limits on the instantaneous, daily and monthly average or maximum concentration, mass, or other 

measure of identified wastewater pollutants or properties.  

(3) Requirements for the installation of pretreatment technology, pollution control, or construction 

of appropriate containment devices, designed to reduce, eliminate, or prevent the introduction of 

pollutants into the treatment works.  

(4) Development and implementation of spill control plans or other special conditions including 

management practices necessary to adequately prevent accidental, unanticipated, or routine 

discharges.  

(5) Development and implementation of waste minimization plans to reduce the amount of pollutants 

discharged to the POTW.  

(6) The unit charge or schedule of industrial User charges and fees for the management of the 

wastewater discharged to the POTW.  

(7) Requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling facilities and 

equipment.  

(8) A statement that compliance with the wastewater discharge permit does not relieve the permittee 

of responsibility for compliance with all applicable federal and state pretreatment standards, 

including those which become effective during the term of the wastewater discharge permit.  

(9) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Director to ensure compliance with this 

subdivision, and state and federal laws, rules, and regulations.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-507. - Wastewater discharge permit appeals.  

Any person, including the User, may petition the Director to reconsider the terms of a wastewater 

discharge permit within 30 days of its issuance.  

192

#14.



 
 

 

Page 26 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(a) Failure to submit a timely petition for review shall be deemed to be a waiver of the administrative 

appeal.  

(b) In its petition, the appealing party must indicate the wastewater discharge permit provisions objected 

to, the reasons for this objection, and the alternative condition, if any, it seeks to place in the wastewater 

discharge permit.  

(c) The effectiveness of the wastewater discharge permit shall not be stayed pending the appeal.  

(d) If the Director fails to act within 45 days, a request for reconsideration shall be deemed to be denied. 

Decisions not to reconsider a wastewater discharge permit, not to issue a wastewater discharge permit, 

or not to modify a wastewater discharge permit, shall be considered final administrative action for 

purposes of judicial review.  

(e) Aggrieved parties seeking judicial review of the final administrative wastewater discharge permit 

decision must do so by filing a complaint with the 14th Judicial Circuit Court within the appropriate 

State Statute of Limitations.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-508. - Wastewater discharge permit modification.  

(a) The Director may modify the wastewater discharge permit for good cause, including, but not limited 

to, the following:  

(1) To incorporate any new or revised federal, state, or local pretreatment standards or requirements.  

(2) To address significant alternations or additions to the industrial User's operation, processes, or 

wastewater volume or character since the time of wastewater discharge permit issuance.  

(3) A change in the POTW that requires either a temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of 

the authorized discharge.  

(4) Information indicating that the permitted discharge poses a threat to the City's POTW, City 

personnel, or the receiving waters.  

(5) Violation of any terms or conditions of the wastewater discharge permit.  

(6) Misrepresentations or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater discharge permit 

application or in any required reporting.  

(7) Revision of or a grant of variance from categorical pretreatment standards pursuant to 40 CFR 

403.13.  

(8) To correct typographical or other errors in the wastewater discharge permit.  

(9) To reflect a transfer of the facility ownership or operation to a new owner/operator where 

requested in accordance with section 42-509.  

(b) The filing of a request by the permittee for a wastewater discharge permit modification does not stay 

any wastewater discharge permit condition.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-509. - Wastewater discharge permit transfer.  

(a) Wastewater discharge permits may be reassigned or transferred to a new owner or operator only if the 

permittee gives at least 30 days advance notice to the Director and the Director approves the 

193

#14.



 
 

 

Page 27 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

wastewater discharge permit transfer. The notice to the Director must include a written certification 

by the new owner or operator which:  

(1) States that the new owner or operator has no immediate intent to change the facility's operations 

and processes.  

(2) Identifies the specific date on which the transfer is to occur.  

(3) Acknowledges full responsibility for complying with the existing wastewater discharge permit.  

(b) Failure to provide advance notice of a transfer renders the wastewater discharge permit voidable on 

the date of facility transfer.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.5, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-510. - Wastewater discharge permit revocation.  

(a) The Director may revoke an individual wastewater discharge permit for good cause, including but not 

limited to, the following reasons:  

(1) Failure to notify the Director of significant changes to the wastewater prior to the changed 

discharge.  

(2) Failure to provide prior notification to the City of changed condition pursuant to section 42-543.  

(3) Misrepresentation or failure to fully disclose all relevant facts in the wastewater discharge permit 

application.  

(4) Falsifying self-monitoring reports and certification statements.  

(5) Tampering with monitoring equipment.  

(6) Refusing to allow the Director timely access to the facility premises and records.  

(7) Failure to meet effluent limitations.  

(8) Failure to pay fines.  

(9) Failure to pay sewer charges.  

(10) Failure to meet compliance schedules.  

(11) Failure to complete a wastewater survey or the wastewater discharge permit application.  

(12) Failure to provide advance notice of the transfer of a permitted facility.  

(13) Violation of any pretreatment standard or requirement, or any terms of the wastewater discharge 

permit or this subdivision.  

(b) Wastewater discharge permits shall be voidable upon nonuse, cessation of operations, or transfer of 

business ownership. All wastewater discharge permits are void upon the issuance of a new wastewater 

discharge permit.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-511. - Wastewater discharge permit reissuance.  

A User shall apply for wastewater discharge permit reissuance by submitting a complete wastewater 

discharge permit application in accordance with section 42-475 a minimum of ninety (90) days prior to the 

expiration of the industrial User's existing wastewater discharge permit.  

194

#14.



 
 

 

Page 28 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 4.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-512. - Regulation of Waste Received from Other Jurisdictions  

(a) If another municipality, or User located with another municipality, contributes all or a portion of its 

wastewater to the POTW, the POTW shall enter into an intermunicipal agreement with the contributing 

municipality. 

(b) Prior to entering into an agreement required by paragraph (a), above, the Director shall request the 

following information from the contributing municipality:  

(1) A description of the quality and volume of the wastewater at the point where it enters the POTW.  

(2) An inventory of all industrial Users discharging to the municipality.  

(3) Such other information as may be required by the Director.  

(c) An intermunicipal agreement, as required by paragraph (a), shall contain the following conditions:  

(1) A requirement for the contributing municipality to adopt a sewer use ordinance which is at least 

as stringent as this subdivision and local limits, including required Baseline Monitoring Reports 

(BMRs) which are at least as stringent as those set out in section 42-420. The requirement shall 

specify that such ordinance and limits must be revised as necessary to reflect changes made to the 

City’s ordinance or Local Limits; 

(2) A requirement for the contributing municipality to submit a revised industrial User inventory on 

at least an annual basis.  

(3) A provision specifying which pretreatment implementation activities, including individual 

wastewater discharge permit issuance, inspection and sampling, and enforcement, will be 

conducted by the contributing municipality; which of these activities will be conducted by the 

Director; and which of these activities will be conducted jointly by the contributing municipality 

and the City 

(4) A requirement for the contributing municipality to provide the City with access to all information 

that the municipal User obtains as part of its pretreatment activities.  

(5) Limits on the nature, quality, and volume of the municipal User's wastewater at the point where 

it discharges to the POTW.  

(6) Requirements for monitoring the contributing municipality’s discharge.  

(7) A provision ensuring the Director access to the facilities of Users located within the contributing 

municipality’s jurisdictional boundaries for the purpose of inspection, sampling, and any other 

duties deemed necessary by the Director; and 

(8) A provision specifying remedies available for breach of the terms of the intermunicipal 

agreement. 

(d) Violation of the terms and conditions of interjurisdictional agreement subjects the contributing 

municipality to the sanctions set out in subdivisions IX through XI of this division.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 5.8, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-513–42-538. - Reserved. 

Subdivision VI. - Reporting Requirements  

195

#14.



 
 

 

Page 29 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

Sec. 42-539. - Baseline monitoring reports.  

(a) Within either 180 days after the effective date of a categorical pretreatment standard, or the final 

administrative decision on a category determination under 40 CFR 403.6(a)(4), whichever is later, 

existing Significant Industrial Users subject to such categorical pretreatment standards, and currently 

discharging to or scheduled to discharge to the POTW, shall be required to submit to the Director a 

report which contains the information listed in subsection (b) of this section. At least ninety (90) days 

prior to commencement of their discharge, new sources, and sources that become industrial Users 

subsequent to the promulgation of an applicable categorical standard, shall be required to submit to 

the Director a report which contains the information listed in subsection (b) of this section. A new 

source shall also be required to report the method of pretreatment it intends to use to meet applicable 

pretreatment standards. A new source shall also give estimates of its anticipated flow and quantity of 

pollutants discharged.  

(b) The User described above shall submit the information required by this section, including:  

(1) All information required in sections 42-475(a)(1)a, 42-475(a)(2), 42-475(a)(3)a, and 42-

475(a)(6).  

(2) Measurement of pollutants. 

a. The User shall provide the information required in section 42-475(a)(7) (a) through (d). 

b. The User shall take a minimum of one representative sample to compile that data necessary 

to comply with the requirements of this paragraph. 

c. Samples should be taken immediately downstream from pretreatment facilities if such exist 

or immediately downstream from the regulated process if no pretreatment exists. If other 

wastewaters are mixed with the regulated wastewater prior to pretreatment the User should 

measure the flows and concentrations necessary to allow use of the combined wastestream 

formula in 40 CFR 403.6(e) to evaluate compliance with the Pretreatment Standards. Where 

an alternate concentration or mass limit has been calculated in accordance with 40 CFR 

403.6(e) this adjusted limit along with supporting data shall be submitted to the Control 

Authority; 

d. Sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with section 42-549; 

e. The Public Utilities may allow the submission of a baseline report which utilizes only 

historical data so long as the data provides information sufficient to determine the need for 

industrial pretreatment measures; 

f. The baseline report shall indicate the time, date and place of sampling and methods of 

analysis, and shall certify that such sampling and analysis is representative of normal work 

cycles and expected pollutant Discharges to the POTW. 

(3) Compliance Certification. A statement reviewed by the industrial User's Authorized 

Representative and certified by a qualified professional, indicating whether pretreatment 

standards are being met on a consistent basis, and, if not, whether additional operation and 

maintenance (O&M) or additional pretreatment is required to meet the pretreatment standards and 

requirements.  

(4) Compliance schedule. If additional pretreatment or O&M will be required to meet the 

pretreatment standards; the shortest schedule by which the industrial User will provide such 

additional pretreatment or O&M. The completion date in this schedule shall not be later than the 

compliance date established for the applicable pretreatment standard. A compliance schedule 

pursuant to this section must meet the requirements set out in section 42-475.  

196

#14.



 
 

 

Page 30 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(5) Certification of reports. All baseline monitoring reports must be signed and certified in 

accordance with section 42-476 of this ordinance and signed by an Authorized Representative as 

defined in section 42-292.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-540. - Compliance schedule progress report.  

The following conditions shall apply to the schedule required by section 42-539(d).  

(a) The schedule shall contain progress increments in the form of dates for the commencement and 

completion of major events leading to the construction and operation of additional pretreatment 

required for the User to meet the applicable pretreatment standards (such events include hiring an 

engineer, completing preliminary and final plans, executing contracts for major components, 

commencing and completing construction, beginning and conducting routine operation). 

(b) No increment referred to above shall exceed nine months. 

(c) The industrial User shall submit a progress report to the Director no later than fourteen (14) days 

following each date in the schedule and the final date of compliance including, as a minimum, whether 

or not it complied with the increment of progress, the reason for any delay and, if appropriate, the steps 

being taken by the industrial User to return to the established schedule. 

(d) In no event shall more than nine months elapse between such progress reports to the Director.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-541. - Report on compliance with categorical pretreatment standard deadline.  

Within 90 days following the date for final compliance with applicable categorical pretreatment 

standards, or in the case of a new source following commencement of the introduction of wastewater into 

the POTW, any industrial User subject to such pretreatment standards and requirements shall submit to the 

Director a report containing the information described in section 42-475(a)(6), 42-475(a)(7) and 42-

539(b)(2). For industrial Users subject to equivalent mass or concentration limits established in accordance 

with the procedures in 40 CFR 403.6(c), this report shall contain a reasonable measure of the industrial 

User's long term production rate. For all other industrial Users subject to categorical pretreatment standards 

expressed in terms of allowable pollutant discharge per unit of production (or other measure of operation), 

this report shall include the industrial User's actual production during the appropriate sampling period. All 

compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with section 42-553. All sampling will be 

done in conformance with section 42-549. 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-542. - Periodic compliance reports.  

(a) Any Significant Industrial User subject to a pretreatment standard shall, at a frequency determined by 

the Director but in no case less than twice per year (in June and December),or as otherwise required 

by the Director or his/her designee, submit a report indicating the nature and concentration of 

pollutants in the discharge which are limited by such pretreatment standards and the measured or 

estimated average and maximum daily flows for the reporting period. In cases where the pretreatment 

standard requires compliance with a Best Management Practice (BMP) or pollution prevention 

alternative, the User must submit documentation required by the Director or the pretreatment standard 

necessary to determine the compliance status of the User. 

197

#14.



 
 

 

Page 31 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(b) The City may authorize an Industrial User subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard to forego 

sampling of a pollutant regulated by a categorical Pretreatment Standard if the Industrial User has 

demonstrated through sampling and other technical factors that the pollutant is neither present nor 

expected to be present in the discharge, or is present only at background levels from intake water and 

without any increase in the pollutant due to activities of the Industrial User. [see 40 CFR 403.12(e)(2)] 

This authorization is subject to the following conditions: 

(1) The waiver may be authorized where a pollutant is determined to be present solely due to sanitary 

wastewater discharged from the facility provided that the sanitary wastewater is not regulated by 

an applicable categorical Standard and otherwise includes no process wastewater. 

(2) The monitoring waiver is valid only for the duration of the effective period of the individual 

wastewater discharge permit, but in no case longer than 5 years. The User must submit a new 

request for the waiver before the waiver can be granted for each subsequent individual wastewater 

discharge permit. See section 42-475(a)(8). 

(3) In making a demonstration that a pollutant is not present, the User must provide data from at least 

one sampling of the facility’s process wastewater prior to any treatment present at the facility that 

is representative of all wastewater from all processes.   

(4) The request for a monitoring waiver must be signed in accordance with section 42-292, and 

include the certification statement in 42-553(a) (40 CFR 403.6(a)(2)(ii)).   

(5) Non-detectable sample results may be used only as a demonstration that a pollutant is not present 

if the EPA approved method from 40 CFR Part 136 with the lowest minimum detection level for 

that pollutant was used in the analysis. 

(6) Any grant of the monitoring waiver by the Director must be included as a condition in the User’s 

permit. The reasons supporting the waiver and any information submitted by the User in its 

request for the waiver must be maintained by the Director for three (3) years after expiration of 

the waiver. 

(7) Upon approval of the monitoring waiver and revision of the User’s permit by the Director, the 

Industrial User must certify on each report with the statement in 42-553(b) below, that there has 

been no increase in the pollutant in its wastestream due to activities of the Industrial User. 

(8) In the event that a waived pollutant is found to be present or is expected to be present because of 

changes that occur in the User’s operations, the User must immediately: Comply with the 

monitoring requirements of section 42-542(a), or other more frequent monitoring requirements 

imposed by the Director, and notify the Director. 

(9) This provision does not supersede certification processes and requirements established in 

categorical pretreatment standards, except as otherwise specified in the categorical pretreatment 

standard. 

(c) All periodic compliance reports must be signed and certified in accordance with section 42-553.  

(d) All wastewater samples must be representative of the industrial User's discharge. Wastewater 

monitoring and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and maintained in 

good working order at all times. The failure of an industrial User to keep its monitoring facility in good 

working order shall not be grounds for the industrial User to claim that sample results are 

unrepresentative of its discharge.  

(e) If an industrial User subject to the reporting requirement in and of this section monitors any pollutant 

more frequently than required by the POTW, using the procedures prescribed in section 42-549 the 

results of this monitoring shall be included in the report.  

198

#14.



 
 

 

Page 32 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-543. - Report of changed conditions.  

Each industrial User is required to notify the Director of any planned significant changes to the 

industrial User's operations or system which might alter the nature, quality or volume of its wastewater at 

least thirty (30) days before the change.  

(a) The Director may require the industrial User to submit such information as may be deemed necessary 

to evaluate the changed condition, including the submission of a wastewater discharge permit 

application under section 42-475.  

(b) The Director may issue a wastewater discharge permit under section 42-477 or modify an existing 

wastewater discharge permit under section 42-508.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.5, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-544. - Reports of potential problems.  

(a) In the case of any discharge, including, but not limited to, accidental discharges, discharges of a non-

routine, episodic nature, a non-customary batch discharge, or a slug load which may cause potential 

problems for the POTW (including a violation of the prohibited discharge standards in section 42-

416), it is the responsibility of the industrial User to immediately telephone and notify the Director of 

the incident. This notification shall include the location of discharge, type of waste, concentration and 

volume, if known, and corrective actions taken by the industrial User.  

(b) Within five days following such discharge, the industrial User shall, unless waived by the Director, 

submit a detailed written report describing the cause of the discharge and the measures to be taken by 

the industrial User to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification shall not relieve the 

industrial User of any expense, loss, damage, or other liability which may be incurred as a result of 

damage to the POTW, natural resources, or any other damage to person or property; nor shall such 

notification relieve the industrial User of any fines, civil penalties, or other liability which may be 

imposed by this subdivision.  

(c) A notice shall be permanently posted on the industrial User's bulletin board and other prominent place 

advising employees whom to call in the event of a discharge described in subsection (a) of this section. 

Employers shall ensure that all employees, who may cause or suffer such a discharge to occur, are 

advised of the emergency notification procedure.  

(d) Significant Industrial Users are required to notify the Director immediately of any changes at its facility 

affecting the potential for a Slug Discharge.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-545. - Reserved 

[Reserved](Ord. No. 6894, § 6.7, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-546. - Notice of violation; repeat sampling and reporting.  

If sampling performed by an User indicates a violation, the industrial User must notify the Director 

within 24 hours of becoming aware of the violation. The User shall also repeat the sampling and analysis 

and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the Director within 30 days after becoming aware of the 

violation. The industrial User is not required to resample if the City performs monitoring at the industrial 

User's at least once a month, or if the City performs sampling between the industrial User's initial sampling 

199

#14.



 
 

 

Page 33 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

and when the industrial User receives the results of this sampling, or if the City has performed the sampling 

and analysis in lieu of the Industrial User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.8, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-547. - Notification of the discharge of hazardous waste.  

(a) Any User who commences the discharge of hazardous waste shall notify the POTW, the EPA Regional 

Waste Management Division Director, and state hazardous waste authorities in writing of any 

discharge into the POTW of a substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would be a hazardous waste 

under 40 CFR 261. Such notification must include the name of the hazardous waste as set forth in 40 

CFR 261, the EPA hazardous waste number, and the type of discharge (continuous, batch, or other). 

If the User discharges more than ten kilograms of such waste per calendar month to the POTW, the 

notification shall also contain the following information to the extent such information is known and 

readily available to the industrial User: an identification of the hazardous constituents contained in the 

wastes, an estimation of the mass and concentration of such constituents in the wastestream discharged 

during that calendar month, and an estimation of the mass of constituents in the wastestream expected 

to be discharged during the following 12 months. All notifications must take place no later than 180 

days after the discharge commences. Any notification under this subsection need be submitted only 

once for each hazardous waste discharged. However, notifications of changed discharges must be 

submitted under section 42-543. The notification requirement in this section does not apply to 

pollutants already reported under the self-monitoring requirements of sections 42-539, 42-541, and 

42-542.  

(b) Dischargers are exempt from the requirements of subsection (a) of this section during a calendar month 

in which they discharge no more than 15 kilograms of hazardous wastes, unless the wastes are acute 

hazardous wastes are specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e). Discharge of more than 15 

kilograms of non-acute hazardous wastes in a calendar month, or of any quantity of acute hazardous 

wastes as specified in 40 CFR 261.30(d) and 261.33(e), requires a onetime notification. Subsequent 

months during which the industrial User discharges more than such quantities of any hazardous waste 

do not require additional notification.  

(c) In the case of any new regulations under section 3001 of RCRA identifying additional characteristics 

of hazardous waste or listing any additional substance as a hazardous waste, the industrial User must 

notify the POTW, the EPA Regional Waste Management Waste Division Director, and state hazardous 

waste authorities of the discharge of such substance within 90 days of the effective date of such 

regulations.  

(d) In the case of any notification made under this section, the industrial User shall certify that it has a 

program in place to reduce the volume and toxicity of hazardous wastes generated to the degree it has 

determined to be economically practical.  

(e) This provision does not create a right to discharge any substance not otherwise permitted to be 

discharged by this subdivision, a permit issued thereunder, or any applicable federal and state law.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.9, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-548. - Analytical requirements.  

All pollutant analyses, including sampling techniques, to be submitted as part of a wastewater 

discharge permit application or report shall be performed in accordance with the techniques prescribed in 

40 CFR 136, unless otherwise specified in an applicable categorical pretreatment standard. If 40 CFR 136 

does not contain sampling or analytical techniques for the pollutant in question, or where the EPA 

determines that the Part 136 sampling and analytical techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant in 

200

#14.



 
 

 

Page 34 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

question, sampling and analyses must be performed by using validated analytical methods or any other 

applicable sample and analytical procedures, including procedures suggested the Director or in accordance 

with procedures approved by the EPA.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.10, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-549. - Sample collection.  

Samples collected to satisfy reporting requirements must be based on data obtained through 

appropriate sampling and analysis performed during the period covered by the report, based on data that is 

representative of conditions occurring during the reporting period. 

(a) Except as indicated in Section (b) and (c) below, the User must collect wastewater samples using 24-

hour flow-proportional composite sampling techniques, unless time-proportional composite sampling 

or grab sampling is authorized by the Director or designee. Where time-proportional composite 

sampling or grab sampling is authorized by the City, the samples must be representative of the 

discharge. Using protocols (including appropriate preservation) specified in 40 CFR Part 136 and 

appropriate EPA guidance, multiple grab samples collected during a 24-hour period may be 

composited prior to the analysis as follows: for cyanide, total phenols, and sulfides the samples may 

be composited in the laboratory or in the field; for volatile organics and oil and grease, the samples 

may be composited in the laboratory. Composite samples for other parameters unaffected by the 

compositing procedures as documented in approved EPA methodologies may be authorized by the 

City, as appropriate. In addition, grab samples may be required to show compliance with instantaneous 

limits.  

(b) Samples for oil and grease, temperature, pH, cyanide, phenols, toxicity, sulfides, and volatile organic 

chemicals must be obtained using grab collection techniques.  

(c) For sampling required in support of baseline monitoring and 90-day compliance  

reports required in sections 42-539 and 42-541[40 CFR 403.12(b) and (d)], a minimum of four (4) 

grab samples must be used for pH, cyanide, total phenols, oil and grease, sulfide and volatile organic 

compounds for facilities for which historical sampling data do not exist; for facilities for which 

historical sampling data are available, the Director or designee may authorize a lower minimum. For 

the reports required by paragraphs section 42-542 (40 CFR 403.12(e) and 403.12(h)), the Industrial 

User is required to collect the number of grab samples necessary to assess and assure compliance by 

with applicable pretreatment standards and requirements 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.11, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-550. - Determination of noncompliance.  

The Director may use a grab sample to determine noncompliance with pretreatment standards.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.12, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-551. - Date of Receipt of Reports.  

Written reports will be deemed to have been submitted on the date postmarked. For reports, which are 

not mailed, postage prepaid, into a mail facility served by the U.S. Postal Service, the date of receipt of the 

report shall govern.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.13, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-552. - Record keeping.  

201

#14.



 
 

 

Page 35 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

Users subject to the reporting requirements of this ordinance shall retain, and make available for 

inspection and copying, all records of information obtained pursuant to any monitoring activities required 

by this ordinance, any additional records of information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities 

undertaken by the User independent of such requirements, and documentation associated with Best 

Management Practices established under section 42-419(b). Records shall include the date, exact place, 

method, and time of sampling, and the name of the person(s) taking the samples; the dates analyses were 

performed; who performed the analyses; the analytical techniques or methods used; and the results of such 

analyses. These records shall remain available for a period of at least three (3) years. This period shall be 

automatically extended for the duration of any litigation concerning the User or the City, or where the User 

has been specifically notified of a longer retention period by the Director.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 6.14, 6-7-1993)  

 

 

Sec. 42-553. - Certification Statements 

(a) Certification of Permit Applications, User Reports and Initial Monitoring Waiver—The following 

certification statement is required to be signed and submitted by Users submitting permit applications 

in accordance with Section 42-476; Users submitting baseline monitoring reports under section 42-

539(b)(5); Users submitting reports on compliance with the categorical Pretreatment Standard 

deadlines under section 42-541; Users submitting periodic compliance reports required by section 42-

542 a–d, and Users submitting an initial request to forego sampling of a pollutant on the basis of 

Section 42-542(b)(4). The following certification statement must be signed by an Authorized 

Representative as defined in section 42-292: 

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my 

direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel 

properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or 

persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 

information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, 

and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, 

including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations. 

(b) Annual Certification for Non-Significant Categorical Industrial Users—A facility determined to be a 

Non-Significant Categorical Industrial User by the Director pursuant to 42-292 and 42-476(c) must 

annually submit the following certification statement signed in accordance with the signatory 

requirements in 1.4 C. This certification must accompany an alternative report required by the 

Director: 

Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing compliance with 

the categorical Pretreatment Standards under 40 CFR ____, I certify that, to the best of my 

knowledge and belief that during the period from __________, ________ to ________, ________ 

[months, days, year]:  

(1) The facility described as ____________________  [facility name] met the definition of a Non-

Significant Categorical Industrial User as described in 42-292; [Note: See 40 CFR 403.3(v)(2)]  

(2) The facility complied with all applicable Pretreatment Standards and requirements during this 

reporting period; and (c) the facility never discharged more than 100 gallons of total categorical 

wastewater on any given day during this reporting period. 

202

#14.



 
 

 

Page 36 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(3) This compliance certification is based on the following information. 

_________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________ 

(c) Certification of Pollutants Not Present  

Users that have an approved monitoring waiver based on section 42-542(b) must certify on each report 

with the following statement that there has been no increase in the pollutant in its wastestream due to 

activities of the User.  

Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for managing compliance with 

the Pretreatment Standard for 40 CFR _______ [specify applicable National Pretreatment Standard 

part(s)], I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there has been no increase in the 

level of ______ [list pollutant(s)] in the wastewaters due to the activities at the facility since filing 

of the last periodic report under section 42-542(a). 

Secs. 42-554–42-578. - Reserved. 

Subdivision VII. - Compliance Monitoring  

Sec. 42-579. - Inspection and sampling.  

The Director shall have the right to enter the facilities of any industrial User to ascertain whether the 

purpose of this subdivision, and any permit or order issued hereunder, is being met and whether the 

industrial User is complying with all requirements thereof. Industrial Users shall allow the Director or his 

representatives ready access to all parts of the premises for the purposes of inspection, sampling, records 

examination and copying, and the performance of any additional duties.  

(a) Where an industrial User has security measures in force which require proper identification and 

clearance before entry into its premises, the industrial User shall make necessary arrangements with 

its security guards so that, upon presentation of suitable identification, the Public Utilities Director, 

state, and EPA will be permitted to enter without delay, for the purposes of performing their specific 

responsibilities.  

(b) The Director shall have the right to set up on the industrial User's property, or require installation of, 

such devices as are necessary to conduct sampling or metering of the User's operations.  

(c) The Director may require the industrial User to install monitoring equipment as necessary. The 

facility's sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and proper 

operating condition by the industrial User at its own expense. All devices used to measure wastewater 

flow and quality shall be calibrated annually to ensure their accuracy.  

(d) Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the industrial facility to be 

inspected or sampled shall be promptly removed by the industrial User at the written or verbal request 

of the Director and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access shall be borne by the 

industrial User.  

(e) Unreasonable delays in allowing Director access to the industrial User's premises shall be violation of 

this subdivision.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 7.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-580. - Search warrants.  

203

#14.



 
 

 

Page 37 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

If the Director has been refused access to a building, structure or property or any part thereof, and has 

demonstrated probable cause to believe that there may be a violation of this subdivision or that there is a 

need to inspect as part of a routine inspection program of the City designed to verify compliance with this 

subdivision or any permit or order issued hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety and 

welfare of the community, then upon application by the City attorney, the associate division court judge 

shall issue a search or seizure warrant describing therein the specific location subject to the warrant. The 

warrant shall specify what, if anything, may be searched or seized on the property described. Such warrant 

shall be served at reasonable hours by the Director in the company of a uniformed police officer of the City. 

In the event of an emergency affecting public health and safety, inspections shall be made without the 

issuance of a warrant.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 7.2, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-581–42-606. - Reserved. 

Subdivision VIII. - Confidential Information  

Sec. 42-607. - Information available to the public.  

Information and data on an industrial User obtained from reports, surveys, wastewater discharge 

permit applications, wastewater discharge permits, and monitoring programs, and from Director’s 

inspection and sampling activities, shall be available to the public without restriction, unless the industrial 

User specifically requests, and is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Director, that the release of 

such information would divulge information, processes or methods of production entitled to protection as 

trade secrets under applicable state law. When requested and demonstrated by the industrial User furnishing 

a report that such information should be held confidential, the portions of a report that might disclose trade 

secrets or secret processes shall not be made available for inspection by the public, but shall be made 

available immediately upon request to governmental agencies for uses related to the NPDES program or 

pretreatment program, and in enforcement proceedings involving the person furnishing the report. 

Wastewater constituents and characteristics and other effluent data as defined by 40 CFR 2.302 will not be 

recognized as confidential information and will be available to the public without restriction.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 8, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-608–42-633. - Reserved. 

Subdivision IX. - Publication of Industrial Users in Significant Noncompliance  

Sec. 42-634. - List to be published annually.  

The Director shall publish annually, in a newspaper of general circulation that provides meaningful 

public notice within the jurisdictions served by the City, a list of the industrial Users which, during the 

previous 12 months, were in significant noncompliance with applicable pretreatment standards and 

requirements. The term Significant Noncompliance shall be applicable to all Significant Industrial Users 

(or any other Industrial User that violates paragraphs (c), (d), or (h) of this section and shall mean:  

(a) Chronic violations of wastewater discharge limits, defined here as those in which 66 percent or more 

of all the wastewater measurements taken for the same pollutant parameter taken during a six-month 

period exceeds (by any amount) a numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement, including 

Instantaneous Limit, as defined in Division 5, Subdivision II;  

204

#14.



 
 

 

Page 38 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(b) Technical review criteria (TRC) violations, defined here as those in which 33 percent or more of 

wastewater measurements taken for each pollutant parameter during a six-month period equals or 

exceeds the product of the numeric Pretreatment Standard or Requirement including Instantaneous 

Limits multiplied by the applicable criteria (1.4 for BOD, TSS, fats, oils, and grease, and 1.2 for all 

other pollutants except pH);  

(c) Any other discharge violation of a Pretreatment Standard or Requirement as defined by Division 5, 

Subdivision II (Daily Maximum, long-term average, Instantaneous Limit, or narrative standard), that 

the Director believes has caused, alone or in combination with other discharges, Interference or Pass 

Through, including endangering the health of City personnel or the general public;  

(d) Any discharge of pollutants that has caused imminent endangerment to the public or to the 

environment, or has resulted in the Director’s exercise of its emergency authority to halt or prevent 

such a discharge;  

(e) Failure to meet, within ninety (90) days of the scheduled date, a compliance schedule milestone 

contained in a wastewater discharge permit or enforcement order for starting construction, completing 

construction, or attaining final compliance;  

(f) Failure to provide, within forty-five (45) days after the due date, any required reports, including 

baseline monitoring reports, 90 day compliance reports, periodic self-monitoring reports, and reports 

on compliance with compliance schedules;  

(g) Failure to accurately report noncompliance;  

(h) Any other violation, which may include Best Management Practices, which the Director determines 

will adversely affect the operation of implementation of the local pretreatment program.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 9, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-635–42-660. - Reserved. 

Subdivision X. - Administrative Enforcement Remedies  

Sec. 42-661. - Notification of violation.  

Whenever the Director finds that any User has violated or is violating this subdivision, a wastewater 

discharge permit or order issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment requirement, the Director or his agent 

may serve upon the User a written notice of violation. Within 15 days of the receipt of this notice, an 

explanation of the violation and a plan for the satisfactory correction and prevention thereof, to include 

specific required actions, shall be submitted by the User to the Director. Submission of this plan in no way 

relieves the industrial User of liability for any violations occurring before or after receipt of the notice of 

violation. Nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the Director to take any action, including 

emergency actions or any other enforcement action, without first issuing a notice of violation.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-662. - Consent orders.  

The Director is hereby empowered to enter into consent orders, assurances of voluntary compliance, 

or other similar documents establishing an agreement with any User responsible for noncompliance. Such 

orders will include specific action to be taken by the User to correct the noncompliance within a time period 

also specified by the order. Consent orders shall have the same force and effect as the administrative orders 

issued pursuant to sections 42-664 and 42-665 and shall be judicially enforceable.  

205

#14.



 
 

 

Page 39 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-663. - Show cause hearing.  

The Director may order any User which causes or contributes to violations of this subdivision, 

wastewater discharge permits, or orders issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment standard or 

requirement, to appear before the Director and show cause why a proposed enforcement action should not 

be taken. Notice shall be served on the User specifying the time and place for the meeting, the proposed 

enforcement action, the reasons for such action, and a request that the User show cause why this proposed 

enforcement action should not be taken. The notice of the meeting shall be served personally or by 

registered or certified mail (return receipt requested) at least 14 days prior to the hearing. Such notice may 

be served on any authorized representative of the User. Whether or not the User appears as ordered, 

immediate enforcement action may be pursued following the hearing date. Such notice may be served on 

any Authorized Representative of the User as defined in section 42-292 and required by section 42-475(a). 

A show cause hearing shall not be a prerequisite for taking any other action against the User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-664. - Compliance orders.  

When the Director finds that a User has violated or continues to violate the subdivision, wastewater 

discharge permits or orders issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment standard or requirement, he may 

issue an order to the User responsible for the discharge directing that the User come into compliance within 

five days. If the User does not come into compliance within 30 days, sewer service shall be discontinued 

unless adequate treatment facilities, devices, or other related appurtenances are installed and properly 

operated. Compliance orders may also contain other requirements to address the noncompliance, including 

additional self-monitoring, and management practices designed to minimize the amount of pollutants 

discharged to the sewer. A compliance order may not extend the deadline for compliance established for a 

federal pretreatment standard or requirement, nor does a compliance order release the User of liability for 

any violation, including any continuing violation. Issuance of a compliance order shall not be a prerequisite 

to taking any other action against the User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.4, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-665. - Cease and desist orders.  

When the Director finds that a User is violating this subdivision, the User's wastewater discharge 

permit, any order issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment standard or requirement, or that the User's 

past violations are likely to recur, the Director may issue an order to the User directing it to cease and desist 

all such violations and directing the User to:  

(1) Immediately comply with all requirements.  

(2) Take such appropriate remedial or preventive action as may be needed to properly address a 

continuing or threatened violation, including halting operations or terminating the discharge. 

Issuance of a cease and desist order shall not be a prerequisite to taking any other action against 

the User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.5, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-666. - Administrative fines.  

(a) Notwithstanding any other section of this subdivision, any User that is found to have violated any 

provision of this subdivision, its wastewater discharge permit, and orders issued hereunder, or any 

206

#14.



 
 

 

Page 40 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

other pretreatment standard or requirement shall be fined in an amount not to exceed $500.00. Such 

fines shall be assessed on a per violation, per day basis. In the case of monthly or other long term 

average discharge limits, fines shall be assessed for each day during the period of violation.  

(b) Assessments may be added to the User's next scheduled sewer service charge and the Director shall 

have such other collection remedies as may be available for other service charges and fees.  

(c) Unpaid charges, fines, and penalties shall, after 30 calendar days, be assessed an additional penalty of 

percent five percent (5%) of the unpaid balance and interest shall accrue thereafter at a rate of one 

percent (1%) per month. A lien against the individual User's property will be sought for unpaid charges, 

fines, and penalties.  

(d) Users desiring to dispute such fines must file a written request for the Director to reconsider for the 

fine along with full payment of the fine amount within 30 days of being notified of the fine. Where a 

request has merit, the Director shall convene a hearing on the matter within 20 days of receiving the 

request from the industrial User. In the event the User's appeal is successful, the payment together with 

an interest accruing thereto shall be returned to the industrial User. The Director may add the costs of 

preparing administrative enforcement actions such as notices and orders to the fine.  

(e) Issuance of an administrative fine shall not be a prerequisite for taking any other action against the 

User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.6, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-667. - Emergency suspensions.  

(a) The Director may immediately suspend a User's discharge (after informal notice to the User) whenever 

such suspension is necessary in order to stop an actual or threatened discharge which reasonably 

appears to present or cause an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of 

persons. The Director may also immediately suspend a User's discharge (after notice and opportunity 

to respond) that threatens to interfere with the operation of the POTW, or which presents or may 

present an endangerment to the environment.  

(1) Any User notified of a suspension of its discharge shall immediately stop or eliminate its 

contribution. In the event of a User's failure to immediately comply voluntarily with the 

suspension order, the Director shall take such steps as deemed necessary, including immediate 

severance of the sewer connection, to prevent or minimize damage to the POTW, its receiving 

stream, or endangerment to any individuals. The Director shall allow the User to recommence its 

discharge when the User has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the City that the period of 

endangerment has passed, unless the termination proceedings set forth in section 42-668 are 

initiated against the User.  

(2) A User that is responsible, in whole or in part, for any discharge presenting imminent 

endangerment shall submit a detailed written statement describing the causes of the harmful 

contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future occurrence to the Director, prior to the 

date of any show cause or termination hearing under sections 42-663 and 42-667.  

(b) Nothing in this section shall be interpreted as requiring a hearing prior to any emergency suspension 

under this section.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.7, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-668. - Termination of discharge.  

207

#14.



 
 

 

Page 41 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(a) In addition to those provisions in section 42-510, any User that violates the following conditions of 

this subdivision, wastewater discharge permits, or orders issued hereunder, is subject to discharge 

termination:  

(1) Violation of wastewater discharge permit conditions.  

(2) Failure to accurately report the wastewater constituents and characteristics of its discharge.  

(3) Failure to report significant changes in operations or wastewater volume, constituents and 

characteristics prior to discharge.  

(4) Refusal of reasonable access to the User's premises for the purpose of inspection, monitoring or 

sampling.  

(5) Violation of the pretreatment standards in section 42-416.  

(b) Such User will be notified of the proposed termination of its discharge and be offered an opportunity 

to show cause under section 42-663 why the proposed action should not be taken.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 10.8, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-669–694. - Reserved. 

Subdivision XI. - Judicial Enforcement Remedies  

Sec. 42-695. - Injunctive relief.  

Whenever a User has violated a pretreatment standard or requirement or continues to violate the 

provisions of this subdivision, wastewater discharge permits or orders issued hereunder, or any other 

pretreatment requirement, the Director may petition the Randolph County Circuit Court through the City's 

attorney for the issuance of a temporary or permanent injunction, as appropriate, which restrains or compels 

the specific performance of the wastewater discharge permit, order, or other requirement imposed by this 

subdivision on activities of the industrial User. Such other action as appropriate for legal or equitable relief 

may also be sought by the Director. A petition for injunctive relief need not be filed as a prerequisite to 

taking any other action against a User.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 11.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-696. - Civil penalties.  

(a) A User which has violated or continues to violate this subdivision, any order or wastewater discharge 

permit hereunder, or any other pretreatment standard or requirement, shall be liable to the City for a 

maximum civil penalty of $500.00 per violation per day. In the case of a monthly or other long-term 

average discharge limit, penalties shall accrue for each day during the period of the violation.  

(b) The Director may recover reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, and other expenses associated with 

enforcement activities, including sampling and monitoring expenses, and the cost of any actual 

damages incurred by the City.  

(c) In determining the amount of civil liability, the court shall take into account all relevant circumstances, 

including, but not limited to, the extent of harm caused by the violation, the magnitude and duration, 

any economic benefit gained through the User's violation, corrective actions by the User, the 

compliance history of the User, and any other factor as justice requires.  

(d) Filing a suit for civil penalties shall not be a prerequisite for taking any other action against a User.  

208

#14.



 
 

 

Page 42 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 11.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-697. - Criminal prosecution.  

(a) Any User that willfully or negligently violates any provision of this subdivision, any orders or 

wastewater discharge permits issued hereunder, or any other pretreatment requirement, shall, upon 

conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not more than $500.00 per violation 

per day or imprisonment for not more than six months or both.  

(b) Any User that willfully or negligently introduces any substance into the POTW which causes personal 

injury or property damage shall, upon conviction, be guilty of a misdemeanor and be subject to a 

penalty of at least $500.00 or be subject to imprisonment for six months. This penalty shall be in 

addition to any other cause of action for personal injury or property damage available under state law.  

(c) Any User that knowingly makes any false statements, representations, or certifications in any 

application, record, report, plan or other documentation filed, or required to be maintained, pursuant 

to this subdivision, wastewater discharge permit or order, or who falsifies, tampers with or knowingly 

renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under this subdivision shall, upon 

conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than $500.00 per violation per day or imprisonment for 

not more than six months or both.  

(d) In the event of a second conviction, a User shall be punished by a fine of not more than $500.00 per 

violation per day or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 11.3, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-698. - Remedies nonexclusive.  

The provisions in subdivisions IX through XII of this division are not exclusive remedies. The Director 

reserves the right to take any, all, or any combination of these actions against a noncompliant User. 

Enforcement of pretreatment violations will generally be in accordance with the City's enforcement 

response plan. However, the Director reserves the right to take other action against any User when the 

circumstances warrant. Further, the Director is empowered to take more than one enforcement action 

against any noncompliant User. These actions may be taken concurrently.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 11.4, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-699–42-723. - Reserved. 

Subdivision XII. - Supplemental Enforcement Action  

Sec. 42-724. - Penalties for Late Reports 

A penalty of twenty-five dollars ($25) may be assessed to any User for each day that a report required 

by this ordinance, a permit or order issued hereunder is late, beginning five days after the date of the report 

is due. Actions taken by the Director to collect late reporting penalties shall not limit the Director’s authority 

to initiate other enforcement actions that may include penalties for late reporting violations. 

Sec. 42-725. - Performance bonds.  

The Director may decline to issue or reissue a wastewater discharge permit to any User which has 

failed to comply with the provisions of this subdivision, any orders, or a previous wastewater discharge 

permit issued hereunder, unless such User first files a satisfactory bond, payable to the City, in a sum not 

to exceed a value determined by the Director to be necessary to achieve consistent compliance.  

209

#14.



 
 

 

Page 43 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 12.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-726. - Water supply severance.  

Whenever a User has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this subdivision, orders, or 

wastewater discharge permits issued hereunder, water service to the User may be severed. Service will only 

recommence, at the User's expense, after it has satisfactorily demonstrated its ability to comply.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 12.2, 6-7-1993)

Sec. 42-727. - Payment of Outstanding Fees and Penalties  

The Director or designee may decline to issue or reissue an individual wastewater discharge permit to 

any User who has failed to pay any outstanding fees, fines or penalties incurred as a result of any provision 

of this ordinance, a previous individual wastewater discharge permit or order issued hereunder. 

Secs. 42-728–42-753. - Reserved. 

Subdivision XIII. - Affirmative Defenses to Discharge Violations  

Sec. 42-754. - Upset.  

(a) For the purposes of this section, the term "upset" means an exceptional incident in which there is 

unintentional and temporary noncompliance with categorical pretreatment standards because of factors 

beyond the reasonable control of the industrial User. An upset does not include noncompliance to the 

extent caused by operational error, improperly designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment 

facilities, lack of preventive maintenance, or careless or improper operation.  

(b) An upset shall constitute an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with 

categorical pretreatment standards if the requirements of subsection (c) of this section are met.  

(c) An industrial User who wishes to establish the affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through 

properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence that:  

(1) An upset occurred and the industrial User can identify the cause of the upset;  

(2) The facility was at the time being operated in a prudent and workmanlike manner and in 

compliance with applicable operation and maintenance procedures;  

(3) The industrial User has submitted the following information to the POTW and treatment plant 

operator within 24 hours of becoming aware of the upset (if this information is provided orally, a 

written submission must be provided within five days):  

a. A description of the indirect discharge and cause of noncompliance;  

b. The period on noncompliance, including exact dates and times or, if not corrected, the 

anticipated time the noncompliance is expected to continue;  

c. Steps being taken or planned to reduce, eliminate and prevent recurrence of the non-

compliance.  

(d) In any enforcement proceeding, the industrial User seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset shall 

have the burden of proof.  

(e) Industrial Users will have the opportunity for a judicial determination on any claim of upset only in an 

enforcement action brought for noncompliance with categorical pretreatment standards.  

210

#14.



 
 

 

Page 44 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(f) The industrial User shall control production of all discharges to the extent necessary to maintain 

compliance with categorical pretreatment standards upon reduction, loss, or failure of its treatment 

facility until the facility is restored or an alternative method of treatment is provided. This requirement 

applies in the situation where, among other things, the primary source of power of the treatment facility 

is reduced, lost or fails.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 13.1, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-755. - Prohibited Discharge Standards  

An industrial User shall have an affirmative defense to an enforcement action brought against it for 

noncompliance with the general prohibitions in section 42-416 if it can prove that it did not know or have 

reason to know that its discharge, along or in conjunction with discharges from other sources, would cause 

pass through or interference and that either:  

(a) A local limit exists for each pollutant discharged and the industrial User was in compliance with each 

limit directly prior to, and during the pass through or interference; or  

(b) No local limit exists, but the discharge did not change substantially in nature or constituents from the 

User's prior discharge when the City was regularly in compliance with its NPDES permit, and in the 

case of interference, was in compliance with applicable sludge use or disposal requirements.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 13.2, 6-7-1993) 

Sec. 42-756. - Bypass.  

(a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall have the 

meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different 

meaning:  

(1) Bypass means the intentional diversion of wastestreams from any portion of an industrial User's 

treatment facility.  

(2) Severe property damage means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the treatment 

facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural 

resources which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass. Severe property 

damage does not mean economic loss caused by delays in production.  

(b) A User may allow any bypass to occur which does not cause pretreatment standards or requirements 

to be violated, but only if it also is for essential maintenance to ensure efficient operation. These 

bypasses are not subject to the provision of subsections (c) and (d) of this section.  

(c) If an industrial User knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall submit prior notice to the 

POTW, at least ten (10) days before the date of the bypass, if possible. An industrial User shall submit 

oral notice of an unanticipated bypass that exceeds applicable pretreatment standards to the POTW 

within 24 hours from the time it becomes aware of the bypass. A written submission shall also be 

provided within five days of the time the industrial User becomes aware of the bypass. The written 

submission shall contain a description of the bypass and its cause; the duration of the bypass, including 

exact dates and times, and, if the bypass has not been corrected, the anticipated time it is expected to 

continue; and steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the bypass. The 

POTW may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral report has been received within 

24 hours.  

(d) Bypass is prohibited, and the POTW may take enforcement action against an industrial User for a 

bypass, unless:  

211

#14.



 
 

 

Page 45 of 46 

Chapter 42 | Clean Version | March 8, 2022 

(1) Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage;  

(2) There was no feasible alternative to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities, 

retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. 

This condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the 

exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal 

periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance; and  

(3) The industrial User submitted notices as required under subsection (c) of this section.  

(e) The Director may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse effects, if the Director 

determines that it will meet the three conditions listed in subsection (d) of this section.  

Subdivision XIV. - Wastewater Treatment Rates [Reserved] 

(Ord. No. 6894, § 13.3, 6-7-1993) 

Secs. 42-757–42-822. - Reserved. 

Secs. 42-823–42-837. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 7. - RATES, CHARGES AND COST RECOVERY  

Sec. 42-838. - Review of sewer rates; disposition of funds.  

(a) The sewer rates will be reviewed every two years and revised as necessary to ensure that the system 

generates adequate revenues to pay the costs of operation and maintenance including replacement and 

that the system continues to provide for the proportional distribution of operation and maintenance 

including replacement costs among Users and User classes. A portion of the total sewer User charge 

shall be designated for operation and maintenance, including replacement purposes, and shall be 

deposited in a separate nonlapsing fund known as the operation, maintenance and replacement fund 

and will be kept in two primary accounts as follows:  

(1) An account designated for the specific purpose of defraying operation and maintenance costs of 

the treatment works (operation and maintenance account).  

(2) An account designated for the specific purpose of ensuring replacement needs over the useful life 

of the treatment works (replacement account). Deposits in the replacement account shall be made 

annually from the operation, maintenance and replacement revenue in the amount of $8,575.00.  

(Code 1965, § 30-25.1; Code 1987, § 28-97)  

Sec. 42-839. - Pretreatment charges and fees.  

The City may adopt reasonable charges and fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and operating 

the City's pretreatment program which may include:  

(a) Fees for wastewater discharge permit applications, including the cost of processing such applications.  

(b) Fees for monitoring, inspection, and surveillance procedures, including the cost of collection and 

analyzing an industrial User's discharge, and reviewing monitoring reports submitted by industrial 

Users.  

(c) Fees for reviewing and responding to accidental discharge procedures and construction.  

(d) Fees for filing appeals.  

212

#14.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-05-07 06:40:56 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 4) 

 
Page 46 of 46 

(e) Fees to recover administrative and legal costs (not included in Section 42-439(b)) associated with 

enforcement activity taken by the Director to address IU noncompliance. 

(f) Other fees as the City may deem necessary to carry out the requirements contained herein. These fees 

relate solely to the matters covered by this subdivision and are separate from all other fees, fines and 

penalties chargeable by the City.  

(Ord. No. 6894, § 15.1, 6-7-1993) 

 

213

#14.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Clerk 

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

  

Summary: Through the course of regular City operations, debts to various vendors and 

agencies are incurred.  The majority are charged to the City through invoices, 

other debts are incurred through contractual arrangements for services, 

financing of purchases, and long-term debt.  This resolution approves payment 

of two types of items; (1) those with due dates within the next two weeks, and 

(2) for payments that have been made for items with due dates that occurred 

since the previous appropriation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget : N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
    _     Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    

    _     Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     

       Correspondence    X   Proposed Resolution   
    Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes    _    Contract M  S  Jeffrey     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kimmons     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

214

#15.



215

#15.



216

#15.



217

#15.



218

#15.



219

#15.



220

#15.



221

#15.



222

#15.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager  

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Appointment To The Housing Authority Board. 

  

Summary: In October 2023 Board member Phyllis Self term will expire on the Moberly 

Housing Authority Board.  Phyllis Self would like to be reappointed to the 

board for a 4-year term.   

  

Recommended 

Action: Please rea-appoint Phyllis Self to the Housing Authority Board.    

  

Fund Name:  N/A 

  

Account Number:  0 

  

Available Budget $:  0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S   Brubaker     
    x   Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report        Other         Passed Failed 

 

223

#16.



224

#16.



225

#16.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Clerk  

Date: November 6, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Consideration For Approval Of A New Liquor Application. 

  

Summary: Shot Clock Sports Bar & Grill (Hattie Mae, LLC) at 604 Concannon St, Moberly, 

MO 65270 has applied for a new liquor license under their manager, Brooksie K. 

Mayville.  The owner of the LLC and business is Adrian Preyer.   

 

The following departments have approved or denied the request: 

 

Police: Denied.  A letter is attached from the Police Chief for your review. 

 

Building Inspector: Approved a Temporary Occupancy Permit; however, the site 

has not met the minimum requirements for zoning related occupancy.  There is a 

timeline of completion as of November 30, 2023, for permanent occupancy to be 

awarded.  The penalty for non-compliance would be to void the business license or 

other licensure associated with the facility and the land.  Documentation from Code 

Inspection Officer is attached for your review. 

 

Health Department: Approved. 

 

City Collector: Approved Business License; however, will be revoked if the work 

for the building inspector is not completed by the deadline of November 30, 2023. 

 

County Registrar: Brooksie Mayville is a registered voter in Boone County.  Adrian 

Preyer, the LLC, and business owner is on inactive registration according to the 

Boone County Clerk due to no registered address and prior address mail being 

returned to Boone County.   

 

County Collector: Brooksie Mayville does not owe any taxes according to the Boone 

County Collector.  The Boone County Collector stated that Adrian Preyer paid 2021 

taxes but did not report any property or pay any taxes in 2022.  There are no current 

taxes owed for 604 Concannon St. per the Randolph County Collector. 

  

  

Recommended 

Action: The City Manager and the Police Chief recommend denying the application. 

  

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Role Call  Aye  Nay 
 
  Memo   Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
      Correspondence   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation   Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation   Petition M  S  Jeffrey     
  P/C Minutes   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
  Application   Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
  Citizen   Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
  Consultant Report x  Other  Liquor License Apps      Passed Failed 

226

#17.



227

#17.



228

#17.



229

#17.



230

#17.



231

#17.



232

#17.



233

#17.



234

#17.



235

#17.



236

#17.



237

#17.



238

#17.



239

#17.



240

#17.



241

#17.



242

#17.



243

#17.



244

#17.



245

#17.



246

#17.



247

#17.



248

#17.



249

#17.



250

#17.


	Top
	#1.	Approval Of The City Council Meeting Minutes For October 16, 2023, and October 20, 2023.
	2023-10-16 DRAFT Minutes for Approval
	2023-10-16 Council Meeting-DRAFT
	2023-10-20 Special Council Meeting-DRAFT

	#2.	A Request From Randolph Area YMCA For The 2023 Turkey Trot 5K.
	Turkey Trot request YMCA
	20231009143208784

	#3.	A Request From The Moberly Area Chamber Of Commerce To Hold The 2023 Christmas Parade In Downtown Moberly On December 2, 2023, At 3:00 P.M.
	Christmas Parade Request
	20231009093228785

	#4.	Receipt Of Bids For 5 Residential Structures
	Receipt of Bids-5 Houses Summary Sheet 
	Advertisement for Bids Sept 2023
	Bid Tab 5 Houses
	Demo Bid Opening
	Wiedeman Dozing
	Schnieders Excavating
	JT Holman

	#5.	Receipt Of Bids For Janitorial Services For The Police Department.
	PD Cleaning Receipt of Bids
	2023-10-13 Bid Opening PD Cleaning

	#6.	Receipt Of Bids For The North Morley Water Line EDA Project For Public Utilities.
	N Morley Water Line Contract Award summary 11-6-23
	N Morley water line bid opening
	MDNR Construction Permit N Morley water line 11-30-21 (1)
	North Morley Agreement

	#7.	A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of Park Land From Leatha Silva And V.V. Silva.
	Silva Agenda Memo
	Silva Land Purchase Resolution
	C2208062B, VF Rothwell Park, City of Moberly
	Silva Land Purchase Docs
	Silva

	#8.	A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing Contracting With JT Holman Construction For Demolition Of Five Residential Structures.
	Res for Bids 5 Houses Summary Sheet 
	Residential (5) Demo Resolution
	Bid Tab 5 Houses

	#9.	A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Randolph County Sheltered Workshop Industries And Authorizing Contracting For Janitorial Services At The Moberly Police Department Building.
	PD Cleaning
	Police Janitorial Services Resolution
	Cleaning Services Contract - Moberly Police Dept. 11-1-23
	Bid Opening 2023-10-13 PD Cleaning

	#10.	A Resolution Accepting The Bid And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An Agreement With Emery Sapp & Sons, Inc., For The North Morley Water Line Replacement Project.
	N Morley Water Line Contract Award summary 11-6-23
	North Morley Water Line Replacement Resolution
	N Morley water line bid opening
	MDNR Construction Permit N Morley water line 11-30-21
	North Morley Agreement

	#11.	A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An Agreement With Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc., For A Utility Rate Study.
	11-6-23 Summary Sheet 1898
	1898 Co Rate Study Resolution
	Moberly MO - Rate Study Proposal - Updated 9.25

	#12.	A Resolution Granting An Access Easement To KOSF II – Moberly, LLC From The City Of Moberly, Missouri.
	KO Storage II easement acceptance summary 11-6-23
	KOSF II Easement Resolution
	KO Easement

	#13.	An Ordinance Approving A Sidewalk Replacement Reimbursement Agreement Between The Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District And The City Of Moberly.
	Sidewalk Replacement Agreement Ordinance
	sidewalk agreement
	Sidewalk Replacement Reimbursement Agreement

	#14.	An Ordinance Repealing Article IV Of Chapter 42 Of The City Code Related To Sewers And Adopting A New Article IV Of Chapter 42 Related To Sewers.
	Utility Code Ordinance Agenda Memo
	Ordinance Repealing and Adopting certain provisions of Chapter 42 revised

	#15.	A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri.
	Appropriation Resolution, November 6, 2023 Agenda Summary
	Appropriation Resolution 11-06-2023

	#16.	Appointment To The Housing Authority Board.
	housing authority phylllis self
	letter for reappointment of Phyllis Self October 2023

	#17.	Consideration For Approval Of A New Liquor Application.
	Liquor Application, Agenda Summary, 2023-11-06 Shot Clock
	Shot Clock Liquor App and Supporting Documents
	Moberly City Code Chapter 6 - Liquor

	#18.	Public Comments.
	#19.	Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To Discuss The Status Of Legal And Personnel Matters.  §(610.021)(1,3) RSMo.
	Bottom

